
 

Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 19, 2021 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL VIA VIDEO CONFERENCE 

 

 
 
To protect against the spread of the COVID-19, the meeting will be held via video conference. The public 
may access/participate in the meeting in the following ways: 
 
a) By dialing the phone number +13126266799 or +19292056099 or +12532158782 or +13017158592 or 
+13462487799 or +16699006833 and when prompted, enter the meeting ID (access code) 962 7287 1738. 
b) iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,96272871738#  or +19292056099,,96272871738# 
c) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://zoom.us/j/96272871738.   
d) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCCzeig5nIS-
dIEYisqah1uQ  (view only).  
e) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only). 
 
To request to speak when allowed on the agenda, participants must click “Raise Hand” if connected by 
smartphone or computer, or press *9 if connected by telephone. All participants will be muted by the presiding 
officer when not actually speaking. 

Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of January 4, 2021. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on the proposed funding distribution of the State's Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published January 8, 2021) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving the proposed funding distribution of the State's Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act. 

Old Business 

3. Pass Ordinance #2980, amending Chapter 20, Subdivisions of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
Final Plat Phasing, upon its third and final consideration. 

4. Resolution extending the face mask mandate for the City of Cedar Falls adopted by Resolution 
#22,097 on September 8, 2020, and extended by Resolution #22,140 on October 19, 2020 and 
Resolution #22,193 on December 7, 2020. 

1



 

Page 2 of 3 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

5. Receive and file Mayor's Monthly Report for December 2020. 

6. Receive & file the resignation of Kei-Che Randle as a member of the Human Rights Commission 
effective October 5, 2020. 

7. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Jordyn Beranek, Human Rights Commission, term ending 7/1/2021. 
b) Melissa Heston, Human Rights Commission, term ending 7/1/2021. 
c) Evan Renfro, Human Rights Commission, term ending 7/1/2021. 

8. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of January 4, 2021 relative to the following 
items: 
a) Downtown Vision Plan & code adoption process. 
b) Special Event Permits/Sturgis Falls Agreement. 
c) Pavement & Alley Management Program. 

9. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Panchero's Mexican Grill, 6421 University Avenue, Class B beer - renewal. 
b) Chad's Pizza and Restaurant, 909 West 23rd Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 
d) Tobacco Outlet Plus, 4116 University Avenue, Class E liquor - new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

10. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of K. Cunningham 
Construction Co., Inc. for the Center Street Recreational Trail Project. 

11. Resolution approving and accepting the low bid of Lodge Construction, Inc., in the amount of 
$510,298.75, for the Union Road Recreational Trail Project - West 12th Street to West 27th Street, 
and authorizing the City Engineer to execute the required contract, bond and insurance, using the 
Iowa Department of Transportation (IDOT) electronic file management system. 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Entitlement Community Development Block 
Grant COVID-19 Program Contract with the Iowa Economic Development Authority relative to 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act. 

13. Resolution setting February 1, 2021 as the date of public hearing on the maximum levy rate. 

Ordinances 

14. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances relative to permitting 
poultry in residential areas, upon its first consideration. 

15. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances relative to establishing 
regulations for rear yard poultry in residential areas, upon its first consideration. 

16. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 15, Nuisances, of the Code of Ordinances relative to keeping 
poultry in residential areas, upon its first consideration. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

17. Allow Bills and Payroll of January 19, 2021. 

2



 

Page 3 of 3 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JANUARY 4, 2021 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:12 P.M. on the above date. The Mayor opened the meeting and 
announced that the meeting was being conducted electronically in conformance 
with the Governor’s Proclamation of Disaster Emergency to limit the spread of 
COVID-19. Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Dunn. Absent: None.  

 
53140 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of December 21, 2020 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53141 - Mayor Green read a proclamation recognizing the year 2021 as the Year of the 

Neighborhood. 
 
53142 - Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of December 22, 

2020, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed FY2021-
FY2026 Capital Improvements Program (CIP).  It was then moved by Kruse and 
seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53143 -  The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed Capital Improvements Program. Upon being advised that there were 
no written communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. 
Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck provided a brief summary of 
the proposed Capital Improvements Program. Following questions and 
comments by T.J. Frein, 1319 Austin Way, Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, and 
Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and responses by Finance & Business Operations 
Director Rodenbeck, Public Works Director Schrage and Public Safety Services 
Director Olson, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next 
order of business. 

 
53144 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that Resolution #22,217, 

approving and adopting the FY2021-FY2026 Capital Improvements Program 
(CIP), be adopted. Following questions and comments by Councilmembers 
Miller, Harding, Sires and Darrah, and responses by Public Safety Services 
Director Olson, Public Works Director Schrage and Finance & Business 
Operations Director Rodenbeck, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah. Nay: Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #22,217 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53145 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,218, 

declaring an official intent under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2 to issue debt to 
reimburse the City for certain original expenditures paid in connection with 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

specified projects, be adopted. Following a question by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay 
Street, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Darrah. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#22,218 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53146 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #2977, 

amending Chapter 12, Human Relations, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
the Human Rights Commission, be passed upon its third and final consideration. 
Following a question by Councilmember Darrah and response by Mayor Green, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Darrah. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2977 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
53147 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2978, amending 

Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles of the Code of Ordinances relative to the 
use of electric-assist bicycles on City recreational trails, be passed upon its third 
and final consideration. Following comments by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, 
T.J. Frein, 1319 Austin Way, and Councilmember Kruse, and responses by 
Mayor Green and City Administrator Gaines, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Dunn, Miller, Harding, Darrah. Nay: Sires, deBuhr, Kruse. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2978 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53148 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #2979, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to prohibiting parking of commercial trucks and trailers on residential 
streets, be passed upon its third and final consideration. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, 
Miller, Kruse, Harding, Darrah. Nay: deBuhr. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Ordinance #2979 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53149 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #2980, 

amending Chapter 20, Subdivisions of the Code of Ordinances relative to Final 
Plat Phasing, be passed upon its second consideration. Following a comment by 
Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and response by Community Development 
Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
53150 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Harding that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of Councilmembers to Appeals Boards for 2021: 
a) Daryl Kruse, Board of Appeals, term ending 12/31/2021. 
b) Kelly Dunn, Board of Electrical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2021. 
c) Susan deBuhr, Board of Mechanical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2021. 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

d) Susan deBuhr, Board of Plumbing Appeals, term ending 12/31/2021. 

 Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of members to Boards and Commissions: 
a) John Gadow, Board of Plumbing Appeals, term ending 12/31/2024. 
b) Nathan Gruber, Board of Plumbing Appeals, term ending 12/31/2023. 
c) Dave Krejchi, Board of Mechanical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2024. 
d) Tom Stickfort, Board of Electrical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2024. 

 Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of December 21, 2020 
relative to the following item: 
a) Capital Improvements Program (CIP) – Joint Meeting with Planning & Zoning 
Commission. 

Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports for November 2020. 

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Cedar Falls Family Restaurant, 2627 Center Street, Special Class C liquor - 
renewal. 
b) Sharky's Fun House, 2223 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

53151 -  It was moved by Harding and seconded by Darrah to receive and file the report 
of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Mayor Pro Tem for 2021. Following 
questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Miller and Darrah, and 
responses by City Attorney Rogers, City Administrator Gaines and Mayor Green, 
the motion carried 4-3, with Miller, deBuhr and Kruse voting Nay. 

 
53152 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller to receive and file the report of 

the Mayor relative to the appointment of standing committees for 2021. Following 
questions and comments by Councilmembers Darrah and Kruse, and responses 
by Mayor Green, the motion carried 6-1, with deBuhr voting Nay. 

 
53153 -  It was moved by Miller and seconded by Harding to receive and file the Council 

Work Session minutes of December 21, 2020. Following questions and 
comments by Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, Councilmembers Miller, deBuhr and 
Darrah, and responses by Mayor Green, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
53154 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

 Resolution #22,219, approving and adopting the rate of $3.89 per $1,000 taxable 
value for the Downtown Cedar Falls Self-Supported Municipal Improvement 
District (SSMID) for FY22. 

      Resolution #22,220, approving and authorizing execution of a Settlement 
Agreement and Release with James Lown Properties, LLC relative to the West 
1st Street Reconstruction Project. 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

        Resolution #22,221, approving and authorizing expenditure of funds for the 
purchase of a Microsoft Enterprise License relative to upgrading operating 
systems of the city's computer network servers. 

 Resolution #22,222, approving and authorizing execution of an Owner Purchase 
Agreement, and approving and accepting a Temporary Construction Easement, 
in conjunction with the Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction Project.   

        Resolution #22, 223, approving and authorizing execution of an Owner Purchase 
Agreement, and approving and accepting a Permanent Sanitary Sewer 
Easement Agreement and Temporary Construction Easement, in conjunction 
with the Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project.  

 Resolution #22,224, approving the Carolan Minor Plat No. 1. 

 Resolution #22,225, setting January 19, 2021 as the date of public hearing on 
proposed funding distribution of the State’s Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Sires, Dunn, Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,219 through #22,225 duly 
passed and adopted.  

53155 -     It was moved by Miller and seconded by deBuhr that a resolution approving and 
adopting amendments to Administrative Policy No. 7, City Council Meeting 
Procedures, be adopted. Following questions and comments by Rick Sharp, 
1623 Birch Street, Penny Popp, 4805 South Main Street, and T.J. Frein, 1319 
Austin Way, it was moved by Harding and seconded by Darrah to postpone 
consideration indefinitely. Following discussion, the motion by Harding was 
withdrawn. Following comments by Councilmembers Kruse and deBuhr, it was 
moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse to add an additional public forum at 
the beginning of meetings. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers deBuhr, Miller and Harding, the motion by Harding was 
withdrawn. Following comments by Councilmembers Miller and Kruse, the Mayor 
put the question on the original motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr. Nay: Sires, Dunn, Miller, Kruse, 
Harding, Darrah. Motion failed. 

53156 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the bills and payrolls of 
January 4, 2021 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer 
be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper 
funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Darrah. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
 

53157 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah to refer to a City Council Work 
Session consideration of full-time vs. part-time Mayor. Following questions and 
comments by Councilmembers Kruse, Harding and Darrah, and responses by 
Mayor Green and City Attorney Rogers, it was moved by Darrah and seconded 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

by Harding to amend the original motion to include Mayor and City Administrator 
ordinances. Following a question by Councilmember Kruse and responses by 
Councilmembers Darrah and Harding and Mayor Green, the motion to amend 
carried 4-3, with Sires, Miller and deBuhr voting Nay. Following additional 
questions by Councilmembers Harding, Dunn, Kruse, Sires and Miller, and 
responses by Mayor Green and City Attorney Rogers, the original motion as 
amended was withdrawn by Kruse. 

 
  It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to refer to a Work Session 

the clarification of duties of full-time Mayor and City Administrator. The motion 
carried 6-1, with Sires voting Nay. 

 
  It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn to refer Administrative Policy #7 

to a Council Work Session. Following comments by Councilmembers Harding 
and Kruse, the motion carried 6-1, with Miller voting Nay. 

 
53158 - Mayor Green responded to a question by Councilmember deBuhr regarding 

consideration of Goal Setting documents. 
 
  City Administrator Gaines responded to a question by Councilmember Harding 

regarding an update on a chicken ordinance. 
 
53159 - Public Works Director Schrage provided information about the snow emergency 

in effect in the Downtown and College Hill areas until Tuesday morning to allow 
for snow removal in those areas. 

 
  Mayor Green announced the date of the next City Council meeting as Tuesday, 

January 19, 2021 due to Martin Luther King Day. 
 
53160 -   Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, requested that the City Council Goal Setting and 

work sessions be televised and recorded. 
 
  T.J. Frein, 1319 Austin Way, expressed concerns with comments made during 

the Administrative Policy #7 discussion, commented on ending the full-time vs. 
part-time Mayor discussions, and on the Council referral process. 

 
  City Attorney Rogers responded to concerns expressed by Jeremy Sulentic, 

1008 Rocklyn Street, regarding the City Administrator not being an “at-will” 
position. 

 
  Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, commented on this being a good meeting and 

expressed appreciation for Council working through the issues.  
 
53161 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the meeting be adjourned 

at 9:40 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

8

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 
 

  

  

 

 
 
   

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

 DATE: January 13, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Public Hearing for State award of CARES Act Community Development 
Block Grant funds (CDBG-CV2)  

 
 
In April 2020, the CARES Act was passed in response to COVID-19.  The State notified 
the City in mid-May that a portion of the State’s CDBG funds were anticipated to be 
proportionally allocated to Entitlement Communities.  Cedar Falls is a CDBG 
Entitlement Community and will receive $369,432 of State CDBG-CV2 funds.  After 
several discussions with the State on eligible projects, the City recently received a 
contract for a portion of the funds. A second hearing is required because the project list 
changed from the original proposal.    
 
CDBG-CV2 funds are to support activities that prevent, prepare for, and respond to 
coronavirus.  CDBG funds also meet a National Objective such as benefit to low- and 
moderate- income (LMI) persons; aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight; 
and/or meet an urgent need.  $125,842.00 of the grant will be funding the service 
agency awards. (This increased from $37,592 in our original proposal.)  
 
The City’s original proposal for playground equipment and expansion was not eligible.  
Staff worked closely with the State to identify some eligible expenses and also 
contacted our local schools to create an inventory of what was needed to address 
urgent needs related to the pandemic.  The inventory includes new equipment to help 
schools and the City to serve the public and work remotely as well as increase safety 
procedures when everyone is working or at school.  The State has restrictive 
requirements for what is allowed within the inventory and staff received the State’s 
approval with the list.   
 
  

9

Item 2.



The following table summarizes how the funds would be allocated. 
 
 

 
Amount  Project Delivery   Total  

Service Agencies  $     115,000.00   $     10,842.00  $    125,842.00  

City  $       75,430.00  $    14,592.00   $      90,022.00  

Schools  $     111,152.00  $    14,592.00   $    125,744.00 

   
 $    341,608.00  

 
 
The Housing Commission recommend approval of the changes at their January 12, 
2021 meeting.  Staff recommends the City Council approve the proposed funding 
distribution of the State’s CDBG-CV2 funding to Cedar Falls.  
 
Please contact staff with any questions.  Thank you.  
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
       Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager      

10

Item 2.



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: December 17, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Subdivision Code Text Amendment – Final plat phasing (TA20-001) 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
The stated purpose of the City’s Subdivision Code is “to provide minimum standards for the 
design, development, and improvement of all new subdivisions and re-subdivisions of land, so 
that existing land uses will be protected, and so that adequate provisions are made for public 
facilities and services, and so that growth occurs in an orderly manner, consistent with the 
comprehensive plan, and to promote the public health, safety and general welfare of the citizens 
of the city.” (Sec.20-1(b)).  Iowa law states that subdivision platting regulations are intended to 
“encourage orderly community development and provide for the regulation and control of the 
extension of public improvements, public services, and utilities, the improvement of land, and 
the design of subdivisions, consistent with an approved comprehensive plan or other specific 
community plan.” It also states that the purpose of establishing regulations for subdivisions is to 
“provide for a balance between the land use rights of individual landowners and the economic, 
social, and environmental concerns of the public when a city or county is developing or 
enforcing land use regulations.” (Iowa Code Section 354.1).   
 
When a property owner desires to divide their land into two or more developable parcels a 
platting process is required. The preliminary plat is intended to show the layout of streets, blocks 
and lots and indicate how public improvements will be extended to serve the new lots created 
with the subdivision. It also identifies any sensitive environmental features that should be 
preserved and how the new development will be integrated into the larger community of 
neighborhoods according to the City’s Comprehensive Plan. To provide a good understanding 
how the new development will connect with surrounding neighborhoods and be designed in a 
manner that will protect the interests of all current and future property owners, the City’s 
subdivision code requires that the preliminary plat include the total contiguous land holdings of 
the owner (Sec.20-58). 
 
It is the obligation of the owner/developer to design and construct all the public improvements 
necessary to support the development of homes or other types of buildings on the newly created 
lots, including all streets, stormwater management facilities, sanitary sewer and water 
distribution systems, sidewalks and trails, and to provide for the extension of other utilities and 
communications systems. The cost of these improvements is then incorporated into the price of 
the lots made available for sale with the final platting of the property.  Based on the anticipated 

11

Item 3.



2 
 

pace of development in the community, the developer may want to develop the subdivision in 
phases, particularly if the preliminary platted area contains more lots than can be absorbed 
(sold) within the developer’s anticipated timeline.  
 
STATEMENT OF THE PROBLEM 
The subdivision code does not currently include specific rules regarding final plat phasing. While 
City staff request a development phasing plan with the preliminary plat, it has been largely up to 
the developer to determine how the subdivision develops over time. This practice has resulted in 
some critical street connections remaining unfinished in certain areas of the community. The 
most recent example is in the Prairie Winds and Prairie West subdivisions where the final critical 
segments of both Ashworth Drive and Ironwood Drive have not been constructed, even though 
the majority of these subdivisions have been built out with new homes. This incomplete street 
network has forced a significant amount of traffic to Aldrich Elementary School onto Erik Road. 
In addition, without a direct connection to Greenhill Road via Ironwood, all commuter traffic to 
and from these neighborhoods have to use either Erik Road or the one block segment of Harriet 
Lane, which was never intended to carry a significant traffic load.  
 
Poorly planned subdivision phasing, particularly when combined with excessively long block 
lengths and few connections between subdivisions create a very inefficient street network.  
Poorly planned subdivision phasing and lack of street connectivity within and between 
subdivisions have both short term and long term costs to the community in the form of increased 
commute times, increased traffic speeds, increased traffic congestion, safety concerns for 
children along walking routes to school, increased emergency response times, and inefficient 
routes for utilities, refuse pick-up and snowplowing.  
 
DISCUSSION OF SOLUTIONS 
If a subdivision is designed with a well-connected street pattern of modest-sized blocks, each 
new area platted would contribute to and expand the connections so there are multiple travel 
routes through and between neighborhoods to distribute the local traffic so no one street is 
overburdened.  A first step toward improving the City’s subdivision regulations to help ensure 
the orderly growth of the community would be to establish a standard for final plat phasing to 
ensure that critical infrastructure connections occur in a timely manner and prior to less critical 
areas of a subdivision. The standard should give flexibility to the developer to propose phasing 
that meets the pace of market demand, but give discretion to the City to determine if the final 
plat phase proposed can function as an independent development with all the necessary public 
improvements and infrastructure extensions; and most importantly will ensure that no essential 
infrastructure improvements are being circumvented or delayed.  
 
For example, in the case discussed above, if the final plat phase of Prairie Winds that includes 
the connection of Ashworth Drive to Arbors Drive would have been built earlier, rather than 
being the last phase of development, it would have provided an additional route to the 
elementary school close to the time when the new school opened, which would have more 
evenly distributed traffic and significantly reduced traffic congestion on Erik Road. These issues 
have also been a topic of discussion for the future West Fork Crossing development. The 
recommended phasing plan is intended to ensure that areas of the development that include the 
critical east-west and north-south street connections occur first with other areas of the 
development to follow in a logical and timely fashion.   

As mentioned at the Planning and Zoning Commission’s August 12th meeting, additional 
amendments to the subdivision code are warranted to address the issues with street 

12

Item 3.



3 
 

connectivity described above and also to address allowances for temporary construction access 
to reduce construction traffic on neighborhood streets. Numerous communities have adopted 
street connectivity standards that result in a more consistent pattern of development that lowers 
long term costs to the community. The Commission requested additional information regarding 
what other cities are doing with regard to street connectivity issues. Proposed subdivision code 
amendments and research on best practices and examples from other cities will be brought 
forward for discussion at a future meeting.  

However, a logical first step in addressing the issues described above is to insert a paragraph 
into the City’s subdivision code to establish the expectation that each final plat phase will be 
reviewed on a case by case basis to make sure that critical street and infrastructure extensions 
are not being unduly circumvented or delayed.  

At the meeting on August 26th, the Commission inquired about what other cities are doing with 
regard to final plat phasing. Staff researched and reached out to a number of Iowa communities 
(Ames, Iowa City, Urbandale, Ankeny, Sioux City, Bettendorf, and Council Bluffs). A number of 
the cities require phasing plans to be submitted and four of the communities address critical 
infrastructure through separate development agreements. Iowa City includes a similar clause in 
their subdivision code as proposed here. It was adopted at the time their subdivision code was 
rewritten in 2008 to address similar concerns about completion of critical connections. Following 
is the provision as stated in the Iowa City subdivision code:  

Upon approval by the City, a final plat may include only a portion of the development 
illustrated on the preliminary plat if that portion can function as a separate development, 
including access and utilities, and if no essential public infrastructure extensions are delayed. 
Whether or not said infrastructure is essential in nature shall be determined by the City.  

At the August 26th meeting the Commission also expressed a desire to formalize the practice of 
requiring a phasing plan at the time of preliminary plat.  Staff finds that codification of this 
practice would provide clarity to the review process, so have included such a requirement in the 
attached ordinance.  

CONCLUSION 

In conclusion, staff notes the following for consideration:  

 The language below is drafted to ensure that each subdivision will be reviewed on its own 
merits. All unique circumstances or characteristics can be considered. This is exactly the 
opposite of a blanket approach. In a sense it is a quality control check reminder for the 
developer, staff, the Planning and Zoning Commission, and the City Council to review the 
plat with an eye toward ensuring that critical connections get prioritized in the phasing of 
a plat.  

 Providing clear direction in the code will ensure that the rules are applied consistently and 
fairly over time.  

 Requiring one development phase to occur prior to a less critical phase does not 
necessarily mean additional cost to the developer. The cost of extending the 
infrastructure is recaptured with the sale of the lots. The cost of installing a 300-foot 
segment of street is recaptured with the sale of lots on either side of that street segment. 
Requiring a different, but more critical 300 foot segment of street to be constructed first 
would not result in additional cost to the developer, but may result in reduced costs and 
benefits to the community as a whole as a more efficient travel route is established. 

13

Item 3.



4 
 

 Finally, the provision will ensure that a subdivision is not platted in a manner that leaves 
out one small segment of critical infrastructure that is then unlikely to ever be completed 
except by the City at taxpayer expense.  

In summary, staff is brings the proposed amendments forward to address a problem we are 
experiencing in Cedar Falls.  The City has received numerous complaints from residents and 
concerns have also been expressed by the City Council about traffic congestion and safety 
concerns caused by delays in extending critical street segments largely resulting from poor 
planning during the phasing of development. The proposed amendment will focus attention on 
this aspect of land development during the review process to avoid such situations in the future.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 

To prevent future situations where critical public infrastructure is delayed or circumvented, as 
described above and to ensure that the same standard is applied consistently and fairly to all 
future subdivisions, staff recommends amending the City’s subdivision code (City Code, 
Chapter 20) as per the attached ordinance. Staff finds that these amendments will establish a 
better balance of interests between private property owners and the community’s interest in 
timely extension of public improvements to serve a neighborhood.  

The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the proposed amendments to the 
subdivision code at their August 12th, August 26th, and October 28th meetings and on a 
vote of 8-0 recommended approval. 
 
Note: Subsequent to the Planning and Zoning Commission meetings and after preliminary 
discussion at the City Council Committee of the Whole meeting on December 7, the language 
has been further refined for clarity. The substance of the proposed amendments remains the 
same as reviewed and recommended by the Commission.  
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
8/12/2020 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a text amendment to the 
subdivision code for Division 3 Final Plat Section 20-100. Chair Holst introduced the 
item and Ms. Howard provided background information. She explained that the purpose 
of the subdivision code is to establish “minimum standards for the design, development 
and improvement of subdivisions so that the existing land uses will be protected, and so 
that adequate provisions are made for public facilities and services, and so that growth 
occurs in an orderly manner, consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and to promote 
the public health, safety and general welfare of the citizens of the city.” Ms. Howard 
explained the intent and structure of the subdivision ordinance and the differences 
between the preliminary and final platting processes. She explained that the subdivision 
code currently doesn’t include specific rules regarding final plat phasing. While a 
phasing plan is requested, it has been left largely up to the developer to determine the 
order of development. In some cases, it has resulted in critical street connections 
remaining unfinished, which can create short and long term costs to the community from 
the inefficient or incomplete street pattern. Other issues include increased commute 
times; overburdening certain streets with excess traffic, impacting homeowners along 
those routes; safety concerns for pedestrians along the congested routes, particularly 
children; increased driver frustration and speeding; increased emergency response 
times; and inefficient routing for utilities and services such as refuse pick-up and snow 
removal. She displayed examples of incomplete streets and problematic final plat 
phasing using aerial photographs.  
 

14

Item 3.



5 
 

Ms. Howard discussed the first step, which is to establish a standard for final plat 
phasing to ensure that critical infrastructure connections occur in a timely manner and 
prior to less critical areas of a subdivision. While giving flexibility to the developer to 
propose phasing that meets the pace of market demand, the City would have the 
discretion to determine if the final plat phase can function as an independent 
development and ensure that no essential infrastructure improvements are being 
circumvented or delayed. 
 
The next step would be to adopt street connectivity standards that provide multiple 
street stubs to subdivision boundaries, allowing continuation of the street pattern on 
adjacent properties. Block lengths would be limited and existing restrictions on cul-de-
sacs would be enforced. A standard for intersection spacing along major roadways 
would also be established, as well as consideration of construction access. Code 
amendments to establish these standards will be brought forward for discussion at a 
future Commission meeting.  
 
Ms. Howard displayed the proposed amendments to the code and brought it to the 
Commission for discussion. Ms. Prideaux stated that this has been explained well and 
will ensure the standard is applied fairly and consistently. Mr. Larson noted that case-by-
case attention should be maintained as things do change over time.  With regard to 
street connectivity standards, he would like more information about what other 
communities are doing. He has some skepticism of using a blanket approach. Mr. 
Leeper stated that these changes are good to consider. Mr. Schrad asked if staff could 
look at the zoning in Ankeny to see how they are dealing with sprawl in their community. 
Ms. Saul wants to see research regarding street connectivity standards in other 
communities and how it has affected them and what changes we could make to keep up 
with their growth. 

 
 
Discussion 
8/26/2020  

The first item of business was a text amendment to the Subdivision Code Division 3 
Final Plats. Chair Holst introduced the item and Ms. Houk Sheetz provided background 
information. She explained that the item was considered at the last meeting and gave a 
brief refresher on the previous discussion, reiterating the purpose of the code and the 
platting process for preliminary and final plats. She also discussed the issues with the 
current language and process and provided an example situation. Ms. Houk Sheetz 
brought forward potential solutions for discussion with the Commission, and displayed 
the section for consideration at this time (Section 20-100).  

 
Mr. Larson stated that he recalled that samples from other similar communities were 
requested for the Commission to look over. He moved to table the item until those 
samples are provided. Ms. Sheetz stated that she can speak to the subject or the 
motion could go forward. Ms. Saul seconded the motion to table the discussion.  
 
Ms. Sheetz explained that a planner did reach out to several Iowa communities (Ames, 
Urbandale, Ankeny, Sioux City, Bettendorf and Council Bluffs) and provided the 
information that was received. While none of the communities have specific language 
regarding the phasing of a final plat, Ames does have language requiring commercial, 
industrial and multi-family subdivision to do an integrate site plan with a development 
agreement. Urbandale requires phasing plans for preliminary plats, Sioux City is 
updating its subdivision regulations to require phasing plans, but there is no specific 
language regarding timing in either city. The majority of the cities do use development 
agreements when critical infrastructure is involved to insure completion, but it is done 

15

Item 3.



6 
 

on a case-by-case basis. Council Bluffs has no requirement and tries to follow the 
practices of Omaha to make development easier for the developers who serve the 
Omaha area. Bettendorf and Iowa City were the most stringent regarding phasing and 
development of critical infrastructure. There appears to be a variety of ways that 
communities handle such development.  
 
Ms. Saul stated that she was concerned that the Commission asked for the information 
to be supplied so that they can read it before the meeting and didn’t receive it. She also 
asked what caused the problems in the examples that were presented (i.e. Prairie 
West). Ms. Sheetz stated that the projects were some time ago and gave information 
based on records she has. Mr. Larson noted his concern that a blanket approach could 
lead to major obstacles where developments wouldn’t be viable to pursue. He also 
pointed out that in the private sector you would never be able to build and presume that 
someone else would make road connections. He feels that having a phasing proposal 
submitted with the preliminary plat would be helpful.  
 
Mr. Leeper asked if the City has the discretion to tell the developer which phase should 
go first. Ms. Houk Sheetz stated that the City has done that in the past. Each case will 
be different so timing will depend on the specific development. There was further 
discussion regarding proposed language and definitions to be considered, as well as 
consequences and enforcement for timelines that are not met. Mr. Schrad stated that 
he would second that the item should be tabled and that he would like to see some 
examples from other communities. 
  
Mr. Larson’s motion to table the item until the next meeting was again brought forward. 
Mr. Schrad seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes 
(Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux, Saul and Schrad), and 0 nays.  

 

Discussion      
10/28/2020  

The Commission then considered subdivision code text amendments for final plat 
phasing. Chair Holst introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided information. She 
explained that the subdivision code is intended to establish minimum standards for the 
design, development and improvement of subdivisions so that adequate provisions are 
made for public facilities and services to serve existing and future needs. It should 
allow growth to occur in an orderly manner, consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and to promote public health, safety and general welfare of the citizens. She explained 
the purpose of the preliminary plat, noting that it shows the layout of streets, blocks and 
lots, as well as indicating how public improvements will be extended to serve the new 
lots created. It identifies sensitive environmental features and how those will be 
protected or their loss mitigated, and shows how the new development will fit into the 
larger community of neighborhoods. Preliminary plats also ensure that the design will 
protect the interests of current and future property owners. The Code requires the 
owners to include the entirety of their contiguous holdings on the plat to ensure the 
goals are met. 

 
Ms. Howard explained that the final plat is the next step, noting that it is the obligation 
of the owner/developer to design and construct all the public improvements necessary 
to support the proposed development. The cost of the improvements is incorporated 
into the price of the lots made available for sale with the final plat approval. For larger 
subdivisions, the land is often final platted in phases based on the pace of 
development, as the construction of the improvements is an upfront cost that is re-
captured with the sale of the lots. 

16

Item 3.



7 
 

 
 She noted that there have been complaints from residents and concerns expressed by 

City Council concerning final plat phasing, as there are no specific rules regarding the 
phasing and it has been left largely up to the developer to determine the order. In some 
cases critical street connections have remained unfinished and this has short term and 
long term costs to the community. Ms. Howard discussed the results of poorly planned 
subdivision phasing. She provided the example of the Ironwood connection to Greenhill 
and the phasing of the Prairie Winds subdivision and the added congestion it created 
along Erik Road because the phasing wasn’t well-planned. She showed the phasing 
plat that was provided as an example of the issues that can create if the phasing isn’t 
completed so the critical connections are completed earlier in the development of the 
subdivision. She noted that these are just a couple of examples. She also showed 
street patterns within the city and how the lack of street connectivity can create hidden 
costs to the community in the form of increased commute times, increased traffic 
congestion, pedestrian safety issues, increased driver frustration and speeding, 
increased emergency response times, inefficient routing of utilities and services.  

 
 Ms. Howard discussed the solutions, which start with establishing a standard for final 

plat phasing to ensure that critical infrastructure connections occur prior to less critical 
areas of the subdivision. The developer would be given flexibility to propose phasing 
that meets the pace of market demand, but the City will have the discretion to 
determine if the final plat phase can function as an independent development. This will 
ensure that no essential infrastructure improvements are being circumvented or 
delayed.  

 
 The next steps would be consideration of street connectivity standards that would 

provide multiple street stubs to subdivision boundaries to allow continuation of the 
street pattern on adjacent properties. Limiting block lengths, enforcing existing 
restrictions on cul-de-sacs and establishing standards for intersection spacing along 
major roadways would also be considered. Consideration of requirements for 
temporary construction access to reduce construction traffic on existing streets would 
also be made. Code amendments to establish these standards will be brought forward 
for discussion at a future Commission meeting. 

 
 Ms. Howard discussed staff research of other cities and how they phase their final 

plats. A number of the cities require phasing plans as part of the submittal process, and 
four of the communities address critical infrastructure through separate development 
agreements. However, she noted that the development agreement process can be 
lengthy and that it may not be necessary for every subdivision.  

 
 She noted that at the last meeting, the Commission requested language to formalize 

the practice of requiring a phasing plan at the time of preliminary plat. Staff agrees that 
codification of the practice would provide clarity to the review process, so have drafted 
an amendment for consideration.  

 
 Ms. Howard stated that staff is bringing the proposed amendments to address issues 

currently being experienced. The proposed language is drafted to ensure that each 
subdivision will be reviewed on its own merits and all unique circumstances can be 
considered. It will serve as a quality control reminder for all parties to review the plat 
with an eye toward ensuring that critical connections are prioritized in the phasing 
process. Providing clear direction in the code helps to ensure that rules are fairly and 
consistently applied over time. Requiring one development phase prior to a less critical 
phase will not necessarily mean additional cost to the developer and provided an 
example. The provision will ensure that a subdivision is not platted in a manner that 

17

Item 3.



8 
 

leaves out one small segment of critical infrastructure that will then be unlikely to be 
completed unless by the City at taxpayer expense. Ms. Howard provided the proposed 
amendment to the Code. Staff recommends that the Commission discuss and make a 
recommendation to City Council.  

 
 Mr. Holst asked for clarification on what is being considered. Ms. Howard explained 

that at this time two new paragraphs are proposed; one requiring a the phasing plan at 
the time of preliminary plat submittal; and another paragraph that codifies review of a 
proposed final phasing as stated in the staff report. She explained the second 
paragraph purpose and what would be considered when a final plat is proposed. Mr. 
Larson questioned verbiage in the second paragraph being discussed, and asked if it 
means that a phase would need to stand on its own. Ms. Howard confirmed that was 
the case and gave further information. Mr. Larson asked how this new segment would 
have helped with Prairie Winds and Prairie West had it been in place at that time. Ms. 
Howard noted the original phasing plan for Prairie Winds that showed phase V that 
included the Ashworth connection to Aldrich Elementary School. However, an 
alternative phasing was allowed that split that phase at the request of the developer. 
This phase V did not include the critical connection of Ashworth to Arbors Drive.  If the 
amendment had been in place, the issue of the critical street connection may have 
been considered more carefully.  

 
Mr. Holst noted that requiring a phasing plan should help but only if they want to vary 
from the plan. Howard noted that this would help in those situations that alternate 
needs are present at the final plat phase and allows more flexibility for developer to 
request alternate phasing to be considered at that point and P&Z and Council can 
consider. Mr. Larson asked how much fluctuation there can be from a preliminary plat 
to a final plat without having to resubmit and approve the preliminary plat. Ms. Howard 
stated that the preliminary plat has to be in substantial compliance with preliminary plat, 
including the street pattern and layout of the lots. Saul asked a question about how this 
would have applied in Prairie Winds. Howard explained how it might have helped to 
have that discussion at P&Z and Council. A phasing plan hasn’t always been a 
requirement in the past, but this Code update would ensure that staff and Council have 
a chance to review all the aspects being considered.  

 
Howard also noted that the City Council will be the ultimate decision maker in the 
process. Mr. Larson asked what measures are in place to enforce the timing of phase 
completion. Ms. Howard stated that each project will be considered on its own merits at 
that time. The developer is making decisions based on their specific project timelines, 
so it will help to have the phases laid out appropriately, but it will be on a case-by-case 
basis. She noted the more clear and objective standards we have in the code the more 
clear the process is for everyone. Mr. Holst noted the benefits of having the opportunity 
to consider the phasing to prevent connectivity problems. Mr. Larson expressed some 
additional concerns. Howard noted that there is nothing in this proposal to force a 
developer to build a road in an area that is not yet platted or being considered for 
development. Ms. Saul asked about whether this would prevent development. Prideaux 
clarified her understanding. Mr. Larson asked other questions about street connectivity. 
Howard clarified that his concerns were related to general street connectivity and is 
different than the issue being considered with this paragraph. Mr. Larson agreed that 
including additional tools in the toolbox is a good thing. He then asked a question about 
the specific language in the second paragraph about a development standing on its 
own. Howard clarified what that clause means.  She gave an example of making sure 
stormwater management is handled so that it doesn’t affect other properties around 
them. She noted that the phase has to have the infrastructure necessary to support the 

18

Item 3.



9 
 

homes in that phase and allows the neighborhood to function properly, including storm 
water management, sewer and water connections, and streets.  

 
Holst requested a motion. Ms. Prideaux made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Lynch 
seconded the motion. Mr. Holst expressed the reasons for his support of these 
amendments.  Ms. Saul stated that she feels this will help the overall process, but 
doesn’t want to see it hinder projects. She stated that she thinks we have a pretty good 
understanding now so should be helpful in the process of review.  

  
The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Hartley, Holst, Larson, 
Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux, Saul and Schrad), and 0 nays. 

19

Item 3.



1 
 

 

 

Prepared by:  Karen Howard, P&CS Manager, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

ORDINANCE NO. 2980 

AN ORDINANCE (1).  AMENDING SECTION 20-58, INFORMATION REQUIRED TO 

BE SHOWN, OF DIVISION 2, PRELIMINARY PLAT, BY ENACTING A NEW 

UNTITLED PARAGRAPH (21) AND RENUMBERING EXISTING UNTITLED 

PARAGRAPHS (21) THROUGH (23)IN SAID SECTION ACCORDINGLY; AND (2). 

REPEALING SECTION 20-100, SUBMISSION REQUIRED, AND SECTION 20-105, 

PROCEDURE FOR APPROVAL; DISAPPROVAL TO STATE REASONS, OF 

DIVISION 3, FINAL PLAT, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF NEW SECTIONS 

20-100 AND 20-105, WITH THE SAME TITLES; ALL OF ARTICLE II, PLATS, OF 

CHAPTER 20, SUBDIVISIONS, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA.  

WHEREAS, the purpose of the City’s subdivision code is to provide minimum standards for 

the design, development, and improvement of all new subdivision of land, so that existing land 

uses will be protected, and so that adequate provisions are made for public facilities and 

services, and so that growth occurs in an orderly manner consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan, and to promote the public health, safety and general welfare of the citizens of the city; and  

WHEREAS, the Cedar Falls Subdivision Code does not include specific rules regarding 

final plat phasing; and 

WHEREAS, the absence of rules for phasing of subdivisions has resulted generally in poor 

street connectivity, and critical street connections remaining unfinished in certain areas of the 

community; and 

WHEREAS, poorly planned subdivision phasing, particularly when combined with 

excessively long block lengths and few street connections between subdivisions create an 

inefficient street network that results in both short term and long term costs to the community in 

the form of increased commute times, increased traffic speeds, increased traffic congestion, 

safety concerns for pedestrians, increased emergency response times, and inefficient routes for 

utilities, refuse pick-up and snowplowing; and  

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the community to adopt rules for phasing of 

subdivisions to ensure adequate and timely street connectivity within and between 

neighborhoods; and  

WHEREAS, providing clear direction in the code will ensure that the rules are applied 

consistently and fairly; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has reviewed the proposed ordinance 

amendments (under land use tracking # TA20-001), and recommends approval. 

20

Item 3.



2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA: 

Section 1.  Section 20-58, Information Required to be Shown, of Division 2, Preliminary Plat, 

of Article II, Plats, of Chapter 20, Subdivisions, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended by adding a new untitled paragraph (21), and 

renumbering existing paragraphs (21) through (23) in said section accordingly, as follows:  

Sec. 20-58. - Information required to be shown.  

The preliminary plat shall be clearly marked "preliminary plat" and shall present the total 
land holdings of the owner on adjacent land or abutting the area intended for immediate 
development unless said larger property area is allowed to be excluded from the preliminary plat 
presentation by the city engineer. The preliminary plat shall show or have attached thereto, the 
following:  

(1)  Title, scale, north arrow and date.  

(2)  Proposed name of the subdivision, which shall not duplicate or resemble existing 
subdivision names in the county, as approved by the county auditor.  

(3)  The name and address of the owner and the name, address and profession of the 
person preparing the plat. The agent, if any, representing the owner must be clearly 
identified with name, address and profession.  

(4)  A key location map showing the general location of the proposed subdivision in 
relation to surrounding development and in relation to the city boundaries.  

(5)  The names and locations of adjacent subdivisions and the names of record owners 
and location of adjoining parcels of unplatted land shall be shown on the plat. A list of 
all owners of record of property located within 200 feet of the subdivision boundary 
shall be attached. The addresses of all record owners within 200 feet shall also be 
provided. These addresses may be provided on a separate sheet.  

(6)  The location of existing property lines, streets and alleys, easements, buildings, 
utilities, watercourses, tree masses, and other existing features affecting the plat.  

(7)  Existing and proposed zoning of the proposed subdivision and adjoining property with 
a statement of minimum required building setbacks on each lot as specified in the 
zoning chapter.  

(8)  Topographic elevations and contours at vertical intervals of not more than two feet 
accompanied by a note on the plat briefly describing the nature and extent of any 
topographic changes.  

(9)  The legal description of the area being platted.  

(10)  The boundary of the area being platted, shown as a dark line, with the approximate 
length of boundary lines and the approximate location of the property in reference to 
known section lines.  

(11)  The layout, numbers and approximate dimensions and area of proposed lots. 
Building setback lines as specified in the zoning chapter must be illustrated on each lot 
adjacent to all proposed public rights-of-way.  

(12)  The location, width and dimensions of all streets and alleys proposed to be 
dedicated for public use. If boulevard streets are proposed, said boulevards must be 

21

Item 3.



3 
 

clearly illustrated and indicated whether the boulevard is to be landscaped or made up 
of other material, specifying such material.  

(13)  Illustrate the location of all existing and proposed public sidewalks, trails or other 
pedestrian pathways.  

(14)  The proposed names of all streets in the area being platted. Proposed street names 
shall not resemble or duplicate the names of existing streets within the city unless the 
proposed street is a continuation of an existing street.  

(15)  Present and proposed utility systems, including sanitary and storm sewers, other 
drainage facilities, water lines, gas mains, electric utilities.  

(16)  Present and proposed easements, showing locations, widths, purposes and 
limitations.  

(17)  Parcels of land proposed to be dedicated or reserved for schools, parks, 
playgrounds, or other public, semi-public or community purposes, or shown for such 
purpose in the comprehensive plan or other adopted plans.  

(18)  Regulatory flood elevation data. Limits of the 500-year floodplain boundaries 
including floodway and floodway fringe, original and revised, must be shown upon the 
plat.  

(19)  The location and dimensions of any and all wetland areas, as defined herein, shall 
be clearly shown. Provisions regarding the disposition of such lands shall be stated.  

(20)  The plat shall be accompanied by a written and signed statement or deed of 
dedication in which the subdivider sets forth the proposed restrictions, easements, 
building lines, public improvements and other features, within the area of the plat. Any 
tracts or outlots illustrated on the plat but not intended to be developed must be 
identified in the owner's statement or deed of dedication as to their intended usage, 
future maintenance and ownership.  

(21)    If the proposed preliminary plat area will be developed in phases, a subdivision 
phasing plan shall be submitted for review and approval, with an emphasis on 
ensuring the timely connection of streets and other infrastructure within the 
development; and to ensure a well-connected street pattern with multiple, direct routes 
between neighborhood destinations; and to ensure that critical street routes are 
completed first to reduce traffic congestion, encourage safe walking and biking, 
improve emergency access and response times, and allow the timely provision of 
essential infrastructure. 

(22)  The plat shall be accompanied by an aerial photograph of the proposed 
development site with soil types identified on said photograph. A soils analysis shall 
also be provided which describes soil types present on the site along with a description 
of the key characteristics of each soil type.  

(23  Any other pertinent information, including, but not limited to, traffic reports, or more 
detailed soils reports, geotechnical soils reports as specified by the city engineer.  

(24)  The fee, as required by the city's fee schedule for subdivision plats.  

 

 

               Section 2.  Section 20-100, Submission Required, and Section 20-105, Procedure for 

Approval; Disapproval to State Reasons, both of Division 3, Final Plat, of Article II, 

22

Item 3.



4 
 

Plats, of Chapter 20, Subdivisions, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, are hereby repealed in their entirety, and new Sections 20-100 and 20-

105 are enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 20-100. - Submission required.  

(a)  The subdivider shall, within two years from the date of approval of the preliminary plat, 
unless such time period has been extended by the city council, prepare and file with the city 
planner, six unsigned copies of the proposed final plat and required attachments, as set forth in 
this division along with at least one reproducible-size copy (no larger than 11 inches by 17 
inches) of the final plat. An electronic copy of the plat in an approved AutoCAD program must 
also be submitted. The proposed deed of dedication or owner's statement shall be submitted 
along with the plat fee. Sewer tapping fees, if any, shall be submitted at the time of initial plat 
submittal. Except for a final plat for a minor subdivision as set forth herein, no final plat shall be 
considered by the city council until and unless a preliminary plat for the area included in the 
proposed final plat has been approved. The final plat shall be in substantial conformance with 
the approved preliminary plat as determined by the city engineer. Furthermore, a final plat shall 
not be accepted for consideration by city staff until all required construction plans and 
specifications for all required improvements and public infrastructure as indicated on the 
approved preliminary plat, including cost estimates, have been submitted and approved by the 
city engineer. In addition a written environmental report shall be submitted and approved by the 
city engineer prior to final plat submittal. Lien waivers and mortgage releases of all interested 
parties shall be provided to the city prior to final plat approval. 

(b)   The subdivider may file with the city planner a proposed final plat of only a portion of 
an approved preliminary plat, if said final plat phase can function as a separate development, 
including, but not limited to adequate street access, stormwater management and utilities, and if 
no essential public infrastructure extensions are delayed.  All submittals and information for final 
plats shall be required.  Such phased submissions shall follow the phasing plan submitted and 
approved with the preliminary plat, unless, based on the conditions present at the time of 
submittal of the proposed final plat, the city determines that alternate phasing of a subdivision is 
necessary to ensure the standards of this paragraph are met and to ensure timely extension 
and connection of essential infrastructure.  Whether or not said infrastructure is essential in 
nature shall be determined by the city.  

 

Sec. 20-105. - Procedure for approval; disapproval to state reasons.  

(a)  Six copies of the final plat, signed by a state licensed land surveyor, together with three 
copies of a signed owner's statement or deed of dedication shall be submitted to the city 
planning and zoning commission, accompanied by a nonrefundable fee as stated within the 
city fee schedule. Appropriate city council resolution forms must also be submitted by the 
developer (three copies each). There shall forthwith be referred one copy of the plat, 
together with a copy of the owner's statement, to the city engineer. The city engineer shall 
carefully examine said plat as to its compliance with the approved preliminary plat, and 
shall submit the engineer's findings to the commission together with the copy of the plat 
received.  

(b)  When the engineer's report is received by the commission, it shall, as soon as possible, 
consider the report and pass upon the plat. When the final plat has been reviewed by the 
commission, six copies of the plat shall forthwith be transmitted to the city council, together 
with a copy of the owner's statement, a copy of the engineer's report and a signed copy of 
its approval to the city council.  

23

Item 3.



5 
 

(c)  When the final plat has been approved by the city council and all six copies duly certified, 
one copy shall be delivered to the city planner, one to the city engineer, one to the city 
clerk, two to Cedar Falls Utilities and the sixth copy to the owner or subdivider for filing with 
the county recorder.  

(d)  Following final approval of the final plat, the owner shall supply to the city engineer a 
reproducible copy of the approved plat in paper form and in electronic AutoCAD format.  

(e)  The city council shall apply reasonable standards and conditions in accordance with 
applicable state statutes and city ordinances for the review and approval of preliminary and 
final plats of subdivisions.  

        (1)  The city council shall determine whether the subdivision conforms to the 
comprehensive plan, and shall give consideration to the possible burden on public 
improvements and to a balance of interests between the owner, future purchasers, and the 
public interest in the subdivision, when reviewing the proposed subdivision plat, and when 
requiring the installation of public improvements in conjunction with approval of a 
subdivision plat. The city council shall not issue final approval of a subdivision plat unless 
the subdivision plat conforms to all applicable city ordinances and state statutes, including 
Iowa Code §§ 354.6, 354.11 and 355.8. 

        (2)  In the case of a final plat of only a portion of an approved preliminary plat, in addition to 
application of the above standards and conditions, the city council shall only approve said 
final plat phase if it can function as a separate development, i.e. that street access, storm 
water management, utilities, and other essential infrastructure improvements are adequate 
to serve the area under consideration; and if essential public infrastructure extensions into 
the area under consideration and into and through the remaining areas within the approved 
preliminary plat will not be delayed. Whether or not said infrastructure is essential in nature 
shall be determined by the city. 

 (f)  If said plat is disapproved by the council, such disapproval shall point out wherein the 
proposed plat is objectionable.  

(g)  Upon completion of the necessary improvements, reproducible as-built plans for all 
improvements shall be supplied to the city engineer in paper form and electronic AutoCAD 
format.  

 

INTRODUCED:    December 21, 2020   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  December 21, 2020   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  January 4, 2021   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:        

 
 

 
__________________________________ 

      Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

24

Item 3.



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

RESOLUTION EXTENDING A FACE MASK MANDATE FOR THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 WHEREAS, we, the elected representatives of the City of Cedar Falls, took an oath to 
uphold and defend the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of Iowa, 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the emergence of the novel coronavirus, SARS-CoV-2, that causes the 
disease COVID-19, can result in serious illness or death and can easily be spread from person to 
person, and 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 31, 2020, the United States Department of Health and Human 
Services declared a national public health emergency related to the dangers posed by COVID-19, 
and  
 

WHEREAS, on March 9, 2020, the Governor of the State of Iowa, Kim Reynolds, signed a 
proclamation of disaster emergency for the entire State of Iowa based on the increasing numbers 
in the State of Iowa testing positive for COVID-19, and 

  
WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the COVID-19 

outbreak to be a worldwide pandemic, and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States signed an emergency 

declaration under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act authorizing 
emergency response measures in all fifty states in response to COVID-19, and  

 
WHEREAS, the most current local data relating to COVID-19 as provided by the Iowa 

Department of Public Health (“IDPH”) and the Black Hawk County Department of Public Health 
(“BHCDPH”) show that the State of Iowa and Black Hawk County continue to experience significant 
community spread of this disease, and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa has a compelling interest to protect the lives of its 

residents, and  
 
WHEREAS, Article III, Section 38A of the Iowa Constitution grants municipalities the power 

to determine their local affairs and government not inconsistent with the laws of the general 
assembly, and  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 364 of the Iowa Code reaffirms the constitutional grant of home rule 

authority to municipalities “to exercise any power and perform any function it deems appropriate to 
protect and preserve the rights, privileges, and property of the city of its residents, and to preserve 
and improve the peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort and convenience of its residents”, and  

 
WHEREAS, a city “may exercise its general powers subject only to limitations expressly 

imposed by state or city law,” and the exercise of a city power “is not inconsistent with a state law 
unless it is irreconcilable with the state law.” Iowa Code section 364.2(2) and (3), and  

 
WHEREAS, a city may set standards and requirements which are higher or “more stringent 

than those imposed by state law, unless a state law provides otherwise.” Iowa Code Section 
364.3(3)(a); City of Des Moines v. Gruen, 457 N.W.2d 340, 343 (Iowa 1990); Bryan v. City of Des 
Moines, 261 N.W.2d 685, 687 (Iowa 1978), and 

25

Item 4.



 
WHEREAS, the Center of Disease Control (“CDC”), the IDPH, and BHCDPH, have all 

determined and encouraged that face coverings are an critical tool in the fight against COVID-19 
that could reduce the spread of the virus particularly when used universally within a community, 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Governor’s current proclamation requires that businesses and gatherings 

ensure social distancing of employees, customers, and attendees, increased hygiene practices, 
and other public health measures to reduce the risk of transmission of COVID-19 consistent with 
the guidance of the IDPH, and  

 
WHEREAS, the Governor’s current proclamation additionally requires the wearing of masks 

or face coverings in certain circumstances; and 
 
WHEREAS, the IDPH’s reopening guidance advises that members of the public consider 

the use of cloth face coverings when distancing is not possible because wearing a face covering in 
public places where social distancing measures are difficult can help slow the spread of COVID-19, 
and  

 
WHEREAS, a requirement that persons in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa wear face 

coverings is essential to reducing the risk of transmission of COVID-19, and necessary to protect 
the health, welfare, and safety of residents and visitors and to accelerate local recovery efforts, and  

 
WHEREAS, a requirement that persons wear a face covering is generally not irreconcilable 

with the Governor’s proclamations and the guidance of the Iowa Department of Public Health, and  
 
WHEREAS, this resolution is not meant to be stigmatizing or punitive and is in the best 

interest of the health, welfare, and safety, and economic recovery of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
and its residents. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as 

follows: 
 
Section 1. Every person in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa must wear a face covering when:  

a) In public, as opposed to one’s place of residence, when one cannot stay six (6) 
feet apart from others.  

b) Inside any indoor public settings, including but not limited to:  
1. Grocery stores  
2. Pharmacies  
3. Hardware stores  
4. Retail stores  
5. Other public settings that are not one’s place of residence and when among 

people who do not live in the same household  
6. City buildings  

c) Outside if maintaining a distance of six (6) feet apart is not possible  
d) Using public transportation or private car services (including taxis, ride share, or 

carpooling) 
  

Section 2. No business that is open to the public may provide service to a customer or allow 
a customer to enter its premises, unless the customer is wearing a face covering as required by 
this resolution, and businesses that are open to the public must post signs at entrance(s) 
instructing customers of their obligations to wear a face covering while inside.  

 

26

Item 4.



Section 3. Those who are exempt from wearing a face covering are:  
a) Persons younger than 5 years of age.  
b) Anyone who has trouble breathing, on oxygen therapy, or ventilator.  
c) Anyone who is unconscious, incapacitated, or otherwise unable to remove their 

face covering without assistance.  
d) Anyone who has been told by a medical, legal, or behavioral health professional 

not to wear face coverings.  
e) Anyone actively engaged in a public safety role, including but not limited to law 

enforcement, firefighters, or emergency medical personnel. 
 

Section 4. Places and times where persons are exempt from wearing a face covering:  
a) While traveling in a personal vehicle alone or with only household members.  
b) While a person is alone or with only household members.  
c) While exercising at moderate or high intensity e.g. swimming, jogging, biking. 
d) While seated at a food establishment in the process of eating or drinking.  
e) While obtaining a service that would require temporary removal of the person’s face 

covering.  
f) When federal or state law prohibits wearing a face covering or requires the removal 

of a face covering.  
 

Section 5. If a cloth face covering is chosen, appropriate use of a cloth face covering 
includes:  

a) A snug fit, but comfortable against the side of the face.  
b) Completely covers the nose and mouth.  
c) Is secured with ties or ear loops.  
d) Includes multiple layers of fabric.  
e) Allows for breathing without restriction.  
f) Can be laundered and machine dried without damage or change in shape.  

 
Section 6. This resolution shall be effective immediately upon signing by the Mayor and 

expires at 11:59 PM on the 3rd day of March, 2021. Upon its effective date this resolution replaces 
and supersedes Resolution #22,097 dated September 8, 2020, and extended by Resolution 
#22,140 dated October 19, 2020 and Resolution #22,193 dated December 7, 2020.  Prior to the 
expiration of this resolution, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa may extend the 
mandate by adopting a new resolution. 

 
Section 7.  If any provision of this resolution is in irreconcilable conflict with a specific 

directive in the Governor’s proclamation then in effect as it pertains to the wearing of a mask or 
face covering, the Governor’s proclamation shall prevail.    

 
Section 8. If any section, provision, or part of this resolution is adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the resolution as a whole or any 
section, provision, or part of this resolution not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of January, 2021. 
 
        
        ___________________________ 
ATTEST:        Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

27

Item 4.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 DATE: December 30, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Mayor’s Monthly Report for December 2020 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-187(c): Mayor Powers and Duties 

  (b) FY2021 Cedar Falls City Council Goals and Objectives  

 

1. Introduction. In response to the City Council’s expressed desire in references (a) and (b) for 

“Mayor’s Updates” separate from the Departmental Monthly Reports,  I will provide a written 

report of activities at the first meeting of each month in 2021.  I believe this format, (rather than 

an e-mail, video or phone call) will provide the greatest transparency for the Office of the Mayor 

to the City Council and the general public, and will facilitate discussion of these topics during 

the Council Meetings if desired. 

2. Notable Past Activities (December 2020).  

a. Mayor / Administrator Ordinance Change Discussion.  As part of Goal Setting, the 

council consensus was to consider potential changes to the City Code to better define the 

City Council’s expectations for the Mayor and Administrator roles. I did not see 

consensus for carrying out ordinance changes prior to the 2021 campaign season; given 

the need for further consideration, I do not intend to seek any further action or discussion 

in CY2021. If any council member desires to discuss the mayor and administrator 

ordinances during 2021, please move to refer it to committee using the referral process.  

b. Standing Committee Assignments.  A discrepancy exists between City Code §2-68 and 

Admin Policy #7, regarding standing committees. With City Code establishing a Public 

Works Committee and a Community Relations and Planning Committee, I have again 

assigned council members to these two committees, and hope we will be able to reconcile 

this discrepancy in 2021. I have appointed three different council members as chairs of 

these committees, to increase council member expertise in presiding over committee 

meetings (if the council decides to go back to traditional committees this year).  

c. FY2022 Council Goals Document. In December, the staff and I finalized the draft of the 

FY2022 Council Coals for your consideration. This document, and a redlined version, was 

e-mailed to all council members in mid-December. Given expressed concern about 

changes which weren’t specifically discussed in the November Goal Setting Sessions, I 

28

Item 5.



have attached as enclosure (1) a reference table of the 43 new items in the document, and 

the reasons for their inclusion.  Council may move to amend the document as desired. 

d. 2025 Community-Wide Strategic Plan Updating. The current Community Wide Strategic 

Plan was developed and published in 2015, and encompasses 2016-2025.  Rather than 

create an entirely new five year plan this year, as has been custom, I have recommended 

that we continue with the current 2025 plan, and then work toward a new five-year-plan 

during CY2025.  In December, the lead organizations have provided updates to their 

assigned strategies, which are posted to a shared Google Doc (http://bit.ly/ff2025cf) for 

continual updating and visibility.   

e. Representative Citizens Day. On December 1, I called each of the city’s living 

Representative Citizens to thank them for their many contributions to our community; 

some conversations lasted many minutes, and I enjoyed hearing their stories about 

volunteerism in the community.  Several contacted me afterword via mail and e-mail to 

note their appreciation for being remembered by the city. I plan to do this each year on 

Representative Citizens Day. 

f. Plaque of Appreciation from the Iowa National Guard. On December 17th, the people of 

Cedar Falls received a plaque of appreciation from the Iowa National Guard’s 133d 

Infantry Division “Ironman Battalion”. I’ll continue to seek out ways to show the 

community’s support for our area armed forces members, particularly the National Guard. 

3. Notable Anticipated Activities (January 2021 onward). 

a. “Year of the Neighborhood”.  As I described to council members in a recent e-mail, at 

our January 4th meeting I’ll proclaim 2021 as The Year of the Neighborhood in Cedar 

Falls.  Some of the discussions that we’ll have in 2021, like proposed improvements to 

city playgrounds, have an excellent tie-in with neighborhoods and neighborliness.  I’m 

eager to put a spotlight on strong and vibrant neighborhoods, as we work to recover from 

the Year of the Coronavirus, and look forward to working with council on initiatives that 

will increase neighborhood engagement and pride. 

b. Dr. Martin Luther King Day Banquet and Day of Service.  Traditionally, the 

metropolitan MLK Jr. Day Banquet is held the Sunday evening before MLK Jr. Day at the 

Electric Park Ballroom in Waterloo; this year the event will be held virtually due to the 

ongoing public health emergency. I will provide details to you via e-mail once available, 

and encourage all council members to attend this virtual event.   Also, because the 

council’s regular meeting date (January 18) falls on a day observed as a legal holiday, it 

will be moved to the next succeeding day (January 19) as required by §2-45 of the City 

Code. 

c. Preparations for Council discussion of Council Committee Structure. In Goal Setting 

and other discussions, members have expressed interest in considering a return to the 

standing committee structure employed prior to 2013; since at least that time, nearly all 

matters have been taken up in Committee of the Whole rather than in the council’s 

29

Item 5.



standing committees. For that discussion, I am studying Robert’s Rules (Newly Revised) 

§50, which describes the role and conduct of committees. While the term ‘committee’ has 

many connotations, under parliamentary procedure it has very narrowly defined 

authorities as a sub-group of the assembly (the City Council).  

d. City Document Indexing.  Thanks to Julie Sorensen and the IT Division for placing major 

planning documents online; these documents were cited and linked in the FY2022 Council 

Goals document. Additional city administrative/personnel policies, reports and documents 

of public interest will continue to be placed online for easy public access as time allows.  

e. Human Rights Commission.  In January, I anticipate appointing three new human rights 

commissioners, as well as an additional member in February.  This should coincide with 

the City Code changes to formally redirect the HRC’s duties away from direct 

investigation and toward research, education, outreach, and advocacy.  I anticipate another 

joint meeting with the City Council once all four new members are seated. 

f. COVID Recovery. City Staff and I will pay close attention to the Iowa legislative session, 

regarding potential relief to Iowans and local governments. Additionally, I’ll look for 

continued support from the City Council on creative ways to promote and re-energize the 

local economy, including the use of Emergency Reserve funds as a stop-gap funding 

source if necessary. I anticipate this to be a key City focus for the majority of 2021 and 

beyond, as we (hopefully) get to the other side of the global pandemic. 

4. This Mayor’s Monthly Report format is a work in progress, and is intended to not duplicate 

reports provided to you by the City Administrator.  Please contact me if you would like any 

additional information or clarification about the above topics; you may also pull this report 

from the consent calendar for separate discussion if desired. 

Encl: (1) FY2022 Council Goal Setting Document Draft Redline Synopsis 

Xc: City Clerk 

       City Administrator 

### 

  

 

 

  

30

Item 5.



FY2022 COUNCIL GOAL SETTING DOCUMENT DRAFT – Redline Synopsis 

1 1.B.6. Continue working with MET to explore public transportation 
options which meet the needs of Cedar Falls’ public transit-
dependent residents at an affordable cost to the city.  

Specified the effort’s purpose, for 
clarity. [Mayor] 

2 1.B.10. Create and maintain an online index of major city plans, 
policies, and documents for easy public reference. 

Discussed in Goal Setting with 
Council consensus.  

3 1.B.11. Continue to work with the Iowa Department of Natural 
Resources (IDNR) to develop a plan and construction schedule to 
update the existing Wastewater Treatment Facility in order to 
meet the Nutrient removal requirements. 

Discussed in Goal Setting with 
Council consensus.  

4 1.C.1.a. Support Waterloo’s goals as stated in its Strategic Plan, 
when in the best interest of Cedar Falls. 

Added visibility to an organizational 
partner’s strategic plan, and 
expressed general support for 
collaborative engagement. [Mayor] 

5 1.C.2.a. Actively support UNI’s goals as stated in its Strategic Plan. Added visibility to partner 
organization’s strategic plan, and 
expressed general support for 
collaborative engagement. [Mayor] 

6 1.C.2.f. Continue to actively develop UNI student internship 
opportunities with the City to foster civic awareness and promote 
careers in public service. 

Added to express Council support 
for existing city efforts and/or past 
council consensus. [Mayor] 

7 1.C.3.b. Support CFCSD’s goals as stated in its District Goals Plan. Added visibility to partner 
organization’s strategic plan, and 
expressed general support for 
collaborative engagement. [Mayor] 

8 1.C.3.d. Support improvements to parking and pedestrian traffic 
near public schools in accordance with the Safe Routes to Schools 
Study; examples of such design are Orchard Hill Elementary, 
Southdale Elementary, and Lincoln Elementary.  

Added to express Council support 
for existing city efforts and past 
council direction. [Mayor] 

9 1.C.4.a. Actively support CFU’s goals as stated in its annual 
Strategic Plan. 

Added visibility to partner 
organization’s strategic plan, and 
expressed general support for 
collaborative engagement. [Mayor] 

ENCLOSURE 1 

31

Item 5.



10 1.C.4.d. Continue to explore sustainability and resiliency initiatives 
jointly with CFU. 

Added new word to reflect current 
terminology. [Mayor] 

11 1.C.5 Diversity and Inclusion Objectives. Added section to organize related 
topics. [Mayor] 

12 1.C.5.a Continue active support for the Human Rights Commission’s 
research, education and outreach efforts. 

Added to express Council support 
for existing city efforts and/or past 
council consensus. [Mayor] 

13 1.C.5.b Continue to support the Economic Inclusion efforts of Grow 
Cedar Valley and other area stakeholders. 

Added to express Council support 
for existing city efforts and/or past 
council consensus. [Mayor] 

14 1.C.6  Resiliency and Sustainability Objectives. Added section to organize related 
topics. [Mayor] 

15 1.C.6.a. Continue to support the development of the Cedar Falls 
Resilience Plan to address environmental sustainability and 
resiliency concerns. 

Discussed in Goal Setting with 
Council consensus. 

16 1.C.6.b. Develop an Island Park Master Plan to address frequent 
damage / silting from Cedar River flooding. 

Discussed in Goal Setting with 
Council consensus. 

17 1.C.6.c. Continue to support conversion of city buildings to LED 
lighting, when cost-effective, to reduce the City’s electricity 
demand. 

Added to express Council support 
for existing city efforts and/or past 
council consensus. [Mayor] 

18 1.C.6.d. Continue to support the conversion of unused City 
property to native tallgrass prairie (when practical) to reduce storm 
water runoff, minimize lawn maintenance requirements, and 
provide habitat for wildlife and pollinators. 

Added to express Council support 
for existing city efforts and/or past 
council consensus. [Mayor] 

19 1.C.7.a. Continue support for ‘Mayor’s Updates’ to inform the City 
Council, Cedar Falls residents and stakeholders of the status of 
Council priorities, City projects, upcoming activities and key 
information.  

Discussed in Goal Setting with 
Council consensus. 

20 1.C.7.b. Maintain an online calendar of civic events of relevance to 
city elected officials, published with as much advance notice as 
possible to facilitate attendance. 

Discussed in Goal Setting with 
Council consensus. 

32

Item 5.



21 1.C.7.e. Hold city council work sessions on council meeting Mondays 
to discuss complex or potentially contentious matters, including: 

(1) Full-Time vs. Part-Time Mayor and Related City Code 
Updates 

(2) Council Committee Structure 

(3) Island Park Improvements 

(4) Downtown Policy Changes to Promote Business 

(5) Resilience Plan – Final Report 

Discussed in Goal Setting with 
Council consensus.  [FBO] 

22 2.C.2.b. Expand the Continue the City’s PSO model, which hires 
Public Safety Officers for cross-training in law enforcement, 
firefighting, and rescue operations. 

Specified the effort’s purpose, for 
clarity. Also changed “Expand” to 
“Continue” as the PSO model is no 
longer in an expansion phase. 
[Mayor] 

23 2.C.2.c. Continue to review the staffing levels of the POC and 
Reserve programs to ensure the most efficient use of Public Safety 
funds and personnel. 

Added to express Council support 
for existing city efforts and/or past 
council consensus. [Mayor] 

24 2.C.2.c. Actively solicit Public Safety Services Department employees 
to participate in the POC and PSO programs to increase their 
availability for service. 

Specified the effort’s purpose, for 
clarity. [Mayor] 

25 2.C.4.c. Staff fire stations whenever possible with a combination of 
career, PSO, POC, PT, ambulance and volunteer staff to maintain 
readiness while reducing staffing costs. 

Specified the effort’s purpose, for 
clarity. [Mayor] 

26 2.C.4.d. Continue placing firefighting ensembles in police vehicles for 
faster response times. 

Removed because this a tactical-
level action best left to the 
discretion of the Public Safety 
Director, rather than Council or 
Mayor. 

27 2.C.4.e. Continue deploying CAFS equipment in select police vehicles 
to provide faster fire suppression response times. 

Removed because this a tactical-
level action best left to the 
discretion of the Public Safety 
Director, rather than Council or 
Mayor. 

28 3.C.2.b. Support Grow Cedar Valley’s goals as stated in its Strategic 
Plan, when in the best interest of Cedar Falls. 

Added visibility to an organizational 
partner’s strategic plan, and 
expressed general support for 
collaborative engagement. [Mayor] 

33

Item 5.



29 3.C.3.b. Actively support Visitors & Tourism Bureau goals as stated 
in its Strategic Plan. 

Added visibility to an organizational 
partner’s strategic plan, and 
expressed general support for 
collaborative engagement. [Mayor] 

30 3.C.6.a.(1) Review City construction standards to identify possible 
changes which can promote the construction of affordable housing. 

Specified the effort’s purpose, for 
clarity. [Mayor] 

31 3.C.6.a.(5) Continue support for Federal Section 8 Housing 
Assistance programs to help low-income residents with the cost of 
rent in Cedar Falls, while continuing to monitor program cost-
effectiveness. 

Added to express Council support 
for existing city efforts and/or past 
council consensus. [Mayor] 

32 3.C.7.c.  Continue development of the city-owned properties along 
the relocated Highway 20 corridor and establish a new urban 
renewal area if appropriate. 

Added to express Council support 
for existing city efforts and/or past 
council consensus. [Mayor] 

33 3.C.12.b.  Organize a staff/council committee to determine options 
and best uses for the original Sartori Hospital site once a new 
hospital is constructed elsewhere. 

Specified when . [Mayor] 

34 3.C.14.b.  Explore and establish agreements with developers to 
complete the connection of the following streets: 

(1) Cyber Lane 

(2) Ashworth Drive – Prairie Winds to Hudson Road 

(3) Ashworth Drive – Connection to Arbor Drive 

(4) Ironwood Drive – Connection to Greenhill Road 

Discussed in Goal Setting with 
Council consensus.  

35 
4.C.13. Develop a Great American Rail Trail Connection Plan to 
identify possible improvements, wayfinding, and other amenities 
along the Cedar Falls portion of this cross-country route. 

Discussed in Goal Setting with 
Council consensus.  

36 
4.C.7. Update the Park Master Plan to account for city growth, 
changing needs and desires of the public, and updating of 
equipment and facilities. 

Discussed in Goal Setting with 
Council consensus.  

37 
3.C.14.c.  Continue to develop the plans for the reconstruction of 
Union Road from 27th Street to University Avenue - Use LOST and 
RUT funds to complete this project in FY2024-2025, while also 
seeking federal funding sources. 

Discussed in Goal Setting with 
Council consensus.  

38 4.C.2.  Actively support the Cedar Falls Public Library’s goals as 
stated in its annual Strategic Plan. 

Added visibility to an organizational 
partner’s strategic plan, and 
expressed general support for 

34

Item 5.



collaborative engagement. [Mayor] 

39 
 
4.C.14. Continue collaboration with CFCSD on the development of 
plans for a new indoor community pool, co-located with the new 
Cedar Falls High School. 

 

Discussed in Goal Setting with 
Council consensus. 

40 
5.b.2. Continue to support the Performance Based Pay (Merit Pay) 
Policy [reference (h)] to reward superior staff performance and 
encourage the retention of high performers.  

 

Specification of the effort’s purpose, 
for clarity. [Mayor] 

41 
5.C.1. Conduct a workforce climate assessment survey in FY22 to 
identify areas for improvement in human resources management. Discussed in Goal Setting with 

Council consensus.  

42 
5.C.7. Encourage employees to use the City’s wellness program 
[reference (aa)] and continue to offer incentives for participation.  Added to express Council support 

for existing city efforts and/or past 
council consensus. [Mayor] 

43 
FY2022 Short-Term Financial Plan:  
 
A.2. City staff members are directed to certify the maximum amount 
of legally incurred TIF debt annually by December 1st for all 
completed City and CFU construction work within the TIF Districts to 
better position the City and CFU financially. Continue to transfer TIF 
release funds to economic development fund to cash-flow 
economic development projects.   

Added to express Council support 
for existing city efforts and/or past 
council consensus. [FBO] 

 

35

Item 5.



36

Item 6.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 DATE: January 13, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Appointment of Human Rights Commissioners 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §12-27: Human Rights Commission 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), I hereby 

nominate the following citizens for appointment to the Human Rights Commission to fill the 

remaining terms of three current vacancies: 

 

 Ms. Jordyn Beranek – Term ends 7/1/2021 

 Ms. Melissa Heston – Term ends 7/1/2021 

 Mr. Evan Renfro – Term ends 7/1/2021 

 

2. These three nominees have been interviewed by the Selection Committee and by me 

separately, and we have collectively determined them to be the most qualified candidates for 

appointment; their General Applications and Candidate Questionnaires are attached for your 

consideration. 

 

3. An additional vacancy currently exists on the commission for a term expiring on July 1, 

2022. I anticipate nominating a citizen for your consideration at a council meeting in the near 

future. 

 

 

Encl:  (1) General Application and Candidate Questionnaires for Beranek, Heston and Renfro 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Finance and Business Operations 

  Staff Liaison 

 

 
 

### 
 
 
 

37

Item 7.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

The City of Cedar Falls appreciates your interest in serving the community and welcomes your application.
Please complete all sections of this application. lf you have any questions, please contact bity ff iil at (319)
273-8600. The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen involvement.

Name: 
-Jordyn 

E Beranek_ Gender: _F_ Date: _10/0glzo1g
Last

Home Address: 2003 Waterloo Rd Apt A8 Cedar Falls Phone: _715-651-7370
Work Address: 318 Main Street Cedar Falls Phone: _319-266-2644
Email Address: jordynberanek@gmail.com cell: 71s-6s1-7370

Employer: 
-Brummel 

Madsen Insurance- Position/Occupation:_Commercial Lines Representative_
lf Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: _3 years Ward: 4

NOMINEE FOR: _Human Rights Commission Board/Commission

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT: Please describe your present and past community involvement including
voluntary, social, city, church, school, business and professionalthat are applicable. (lnclude dates of
involvement, and any offices or leadership positions held.)

Gedar Heights Gommunity Presbyterian Ghurch - section leader, providing vocal leadership for musical
ensembles, including but not limited to compiling notes, performing for special services in solo or
ensembles, learning new music, 2017-present.
NewAldaya - created singalongs in the Alzheimer's/Dementia memory care unit, 2018.
Sullivan Hartogh Davis Cedar Valley Honor Flight with NXT Bank - compiled recipes from within the
community, designed and created a cookbook to raise over 95,000 to send local veterans to Washington
D.C.,2017-2018.
Southern Methodist University Voice Department Volunteer Group - compiled care packages,
crocheted and knitted winter clothing, prepared food, and fundraised for the homeless community of the
Dallas-Fort Worth metroplex, 201 4-201 6.
University of Wisconsin - Eau Claire Research Associate - wrote grants for various research projects
that were then presented at local and national levels, 2011-2014.
University of Wisconsin - Eau Glaire Ronald E. McNair Postbaccalaureate Achievement Scholar -
Student in a program designed to increase the achievement of students from underrepresented segments
of society, particularly with graduate degree awards. As a McNair Scholar, I not only worked with peers who
were low-income, first-generation college students, but also minorities. In addition to our own research
projects, we worked together with classes designated to improve our financial and economic literacy, as
well as a deeper understanding of social sciences, 2009-2014.
University of Wisconsin - Eau Claire Sigma Alpha lota - assisted in bringing performances to the Eau
Claire community, particularly highlighting the influence of American composers and those traditionally
underrepresented in song. Leadership positions include Chapter Outreach Chair, Sergeant-at-arms, Vice
President, 2009-2014.

SPECIAL QUALIFICATIONS: Please list any special qualifications for serving on a board, including skills,
training, licenses and certificates that are applicable.

Grant writing, the ability to think critically and research, project management abilities, interpersonal skills,
self-study into nationa! laws, McNair scholar alumni.

List reasons why you would like to be appointed and what contributions you believe you can make.
38

Item 7.



I believe I can effectively collaborate to ensure equal access to services and opportunities. As someone
whose 1O-year plan includes attending law schoolto advocate for human rights and work in public policy, I

would love to be able to currently contribute to the community in this field.

Are you aware of any conflict of interest, or potential conflict of interest, that may prevent you from carrying
out your responsibilities on this Board/Commission in the best interest of the City of Cedar Falls? lf so,
please describe.

-No.Please mail completed application to: City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, lA
5061 3 or email to boards@cedarfalls.com.

City of Cedar Falls

HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION
Nominee's Questionnaire

1. Please explain your knowledge of human/civil rights laws and regulations.

Primarily my current knowledge comes through self-study of federal laws. I am a competent researcher
and study relevant statutes, cases, and events as they become a topic of discussion for me.

2. What interests you in becoming a member of the Human Rights Commission?

I want to advocate for all in the Cedar Valley. In 2016 | joined a local group of citizens focusing on civil
and political activism, including such issues as incarceration, racial inequalities, supporting local
businesses, and working on environmental and public safety projects, though this group has largely
become something only on facebook in recent years. I want to be able to continue to focus on issues
that divide the community and be an effective conduit for change.

3. What availability and commitment will you have for attending commiftee and commission
meetings (i.e. late afternoons, evenings, etc.)?

Late afternoons and evenings, primarily. Also weekend time.

4. Please share your experience with community diversity groups, study circles and/or human
rights education outreach.

Recently I was involved with the Cedar Valley Activate organization before it became mostly a facebook
group. We focused on issues specific to our community. I've also been involved with volunteering for
education outreach for the past decade. As a McNair scholar, I was deeply involved with a diversity
group, as my peers were of all socioeconomic and racial backgrounds, and we shared our own
experiences during our McNair classes.

5. Please share any experience you may have with discrimination case review and/or
investigation.

At this point, the only discrimination case review I have been a part of is through reviewing former cases
in self study of the law.

MJr," r,1, a+rt
Date

39

Item 7.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 
The City of Cedar Falls appreciates your interest in serving the community and welcomes your application. 
Please complete all sections of this application. If you have any questions, please contact City Hall at (319) 
273-8600. The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen involvement. 

 

 
Name: __Melissa L Heston___________________________ Gender: ___F__ Date: _Nov. 13, 2019_____ 

              First                             MI                             Last     

Home Address: _1911 Hawthorne Dr. ____________________________   Phone:  __319-266-1659_____ 

Work Address: ________none__________________________________    Phone: ___________________ 

Email Address: _heston@uni.edu________________________________   Cell: ____________________ 

Employer:  _retired from UNI in 2017____________ Position/Occupation: Associate Professor 

If Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: ________30 years_______________ Ward: ____4__________ 

NOMINEE FOR: _Human Rights_________________________________ Board/Commission 

 
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT:  Please describe your present and past community involvement including 
voluntary, social, city, church, school, business and professional that are applicable. (Include dates of 
involvement, and any offices or leadership positions held.) 
 

 Most of my service has been at UNI between 1989 and 2017. During that time, I served on the Faculty Senate 
(including as Chair of the Senate), the College of Education Senate, as Chair of the Faculty, Chair of the Teacher 
Education Faculty, and on many other committees in both appointed and elected positions. I also served on the See 
How They Grow Conference Planning Committee (a conference for early childhood educators in NE Iowa, as part of 
the Iowa Association for the Education of Young Children). I served on the Advisory Board for the Iowa Association 
for the Education of Young Children, and on the State Program Review Committee for Teacher Education Programs 
for the Iowa Department of Education. I’m incoming President for the Iowa State Bridge League, and have served on 
their board for several years now. I am second year Volunteer Income Tax Assistant for Waterloo and Cedar Falls. I 
can track down service dates for the activities at UNI prior to my retirement if you really want them. 
 
SPECIAL QUALIFICATIONS:  Please list any special qualifications for serving on a board, including skills, 
training, licenses and certificates that are applicable.  
 

I have excellent oral and written communication skills, and know how to work effectively in collaborative 

groups. I am task-oriented, and can readily meet deadlines for externally imposed tasks. I have participated in 

community-building training and provided it for others as part of my work with UNI student teachers for the 

Waterloo School system. I have also taking training in life coaching, organized professional development activities for 

small groups of faculty, and acted in strong supporting roles for other leaders. 

List reasons why you would like to be appointed and what contributions you believe you can make. 

I have a deep and life-long interest in human rights, and incorporated issues of class, race and gender into my 
courses for preservice teachers. While Cedar Falls is a wonderful place to live, I believe we could do much better in 
regard to human rights issues. At UNI, I learned that many times students and faculty of color felt unwelcome in 
Cedar Falls. I’ve witnessed differential treatment of black and white youth by store managers, and am disturbed by 
recent references to “gangs” on College Hill overrunning the town. That said, I don’t have a defined agenda, so my 
first task would be to listen and develop a strong knowledge base regarding the perspectives of other Board 
members. I’m pragmatic rather than ideological, and understand the need to compromise when necessary. Service to 
the community is my goal.  

40

Item 7.



 
 
 
Are you aware of any conflict of interest, or potential conflict of interest, that may prevent you from carrying 
out your responsibilities on this Board/Commission in the best interest of the City of Cedar Falls? If so, 
please describe. 
 
 None 
  
 
Please mail completed application to:  City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  
50613 or email to boards@cedarfalls.com.  
 

City of Cedar Falls 

 
HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION 

Nominee’s Questionnaire 
 
 

1. Please explain your knowledge of human/civil rights laws and regulations. 
 

I am generally familiar with legal issues related to Affirmative Action in hiring since I served 
on a number of search committees at UNI. I noticed that the abstract for my house has a 
restrictive covenant related to selling or renting to “non-caucasians”, which is illegal. I am aware 
of the steps that are often taken to disenfranchise people of color and the poor, such as Iowa’s 
voter ID law. I don’t bring any particular legal expertise on specific regulations but I understand 
how “laws” have been and can be created to perpetuate institutional racism in particular. 
 
 
2. What interests you in becoming a member of the Human Rights Commission? 
 

As I said above, my interest in human rights has been life-long. I am concerned that we are 
not doing enough to address issues of inequity in Cedar Falls. It seems that people often view 
racism as a “Waterloo” problem; my work with students of color leads me to believe that racism 
is very much a Cedar Falls issue. That said, I believe virtually every community needs to work 
on human rights issues from a broad perspective. Racism, anti-Semitism and anti-Islamic 
sentiments, classism, gender issues, GLBTQ, disability issues, these all need consideration 
and to be better addressed. For example, I had a “welcome” yard sign in Spanish, English and 
Arabic, and a rainbow flag stolen from my yard and front porch. After a letter to the editor, the 
sign turned back up, but the evidence of hostility to inclusion and an acceptance and valuing of 
differences was clear.  

 
 
3. What availability and commitment will you have for attending committee and commission 

meetings (i.e. late afternoons, evenings, etc.)? 
 

I have a very flexible schedule, especially with some advance notice. Late afternoons and 
evenings are not a problem at all. 

 
 
 
 

41

Item 7.

mailto:boards@cedarfalls.com


4. Please share your experience with community diversity groups, study circles and/or human 
rights education outreach. 

 
I’ve participated in a number of activities. The most impactful for me personally was a three- 

day workshop called “Undoing Racism.” I believe this workshop was sponsored jointly by UNI 
and the City of Cedar Falls back under Mayor Crews. As I noted above, I participated in and led 
community building activities for student teachers in the Waterloo schools, and for UNI faculty. 
The goal of this training was to build communication skills, help students understand 
microaggressions, and so on. I’ve gone through the Ruby Payne training on poverty, although it 
is perhaps better for raising awareness than actually addressing issues of poverty 
systematically. I’ve done various “awareness” activities related to diversity at the department, 
college and university levels at UNI. These varied greatly in depth and value. I have watched 
with some dismay as UNI continues to struggle to address the needs of students of color 
effectively. I’ve attended a number of presentations and workshops at UNI and professional 
conferences, including lectures by Cornel West and Jane Elliot. I often read and repost race-
related pieces from Ta-Nehisi Coats, Michelle Alexander, Tim Wise, and Robin DiAngelo, 
among others.  

 
 
5. Please share any experience you may have with discrimination case review and/or 

investigation. 
 

I have been involved in two such cases. In the first case, I reported a male colleague for 
being verbally abusive to our department secretaries; they were afraid to say anything. This led 
to an interview with folks in the UNI Office of Compliance and Equity Management. While I don’t 
know the details of investigation, I do know that significant changes occurred for the better. I 
was also investigated, along with two other colleagues for gender discrimination. We were on a 
committee charged with recommending program closures. One program we recommended be 
closed was directed by a woman who believed that we had acted in a biased manner toward 
the program because of her. I was interviewed, again by Compliance and Equity Management, 
and that was the end of the investigation. I never heard anything about it after the interview.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

___Melissa L. Heston________________   ____Nov. 13, 2019_____________ 
  Signature       Date      

 

42

Item 7.



 HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE 
 
 

                 Name: Melissa Heston                                                                       Date:   Nov. 13, 2020           
 

 

                  

Can you regularly attend commission meetings on the 2nd Monday of the month at 7pm at City Hall?     X❑X Yes    ❑ No 

1. Why are human rights and civil rights laws and regulations necessary? 

Sadly, despite the long years since the Civil War and the displacement of our indigenous peoples, the US, like many 

other countries, is still a place where human and civil rights are routinely violated. People of color, members of the 

LGBTQ community, and the disabled often face additional challenges in exercising their basic human and civil rights. 

While some of these challenges arise from the actions and beliefs of private citizens, they often arise from what is 

termed “institutional racism,” ableism, and LGTBQ and gender discrimination. For example, work requirements for 

participation in certain programs like SNAP benefits discriminates against people of color because of the differential 

patterns in employment opportunities.  

Another example of institutional racism, a hold-over from Jim Crow days, are housing tracts which forbid selling 

or renting to people of color. While this is “illegal,” the legacy lives on, as evident in the abstracts for homeowners. In 

my Cedar Heights neighborhood, this discriminatory language was part of housing tract. The language embodies the 

bias of the original homeowners, and local realtors have perpetuated this pattern. While I’ve lived in this area since 

1993, the neighborhood has gotten its first black family just this past summer.  

The historical codifying of institutional racism and other forms of discrimination into policies and programs mean 

that every community must both seriously exam its policies and ordinances, and their enforcement for continuing 

discriminatory impact. Existing policies and ordinances may need revision to ensure that the legacy of racist and 

other discriminatory practices ends. This is the only way to achieve social and economic justice for all. 
 

2. What unique contributions or perspective can you bring to the Human Rights Commission?  

 

I taught in the University of Northern Iowa Teacher Education program for over 27 years, and I did a stint as an 

administrator of the program as well. In this capacity, it was incumbent upon me to do my best to prepare future 

teachers to work with diverse school populations, whether the diversity arose from class, ethnicity or race, sexual 

orientation, or disabilities. This even included helping students understand religious diversity in some cases. In class 

discussions, I’ve worked to help my mostly White students better understand institutional racism, and other forms of 

discrimination. This means being able to ask questions in ways that encourage consideration of the experiences of 

diverse groups of people without triggering strong defensive reactions. I have been centrally concerned with helping 

future teachers understand social and economic justice and how the absence of these impact children and youth. 

 I was on the provost search committee that led to the hiring of Dr. Gloria Gibson and I worked as an 

administrator for Dr. Dwight Watson. I admire both of them tremendously. Working closely with these Black 

professionals, I saw the challenges they faced from other administrators and many of the faculty that could only be 

attributed to underlying racism. It was a bit disheartening, to be truthful, and made it clear how much work remained 

to be done. I have also watched as faculty of color faced harsher evaluations from students and during the tenure 

process.  

I am concerned that we are not doing enough to address issues of inequity in Cedar Falls. It seems that people 
often view racism as a “Waterloo” problem; my work with students of color leads me to believe that racism is very 
much a Cedar Falls issue. That said, I believe virtually every community needs to work on human rights issues from 
a broad perspective. Racism, anti-Semitism and anti-Islamic sentiments, classism, gender issues, LGBTQ, disability 
issues -- these all need consideration and to be better addressed. 
 More personally, I am also a lesbian. I have encountered discrimination based on my gender, my sexual 

orientation (often presumed by others), and by my weight as a fat person. I have been on the receiving end of 

“microaggressions,” and likely lost out on some opportunities. I know that part of the reason I got interviewed at UNI 

was because they were looking for a woman to address Affirmative Action concerns. This is an experience that also 

reflects my privilege as a White woman.  

 
 

43

Item 7.



3. What experience do you have with diverse community groups and diversity/inclusion education? 

My career at UNI occupied most of my time and energy while I was there. My experiences with diversity and inclusion 

occurred primarily within that context. I participated in various awareness trainings and more focused professional 

development experience. These experiences included a powerful 3-day workshop that included community members 

and was focused exclusively on “Undoing Racism,” something I was hoping would be expanded. As a member of the 

College of Education Leadership Team, I participated in reading and discussions centered on teaching strategies for 

addressing racism and other forms of discrimination. After retiring, I became a volunteer income tax assistant, and 

worked at the two Waterloo sites. This work gave me much more opportunity to work with people of color than I 

ever experienced in the Cedar Falls area. I also worked with non-English speakers and the disabled.  

 I have been looking for more opportunities to support racial and social justice in the Cedar Valley since I retired. I 

have not seen much in the way of “diverse community groups” beyond the context of churches. As an agnostic, I I 

cannot, in good conscience, use church attendance in this manner.  The most diverse groups I’ve encountered were 

meetings of the Black Hawk County Democrats. I have participated in a number of marches and protests related to 

racism over the years.  

I have watched with some dismay as UNI continues to struggle to address the needs of students of color 
effectively. I’ve attended a number of presentations and workshops at UNI and professional conferences, including 
lectures by Cornel West and Jane Elliot. I often read and repost race-related pieces from Ta-Nehisi Coates, Michelle 
Alexander, Tim Wise, and Robin DiAngelo, among others. My most recent reading is How to Be Antiracist by Ibram 
X. Kendi. 
 

4. What experience do you have with discrimination case review and/or investigation?  

I have been involved in two such cases. In the first case, I reported a male colleague for being verbally abusive to 
our department secretaries; they were afraid to say anything. This led to an interview with folks in the UNI Office 
of Compliance and Equity Management. While I don’t know the details of investigation, I do know that significant 
changes occurred for the better. I was also investigated, along with two other colleagues for gender 
discrimination. We were on a committee charged with recommending program closures. One program we 
recommended be closed was directed by a woman who believed that we had acted in a biased manner toward 
the program because of her gender. I was interviewed, again by Compliance and Equity Management, and that 
was the end of the investigation. I never heard anything about it after the interview.  
 I have not been part of a case review process, though I have been involved in other kinds of case reviews 
related to tenure and promotion and both internal and external program evaluations. These reviews all required 
the ability to gather and analyze data critically, to listen well, and to collaborate with others. I understand 
confidentiality and how essential it is in a review process, regardless of the outcome. 
 

5. What resources and activities would you employ to be an informed Human Rights Commissioner?  

 
This is a difficult question to answer with much detail because I believe that my work would be informed by other 
members of the Commission, as well as any changes in the charge given to the Commission. I have spent most of 
my adult life teaching other adults in both graduate and undergraduate contexts, and that work has included giving 
attention to issues of social and economic justice, particularly within the contexts of education and child and 
adolescent development. My academic background gives me access to a wide variety of resources, both 
philosophical and data-based that may be less accessible to folks outside of a university context. I am also skilled at 
translating and illustrating relevant data in ways that make data more concrete. I consider data essential for 
informing, though not “driving”, good decision making 
 I see myself as putting my skills as an educator and group facilitator to good use in activities that have the 
potential to move the Cedar Falls community forward in regard to the human and civil rights of all community 
members. This could be as simple as leading reading groups or giving presentations to established community 
groups. I believe a good place to start is to examine the historical work done in Cedar Falls that may have facilitated 
either greater inclusion or greater exclusion. Understanding how we got where we are can help us plan better in 
regard to where we want to go, the creation of a vibrant and diverse community that consistently tries to ensure 
the human and civil rights of all community members and all visitors.  
 I also understand that there is no “one size fits all” in terms of programs, and that working on behalf of human 
and civil rights requires sustained effort. Change occurs over time, often slowly, and work must sometimes be 
repeated as community members become ready to learn more. A common failure of “diversity training” is that it 
can focus on making people “aware,” with little follow up to support continuous growth among community 
members over the long term.  

44

Item 7.



 Identifying and working to undo institutional forms of discrimination must go hand in hand with any work being 
done with community members. Institutional forms of discrimination hold people back in ways that can be invisible 
without close examination. A community that wants to be more inclusive won’t get far if there are policies and 
procedures that actually discourage inclusion. 
  
 

6. Why are you interested in serving on the Human Rights Commission?  

I have a deep and life-long interest in human rights, and incorporated issues of class, race and gender into my 

courses for preservice teachers. While Cedar Falls is a wonderful place to live, I believe we could do much better 

in regard to human rights issues. At UNI, I learned that many times students and faculty of color felt unwelcome 

in Cedar Falls. I’ve witnessed differential treatment of black and white youth by store managers, and was 

disturbed by recent references to “gangs” on College Hill overrunning the town. That said, I don’t have a defined 

agenda, so my first task would be to listen and develop a strong knowledge base regarding the perspectives of 

other Board members. I’m pragmatic rather than ideological, and understand the need to compromise when 

necessary. This is my second application, and I find the idea of helping our community move toward greater 

inclusion is something I really want to do. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Please send this completed Candidate Questionnaire by the published deadline to:  

City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, fax to (319) 268-5126, 

or e-mail to boards@cedarfalls.com. You will be notified shortly if selected as a Finalist for the appointment 

45

Item 7.

mailto:boards@cedarfalls.com


46

Item 7.



47

Item 7.



48

Item 7.



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

January 4, 2021 
 

The Committee of the Whole met at City Hall via teleconference at 5:00 p.m. on January 
4, 2021, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Robert M. Green, 
Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and 
Dave Sires. Staff members teleconferenced in from all City Departments. Andrew Wind 
with the Waterloo Courier, as well as members of the community teleconferenced in.   

Mayor Green called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, 
Downtown Vision Plan & Code Adoption Process.  Karen Howard, Planning & 
Community Services Manager, gave an update on the review and adoption process for 
the new Downtown zoning code that is being developed to implement the Downtown 
Vision Plan, which was adopted in November of 2019.  Ms. Howard provided an 
overview of the Downtown Vision Plan, the City Council project priorities, the community 
input process, and plan objectives.   She explained that this plan is the basis for the new 
zoning. The new downtown zoning regulations are being prepared by the same 
consultant team as completed the vision plan and is currently being reviewed internally.   
Ms. Howard stated in February the draft zoning code will be rolled out to the community 
and Planning and Zoning Commission. There will be more than a month for public 
review and discussion at various work sessions with the Commission and stakeholders, 
including Community Main Street, before formal hearings by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  She explained Council will be presented the Planning and Zoning 
Committee’s recommendation to Committee of the Whole Committee in May.   She 
stated two work sessions are planned for review of the zoning ordinance changes prior 
to formal hearing at Council with hopes to have the third and final ordinance reading by 
the second meeting in July. 

Mayor Green opened it for council discussion.  Ms. Howard, responding to questions 
from Council, stated the reason for the project is that the original 1970’s ordinance has 
had a patchwork of amendments over the years, and there are many conflicts within the 
ordinance, so is in need of a substantial overhaul.  She responded to questions 
regarding the variety of housing types that will be allowed by the new zoning. She 
explained parking was reviewed and recommendations from the parking study and the 
vision plan have been taken into consideration in developing the proposed zoning.   

Mayor Green introduced item two, Special Events / Sturgis Falls Agreement.  Chase 
Schrage Director of Public Works reviewed the Special Event Permit application 
process.  He explained special event permits are only need when it involves the use of 
public property including but not limited to; street, right-of-way, parks, etc. Mr. Schrage 
stated that they are internally reviewed by multiple staff members and ultimately 
approved by the Financed and Business Operations Director. He stated this process is 
on a first come first serve basis.  Mr. Schrage went on to review the Sturgis Falls 
Celebration agreement.  He explained there has been an agreement in place between 
the City and the organization with various term lengths, with the most recent term is a 1-
year term. He reviewed the existing contract terms, which includes language that the 
city agrees not to issue any beer or wine permits or liquor control licenses to any other 

49

Item 8.



group or individuals for the parks or public properties mentioned in the agreement.  The 
Sturgis Falls Event has been in place for nearly 45 years.  Mr. Schrage reviewed a map 
of the area and the locations of the event.  He stated the Sturgis Falls Board has 
brought forward some new proposed language to be included in the agreement: The 
City agrees not to issue any special event permits on City owned property located in the 
area shown on the following map.  He said the area includes the downtown overlay area 
from Franklin to the Cedar River and 1st Street to 7th Street.  He said special event 
permits only are necessary when it involves public property and the Sturgis Falls event 
is a 3-day event, most generally except for setup and tear down.    

Mayor Green opened it up for public comment.  Deanne Nelson with Eagleview 
Partners stated they hope to have an event on the newly constructed plaza at 2nd and 
State Streets.  Kyle Henderson 1008 Eric Road stated he is a Board member of the 
Cedar Basin Jazz Committee and Live to 9.  He stated he is in disagreement with the 
proposed language since it will limit any other events during the 3-day event.  Pete 
Downs 3221 Abraham Drive stated he doesn’t want to see competition during the 3-day 
event, the location of the plaza event could be conflicting with the other Sturgis Falls 
events at Gateway and Overman Parks, with overlapping music.     

Mayor Green opened it for council discussion.  Council conversation was for both for 
and against adding the language to the agreement.  Mr. Schrage answered questions 
from the Council, stating that Sturgis does not use the entire mapped out area.  Susan 
deBuhr motioned to direct staff to draft a Sturgis Falls Celebration contract including the 
proposed amended language to be included: The City agrees not to issue any special 
event permits on City owned property located within the area previously described. 
Daryl Kruse seconded the motion.  Council further discussed, stating could there be a 
limit placed on the time of the special event to not conflict with other Sturgis events, 
primarily the Marine Band on Saturday evening and could Sturgis coordinate an event 
on the plaza.  Motion failed 3 to 4 (Aye; deBuhr, Kruse, Sires. Nay; Darrah, Dunn, 
Harding, Miller).  Mr. Schrage stated an agreement would be brought forward at a 
February Council Meeting.  

Mayor Green moved on to the third item on the agenda Pavement & Alley Management 
Program.  David Wicke City Engineer stated City staff examines and evaluates the 
pavement throughout the city each year and places the repair in a 5-year plan. He 
explained that alleys have been included in the 5-year plan.  He explained this is 
updated each year, making adjustments as needed.  Mr. Wicke stated the Local Option 
Sales Tax is used for restoration and reconstruction of City roadways, and alleys are 
funded by the Street Construction fund and Storm Water fund.  He reviewed various 
streets planned for reconstruction for 2022. Mr. Wicke answered questions from council, 
stating staff will share the plans for each neighborhood and they will have discussions 
with Cedar Falls Utilities for any utilities repairs.  Mr. Wicke introduced Matt Feuerhelm 
Principal Engineer.  Mr. Feuerhelm reviewed the streets plan under the 2022 
Restoration plan and also reviewed 2023 - 2026.  He stated years 2023-2026 may 
change as needed. Mr. Wicke introduced Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II who will review 
the Alley Management plan. Mr. Claypool explained we are making the Alley 
Management Program a formal process like the Pavement Management Program, 
creating a 5-year plan.  He reviewed the various alleys slated for reconstruction in 2022 

50

Item 8.



as well as 2023-2026.  Mr. Wicke stated staff is recommending approval of the 2022 
Pavement and Alley Management Plan to have staff proceed with final design.  Mark 
Miller motioned for approval of the staff recommendation. Susan deBuhr seconded the 
motion. The motion carried unanimously.  

There being no further discussion, Mayor Green adjourned the meeting at 7:05 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

51

Item 8.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 

Craig Berte, Police Chief 

Date:  January 14, 2021 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Panchero's Mexican Grill, 6421 University Avenue, Class B beer - renewal. 

b) Chad's Pizza and Restaurant, 909 West 23rd Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

c) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 

d) Tobacco Outlet Plus, 4116 University Avenue, Class E liquor - new. 

 

52

Item 9.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matt Feuerhelm, PE, Principal Engineer  
 
 DATE: January 5, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: Center Street Recreational Trail Project 
  Project No. RC-000-3107 
  Iowa DOT Project No. TAP-U-1185(651)—81-07 
  Statement of Completion and Final Acceptance of Work 
 
Attached is the Statement of Completion and Final Acceptance of Work Agreement for 
the Center Street Recreational Trail Project. This project is completed and ready for 
final acceptance of work. The attached Certificate of Statement of Completion and Final 
Acceptance of Work Agreement form must be approved by the City Council and signed 
by the Mayor. I am recommending proceeding with this approval.  
 
The Center Street Recreational Trail Project included placement of a new PCC trail 
along the west side of North Cottage Row Road and along the west side of Center 
Street from North Cottage Row Road to W Lone Tree Road. 
 
The Center Street Recreational Trail Project has been completed in reasonable 
compliance with the project plans and specifications. I recommend that the city Council 
approve and accept this project. 
  
     
__________________________1/12/2021_______ 
Matt Feuerhelm, PE            Date 
 
 
xc:   David Wicke, P.E.,  
        Chase Schrage, P.E., Public Works Director 
 
 

53

Item 10.

FeuerhelmM
Stamp



 
 

STATEMENT OF COMPLETION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF WORK 
 

Contractor   Letting Date  

Work Type   Contract ID  

Accounting ID(s)            

            

Project Number(s)        

        

        
Additional Comments 

 

Type of  Contract 

 Specified Start Date    

 Approximate Start Date   Site No.(s) 00     

 Late Start Date   Working Days Specified:      

 Completion Date Contract   Working Days Charged:      

Actual Start Date   Closure Days Specified:      

Field Completion Date   Closure Days Charged:      
 
  Recommended for Acceptance  Iowa DOT Contract Acceptance   
         
  Signature   Signature    

   Project Engineer   District Construction Engineer   

  Date   Date    
         

 

Approved and Work Accepted on Behalf of the Board of Supervisors of 

 County this  Day of  ,  
      Year 

Signature   
 County Engineer  

 

For Central Office Use Only 

 

  Recorded Finance  Recorded Construction & Materials 

 
 

NOTE:  On county administered projects, the County Engineer is required to sign “Recommended for Acceptance” and 
“Approved and Work Accepted on Behalf of the Board of Supervisors”. 
 

Project Engineer – Send original to District  District – Forward original to Office of Construction & Materials and copy to Project Engineer. 

 

Form 830435 
05-18 

K Cunningham Construction Co., Inc. May 15, 2018

PCC Sidewalk/Trail 07-1185-651

7.31.2018

5.03.2019

Jon Fitch Digitally signed by Jon Fitch 
Date: 2020.05.11 08:06:45 -05'00'

5.11.2020

35249

TAP-U-1185(651)--81-07

8.6.2018 50

50

✔

54

Item 10.

FitchJ
Text Box
City of Cedar Falls

FitchJ
Text Box
Mayor



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Matt Feuerhelm, PE, Principal Engineer 

 DATE: January 5, 2021  

 SUBJECT: Union Road Recreation Trail  
  Project No. RT-000-3217 
  Iowa DOT Project No. TAP-U-1185(654)—8I-07 
  Bid opening 
 
On December 15th, 2020 at 10:00 a.m., bids were received and opened by the Iowa 
Department of Transportation for the Union Road Recreation Trail. A total of seven (7) 
bids were received, with Lodge Construction Inc. submitting low bid: 
 

 Bid Total 

Lodge Construction, Inc. $510,298.75  

K. Cunningham Construction Co., Inc.  $534,265.72  

Vieth Construction Corporation  $562,550.55  

Peterson Contractors Inc.  $585,092.00  

JB Holland Construction, Inc.  $629,423.53  

Midwest Concrete, Inc. $642,311.24 

TK Concrete, Inc.  $846,604.00 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $685,000.00.  The bid submitted by Lodge 
Construction, Inc. of $510,298.75 is 25.5% below the Engineer's Estimate.  
 
We recommend acceptance of the low bid from Lodge Construction, Inc. in the amount 
of $510,298.75.  Upon acceptance of the low bid, we recommend authorizing the City 
Engineer to execute the contract, along with required bond and insurance, using the 
Iowa DOT’s electronic file management system.  Use of the Iowa DOT’s electronic file 
management system is required for this contract. 
 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

55

Item 11.



Percent Of Low
BidTotal BidRank Vendor ID Vendor Name

1 LO083 LODGE CONSTRUCTION INC. $510,298.75 100.00%

BID WINNER: MET THE DESIGNATED DBE GOAL

2 CU100 CUNNINGHAM, K. CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. $534,265.72 104.70%

3 VI035 VIETH CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION $562,550.55 110.24%

4 PE320 PETERSON CONTRACTORS INC. $585,092.00 114.66%

5 HO340 JB HOLLAND CONSTRUCTION, INC. $629,423.53 123.34%

6 MI296 MIDWEST CONCRETE, INC. $642,311.24 125.87%

7 T.033 TK CONCRETE, INC. $846,604.00 165.90%

Page 2 of 3

Contract ID:

Letting Date:

Start Date: 06/28/21 45 Working Days

07-1185-654

December 15, 2020 10:00 A.M.

BLACK HAWKCall Order:  102 Primary County:

Contract Period:

DBE Goal: 3.0%

Letting Status: AWARDED Awarded Vendor: LODGE CONSTRUCTION INC.

Project(s) and Vendor Ranking

12/17/2020 3:25:07 PM

Contracts and Specifications Bureau AASHTOWare Project™ Version 4.3 Revision 023

C
O

N
FID

EN
TIA

L 
- D

ESTR
O

Y IF
 P

R
O

JE
C

T IS
 N

O
T A

W
AR

D
ED

56

Item 11.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 
 

  

  

 

 
 
   

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

 DATE: January 13, 2021 

 SUBJECT: State Award of CARES Act Community Development Block Grant Funds 
(CDBG-CV2) Contract 

 
In April 2020, the CARES Act was passed in response to COVID-19.  The State notified 
the City in mid-May that a portion of the State’s CDBG funds were anticipated to be 
proportionally allocated to Entitlement Communities.  Cedar Falls is a CDBG 
Entitlement Community and will receive $369,432 of State CDBG-CV2 funds.  After 
several discussions with the State on eligible projects, the City recently received a 
contract for a portion of the funds.     
 
As mentioned in the Public Hearing for State award of CARES Act Community 
Development Block Grant funds (CDBG-CV2) memo, the City will only request a portion 
of the funds that are allocated to the City which meet the National Objective for the 
funds and projects that meet the state requirements.  Staff will bring forward to the City 
Council the contracts for the service agencies and schools at a later agenda item.    
 
Finally, to implement the added activities, there has been and will continue to be added 
City staff time.  INRCOG will be instrumental in fulfilling administrative operations for 
CDBG.  Therefore, a contract amendment with INRCOG is proposed as a separate 
agenda item.   
 
The following table summarizes how the funds would be allocated. 
 

 
Amount  Project Delivery   Total  

Service Agencies  $     115,000.00   $     10,842.00  $    125,842.00  

City  $       75,430.00  $    14,592.00   $      90,022.00  

Schools  $     111,152.00  $    14,592.00   $    125,744.00 

   
 $    341,608.00  

 
Attached is the State’s standard contract.  The contract contains many provisions that 
the city will need to follow.  The City entered into a similar contract with the State in 

57

Item 12.



2009 with the Bluff Street Lift Station project and were able to meet the provisions of the 
contract successfully, with INRCOG’s assistance. Staff reviewed the contract with the 
City Attorney.  Staff recommends approving the contract.  
 
Please contact staff with any questions.  Thank you.  
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
       Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager      

58

Item 12.



IOWA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
ENTITLEMENT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

COVID-19 PROGRAM CONTRACT 
       
  RECIPIENT:    City of Cedar Falls 

CONTRACT NUMBER:   20-CVE-009 
EFFECTIVE DATE:   January 11, 2020 
AWARD AMOUNT:  $341,608 
END DATE:  June 30, 2023  

 
THIS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM COVID-19 ("CDBG-CV") CONTRACT is made 
by and between the IOWA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, 1963 Bell Ave, Suite 200, Des 
Moines, Iowa 50315 ("Authority") and "Recipient", effective as of the date stated above.  
  
WHEREAS, the Authority is designated to receive, administer, and disburse CDBG-CV funds; and  
  
WHEREAS, the Authority desires to disburse grant funds to the Recipient for eligible purposes primarily 
benefiting low and moderate income persons, eliminating slums and blight, or meeting community 
development needs having particular urgency; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Recipient submitted an Application for funding to the Authority and the Authority has 
approved the Application; and  
 
WHEREAS, in approving the Application the Authority has relied upon the Recipient's representations of 
proposed Project activities, management and financial condition of the Recipient, investment of other 
Project funds, and other material information contained therein; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Recipient has certified to the Authority that the primary purpose for obtaining CDBG-CV 
funds is to primarily benefit low- and moderate- income persons, eliminate slums and blight, or meet 
community development needs having a particular urgency;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Recipient accepts this grant upon the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Contract.  In consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Contract and other good and 
valuable consideration, it is agreed as follows:  

              ARTICLE 1 
DEFINITIONS 

As used in this Contract, the following terms shall apply: 
 
1.1 ACT.  Act means Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 as amended (42 
U.S.C. 5301 et seq.) and the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, also known as the CARES 
Act. 
 
1.2 ACTIVITY.  "Activity" means the description of eligible work, services, and other 
accomplishments, as authorized by Section 105 of the "Act" and as further defined in 24 CFR 570.482, as 
revised April 1, 1997. Activities were submitted by the Recipient to the Authority in its request for CDBG-
CV funds.  Activities can be found in the line items in the Recipient's "Budget Activity" in IowaGrants.gov 
account and have specific performance targets. 
 

59

Item 12.



1.3 ADMINISTRATIVE CODE.  "Administrative Code" means 261 Iowa Administrative Code, Chapter 
23. Iowa Administrative Code is the composite of all rules adopted and administered by the executive 
branch to implement state law and policy.  
 
1.4 ALLOWABLE COSTS.  "Allowable Costs" are those costs which are identified in the "Budget 
Activity", Application, and consistent with Federal regulations and guidelines applicable to the CDBG-CV 
program. 
 
1.5 APPLICATION.  "Application" is the Application the Recipient submitted to the Authority for 
CDBG-CV funds.  
 
1.6 BUDGET.  "Budget" means the "Budget Activity" as found in the Recipient’s IowaGrants.gov 
account.  
 
1.7 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM COVID-19 (CDBG-CV).  "Community Development Block Grant Program" 
means the grant program authorized by Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, 
as amended and the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, also known as the CARES Act 
 
1.8 CONTRACT.  "Contract" means this Contract and all of the notes, leases, assignments, 
mortgages, and similar documents referred to in the Contract and all other instruments or documents 
executed by the Recipient or otherwise required in connection with the Contract, including the CDBG-CV 
grant Application together with any related submittal documents.  
 
1.9 END DATE.  "End Date" means the date the Contract ceases to be in force and effect.  The 
Contract expires upon the occurrence of one of the following: a) the Recipient fulfills the conditions and 
Project activities agreed to herein as of the end date stated above; or b) the Contract is terminated by 
the Authority due to any default under Article 9.1; or c) the Contract is terminated in accordance with 
provisions set forth in Sections 8 and 9 of the General Provisions, Attachment A of this Contract.  
 
1.10 GRANT.  "Grant" means the award of CDBG-CV funds to the Recipient for Project activities.  
 
1.11 HUD.  "HUD" means the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  
 
1.12 IOWAGRANTS.GOV. "Iowa Grants.gov" means Iowa’s Funding Opportunity Search and Grant 
Management System.  This system allows grant applicants and recipients to electronically apply for and 
manage grants received by the state of Iowa.  Persons accessing the system for this purpose are 
required to register online at www.IowaGrants.gov.  
 
1.13 LOW- AND MODERATE-INCOME FAMILIES.  "Low- and Moderate-Income Families" means those 
families earning no more than 80 percent of the higher of the median family income of the county or the 
statewide nonmetropolitan area as determined by the latest U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, HOME income guidelines.  Unrelated individuals living together shall be considered as 
one-person families for this purpose.  
 
1.14 LOW- AND MODERATE-INCOME PERSONS.  "Low- and Moderate- Income Person" means a 
member of a low- and moderate-income family as defined above.  
 

60

Item 12.



1.15 PROJECT.  "Project" means the totality of "Activity", to be performed by the Recipient as 
described in the application the Recipient submitted in IowaGrants.gov and approved by the Authority.  
 
1.16 RECIPIENT.  "Recipient" means the entity identified above that has been selected to receive 
Program funds to undertake the funded Project and agrees to comply with all applicable CDBG 
requirements, including those found in Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 
(42 USC 5302 et seq.), the CDBG program regulations at 24 CFR part 570, and any other HUD funded 
program as applicable including the CARES Act.  
For purposes of this agreement the "Recipient" shall also be considered to meet the definition and 
qualifications as a " Subrecipient" as defined in 2 CFR 200.93 and 2 CFR 200.330 and agrees to receive 
this " Subaward" as defined in 2 CFR 200.92.  
        

ARTICLE 2 
FUNDING 

  
        
2.1 FUNDING SOURCE.  The source of funding for the Grant is the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 
Economic Security Act, also known as the CARES Act.   
 
2.2 RECEIPT OF FUNDS.  All payments under this Contract are subject to receipt by the Authority of 
sufficient Federal funds for the CDBG-CV program.  Any termination, reduction or delay of CDBG funds 
to the Authority shall, at the option of the Authority, result in the termination, reduction or delay of 
CDBG funds to the Recipient.  
 
2.3 PRIOR COSTS.  If any Recipient has received written approval from the Authority to incur certain 
costs prior to the Effective Date of this Contract, then said written approval and the terms and 
conditions therein are incorporated herein and made a part of this Contract by this reference as if fully 
set forth.  Any such costs incurred prior to the Effective Date of this Contract are subject to the Special 
Conditions and General Conditions of this Contract.  
 
2.4 DISBURSEMENT OF LESS THAN THE TOTAL AWARD AMOUNT.  If the total award amount has 
not been requested by the Recipient within sixty (60) days after the End Date, then the Authority shall 
be under no obligation for further disbursement.  The Authority may allow access to funds after this 
time for allowable costs associated with the conduct of the audits required in Article 2.0 of the General 
Provisions, Attachment A to this Contract. 
 
2.5 EIGHTY PERCENT EXPENDITURE REQUIREMENT.  By May 2023, eighty percent of the awarded 
CDBG-CV must be claimed in the IowaGrants system for eligible expenses. 
 
2.6 TWENTY PERCENT OF FUNDS TO BE SPENT ON LOW-TO MODERATE INCOME NATIONAL 
OBJECTIVE.  By the end of the contract, the recipient must demonstrate in a manner provided for by the 
Authority that at least twenty percent of the funds was spent to meet the low-to moderate income 
national objective.  
   
 
 
     
 

61

Item 12.



ARTICLE 3 
TERMS OF GRANT 

  
        
3.1 TIME OF PERFORMANCE.  The services of the Recipient are to commence as of the Effective 
Date and shall be undertaken in such a manner as to assure their expeditious completion.  All of the 
services required hereunder shall be completed on or before the End Date.  
 
3.2 MAXIMUM PAYMENTS.  It is expressly understood and agreed that the maximum amounts to 
be paid to the Recipient by the Authority for any item of work or service shall conform to the "Budget 
Activity" as found in the Recipient’s IowaGrants.gov account.  It is further understood and agreed that 
the total of all payments to the Recipient by the Authority for all work and services required under this 
Contract shall not exceed the Award Amount unless modified by written amendment of this Contract as 
provided for in Section 1.0 of the General Provisions, Attachment A.  
         
3.3 ADMINISTRATION.  This Contract shall be administered in accordance with "Administrative 
Code" and all applicable State and Federal laws and regulations, including the Iowa Community 
Development Block Grant Management Guide, which has been distributed by the Authority to the 
Recipient. 
 
3.4 SATISFACTORY PERFORMANCE.    All projects will be evaluated using CDBG regulations and the 
additional requirements found in FR-6218-N-01: Notice of Program Rules, Waivers, and Alternative 
Requirements Under the CARES Act for CDBG-CV Grants, FY 2019 and 2020 CDBG Grants, and for Other 
Formula Programs. 
 

3.5 DUPLICATION OF BENEFITS.  All projects will be evaluated to ensure that there are adequate 

procedures in place to prevent any duplication of benefits as required by section 312 of the Stafford 

Act, as amended by section 1210 of the Disaster Recovery Reform Act of 2018 (division D of Public 

Law 115-254; 42 U.S.C. 5121 et seq.).   

The Recipient must adopt the Duplication of Benefits policies and procedures as provided by the 

Authority or create its own policies and procedures for implementation of CDBG- CV funds.  If the 

Recipient uses its own policies and procedures, it must clearly define how the entity will research 

potential Duplication of Benefits, calculate the Duplication of Benefits and collect all documentation for 

each project activity. 

The Recipient’s Duplication of Benefits policies and procedures must be approved by the Authority 

before CDBG-CV funds will be released.   

Per the Authority’s Duplication of Benefits policies and procedures, at least one activity has been 

identified as high risk for Duplication of Benefits.  

 
3.6  PRE-AGREEMENT COSTS.  Pre-agreement and pre-award costs are reimbursable with prior 
approval from IEDA.   Costs incurred before March 9, 2020 will not be reimbursed.  On this date, the 
Governor made a Proclamation of Disaster Emergency to coordinate the State of Iowa’s response to 
the Novel Coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19) outbreak.  Recipient shall comply with all environmental 
requirements set out at 24 CFR 58.  If the Recipient does not comply with all requirements at 24 CFR 

62

Item 12.



Part 58 and cannot demonstrate there was no harm to the environment, IEDA will not reimburse 
pre-agreement or pre-award costs 
  
 
       

ARTICLE 4 
PERFORMANCE TARGET ACHIEVEMENT 

  
        
4.1 PERFORMANCE TARGETS.  By the End Date, the Recipient shall have accomplished the activities 
and performance targets as described in the "Budget Activity", and as further elaborated in the 
Application, as approved by the Authority.   
 
4.2 DETERMINATION OF CONTRACT PERFORMANCE.  The Authority has the final authority to 
assess whether the Recipient has met their performance targets by the End Date.  The Authority shall 
determine completion according to the performance targets set forth in the "Budget Activity".  The 
Authority reserves the right to monitor and measure at any time during and after the Contract term the 
achievement of the performance targets.  
 

ARTICLE 5 
USE OF FUNDS 

  
        
5.1 GENERAL.  The Recipient shall perform in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by 
the Authority, the work activities and services as written and described in the approved grant proposal 
(Application) as summarized in the Recipient's approved Community Development Block Grant "Budget 
Activity".   
 
5.2 PROGRAM INCOME.  Proceeds generated from the use of CDBG funds are considered program 
income when the total amount received by the Recipient in a fiscal year exceeds $35,000, at which time 
the entire $35,000 and excess are considered program income.  Prior to the End Date, all program 
income shall be expended prior to requesting additional CDBG funds.  Program income received by the 
Recipient after the End Date shall be returned to the Authority unless the Recipient has submitted, and 
the Authority has approved, a re-use plan.  If applicable, any CDBG proceeds derived from an approved 
Revolving Loan Fund are considered program income, regardless of the amount received in any year.  
 
5.3 BUDGET REVISIONS.  Budget revisions shall be subject to prior approval of the Authority 
through the contract amendment process.  Budget revisions shall be compatible with the terms of this 
Contract and of such a nature as to qualify as an allowable cost.  Budget revisions requested during the 
final ninety (90) days of the Contract period will be approved by the Authority only if it determines that 
the revisions are necessary to complete the Project.  
  
  
 
5.5 COST VARIATION.  
 
     (a)  In the event that the total Project cost is less than the amount specified in the Agreement and the 
"Budget Activity", the CDBG participation shall be reduced at the same ratio to the total Project cost 

63

Item 12.



reduction as the original ratio of the CDBG funds to the total Project costs.  Any disbursed excess above 
the reduced CDBG participation amount shall be returned immediately to the Authority. 
 
     (b)  In the event that the total Project cost is greater than the amount specified in the "Budget 
Activity", the Authority shall, upon request, consider increasing the CDBG participation in the same ratio 
to the total increase in Project cost as the original ratio of CDBG funds to the total Project costs.  The 
consideration of an increase of CDBG funds for a Project shall be subject to availability of funds, 
determination of reasonable and allowable costs, and all other applicable program rules. 
 
     (c)  The Recipient may request the Authority to increase the CDBG participation to an amount that is 
higher than the proportional ratio.  The Authority may permit such a higher increase if, in the Authority’s 
judgment, the Recipient has demonstrated financial hardship.  
        

ARTICLE 6 
CONDITIONS TO DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS 

  
        
Unless and until the following conditions have been satisfied, the Authority shall be under no obligation 
to disburse to the Recipient any amounts under this Contract:  
 
6.1 CONTRACT EXECUTED.  The Contract shall have been properly executed and, where required, 
acknowledged.   
 
6.2 COMPLIANCE WITH ENVIRONMENTAL AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION REQUIREMENTS.  Funds 
shall not be released under this Contract until the Recipient has satisfied the environmental review and 
release of funds requirements set forth in 24 CFR Part 58, "Environmental Review Procedures for the 
Community Development Block Grant Program", and summarized in the Iowa CDBG Management 
Guide.  In addition, construction contracts for non-exempt activities shall not be executed and 
construction shall not begin prior to providing the Authority with documentation of the Recipient's 
compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act and 36 CFR Part 800, "Protection 
of Historic Properties."  The Recipient shall comply with any programmatic Memorandum of 
Understanding between the Iowa Economic Development Authority and the Iowa State Historic 
Preservation Office, applicable to any activities included in this contract.  
 
6.3 PERMITS AND LICENSES.  The Authority reserves the right to withhold funds until the Authority 
has reviewed and approved all material, such as permits or licenses from other state or Federal 
agencies, which may be required prior to Project commencement.  
 
6.4 EXCESSIVE FORCE POLICY.  The Authority, prior to release of funds under this Contract, shall 
review and approve the Recipient's policy on protecting individuals engaged in nonviolent civil rights 
demonstrations from the use of excessive force by law enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction, and 
enforcing state and local laws against physically barring entrance to or exit from a facility or location 
which is the subject of such nonviolent civil rights demonstrations within its jurisdiction, consistent with 
the provisions of Section 906 of the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990 and Subsection 104(l) of 
the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended.  
 
6.5 RESIDENTIAL ANTI/DISPLACEMENT AND RELOCATION ASSISTANCE PLAN APPROVAL.  The 
Authority, prior to release of funds under this Contract, shall review and approve the Recipient's 

64

Item 12.



Residential Anti/Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan, consistent with the requirements of 
Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended. 
 
6.6 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY POLICY.  The Authority, prior to release of funds under this Contract, 
shall review and approve the Recipient's equal opportunity policy, consistent with Section 109 of the 
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 as amended.  
 
6.7 PROCUREMENT POLICY.  The Authority, prior to release of funds under this Contract, shall 
review and approve the Recipient's procurement policy, consistent with 2 CFR 200.318.  
 
6.8 FAIR HOUSING POLICY.  The Authority, prior to release of funds under this Contract, shall review 
and approve the Recipient's fair housing policy, consistent with Section 109 of the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974 as amended.  
 
6.9 CODE OF CONDUCT.  The Authority, prior to release of funds under this Contract, shall review 
and approve the Recipient's code of conduct, consistent with 2 CFR 200.318.  
       
6.10 CONDITIONS TO DISBURSEMENT FOR A SPECIFIC ACTIVITY.  For each activity number listed 
below, the Recipient shall comply with the corresponding applicable conditions prior to release of funds 
for that activity.   
 
6.11 SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT.  For each activity utilizing a non-profit for implementation the 
Recipient shall upload an executed subrecipient agreement to IowaGrant.gov. No funds will be released 
for that activity unless the required subrecipient agreement has been uploaded.  All subrecipient 
agreements must include Duplication of Benefits requirements and a claw back provision.  
 
6.12  DUPLICATION OF BENEFITS POLICY. The recipient shall upload a Duplication of Benefits Policy 
that has been approved by the City.   No funds will be released for that activity unless the required 
policy has been uploaded and approved by the Authority.    
           
        

ARTICLE 7 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF RECIPIENT 

  
        
To induce the Authority to make the Grant referred to in this Contract, the Recipient represents, 
covenants and warrants that:  
 
7.1 AUTHORITY.  The Recipient is duly authorized and empowered to execute and deliver the 
Contract. All required actions on the Recipient's part, such as appropriate resolution of its governing 
board for the execution and delivery of the Contract, have been effectively taken.   
 
7.2 FINANCIAL INFORMATION.  All financial statements and related materials concerning the 
Project provided to the Authority are true and correct in all material respects and completely and 
accurately represent the subject matter thereof as of the Effective Date of the statements and related 
materials, and no material adverse change has occurred since that date.  
 

65

Item 12.



7.3 APPLICATION.  The contents of the Application the Recipient submitted to the Authority for 
funding is a complete and accurate representation of the Project as of the date of submission and there 
has been no material adverse change in the organization, operation, or key personnel of the Recipient 
since the date the Recipient submitted its Application to the Authority.  
 
7.4 CLAIMS AND PROCEEDINGS.  There are no actions, lawsuits or proceedings pending or, to the 
knowledge of the Recipient, threatened against the Recipient affecting in any manner whatsoever their 
rights to execute the Contract or the ability of the Recipient to make the payments required under the 
Contract, or to otherwise comply with the obligations of the Contract.  There are no actions, lawsuits or 
proceedings at law or in equity, or before any governmental or administrative authority pending or, to 
the knowledge of the Recipient, threatened against or affecting the Recipient or any property involved 
in the Project.  
  
7.5 PRIOR AGREEMENTS.  The Recipient has not entered into any verbal or written contracts, 
agreements or arrangements of any kind which are inconsistent with the Contract.  
 
7.6 EFFECTIVE DATE.  The covenants, warranties and representations of this Article are made as of 
the Effective Date of this Contract and shall be deemed to be renewed and restated by the Recipient at 
the time of each advance or request for disbursement of funds.  
            

ARTICLE 8 
COVENANTS OF THE RECIPIENT 

  
            
8.1 AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS.  Until the Project has been closed out, audited, and approved by the 
Authority, the Recipient covenants with the Authority that:  
 
   (a)         PROJECT WORK AND SERVICES.  The Recipient shall perform the work and services detailed in 
the "Budget Activity" by the End Date.  
 
   (b)         REPORTS.  The Recipient shall prepare, review and sign the requests and reports as specified 
below in the form and content specified by the Authority.  The Recipient shall review all Requests for 
Payment and verify that claimed expenditures are allowable costs.  The Recipient shall maintain 
documentation adequate to support the claimed costs. After the Recipient has submitted its 1st Request 
for Payment the Recipient, shall continue to submit Request for Payment at least semiannually for each 
"Budget Activity".  
 
The Authority reserves the right to require more frequent submission of the Activity Status Report than 
as shown below if, in the opinion of the Authority, more frequent submissions would help improve the 
Recipient's CDBG-CV program. 
 

 REPORT 
 

FREQUENCY 

Request for Payment / Activity Status Report At least every 6 months 

Section 3 Annually (if applicable) 

Updates to the Applicant/Recipient Disclosure 
Report 

As needed due to changes 
 

Form 3-D, Income and Ethnicity of recipients  Quarterly or more frequently as directed by IEDA 

66

Item 12.



 

Single Audit Form Within 30 days of audit completion  

 
(c)        RECORDS.  The Recipient shall maintain books, records, documents and other evidence 
pertaining to all costs and expenses incurred and revenues received under this Contract in sufficient 
detail to reflect all costs, direct and indirect, of labor, materials, equipment, supplies, services and other 
costs and expenses of whatever nature, for which payment is claimed under this Contract. The Recipient 
shall maintain books, records and documents in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the 
Contract and shall maintain these materials for the greater of three years after the date the recipient is 
notified that the state CDBG contract has been closed with HUD, or the period required by other 
applicable laws and regulations as described in § 570.487 and § 570.488.  Records shall be retained 
beyond the prescribed period if any litigation or audit is begun or if a claim is instituted involving the 
grant or agreement covered by the records. In these instances, the records shall be retained until the 
litigation, audit or claim has been finally resolved.  
 
   (d)        ACCESS TO RECORDS/INSPECTIONS.  The Recipient shall, without prior notice and at any time, 
permit HUD or its representatives, the General Accounting Office or its representatives, and the 
Authority, its representatives or the State Auditor, to examine, audit and/or copy (i) any plans and work 
details pertaining to the Project, (ii) any or all of the Recipient's books, records and accounts, and (iii) all 
other documentation or materials related to this Contract. The Recipient shall provide proper facilities 
for making such examination and/or inspection.  
 
   (e)        USE OF GRANT FUNDS.  The Recipient shall expend funds received under the Contract only for 
the purposes and activities described in its CDBG Application, this Contract and as approved by the 
Authority.  
 
   (f)         DOCUMENTATION.  The Recipient shall deliver to the Authority, upon request, (i) copies of all 
contracts or agreements relating to the Project, (ii) invoices, receipts, statements or vouchers relating to 
the Project, (iii) a list of all unpaid bills for labor and materials in connection with the Project, and (iv) 
budgets and revisions showing estimated Project costs and funds required at any given time to complete 
and pay for the Project.  
 
   (g)        NOTICE OF PROCEEDINGS.  The Recipient shall promptly notify the Authority of the initiation of 
any claims, lawsuits or proceedings brought against the Recipient.  
 
   (h)        INDEMNIFICATION.  The Recipient shall indemnify and hold harmless the Authority, its officers 
and employees from and against any and all losses in connection with the Project.  
 
   (i)         NOTICE TO AUTHORITY.  In the event the Recipient becomes aware of any material alteration 
in the Project, initiation of any investigation or proceeding involving the Project, or any other similar 
occurrence, the Recipient shall promptly notify the Authority.  
 
   (j)         CERTIFICATIONS.  The Recipient certifies and ensures that the Project will be conducted and 
administered in compliance with all applicable Federal and State laws, regulations and orders. Certain 
statutes are expressly made applicable to activities assisted under the Act by the Act itself, while other 
laws not referred to in the Act may be applicable to such activities by their own terms.  The Recipient 
certifies and assures compliance with the applicable orders, laws and implementing regulations, 
including but not limited to, the following:  

67

Item 12.



 
  
  (i) Financial Management guidelines issued by the U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget, OMB 2 CFR part 200, subpart E.  
 
  (ii)        Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 as amended (42 
U.S.C. 5301 et seq.), and regulations which implement these laws.  
 
  (iii)       Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended (Public Law 88-352; 42 U.S.C. 
2000d et seq.); Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 as amended (Public Law 90-284; 42 U.S.C. 3601 et 
seq.); the Iowa Civil Rights Act of 1965; Chapter 19B.7, Code of Iowa, and Iowa Executive Order #34, 
dated July 22, 1988; Iowa Code Chapter 216, Presidential Executive Order 11063, as amended by 
Executive Order 12259; Presidential Executive Order 11246, as amended by Presidential Executive Order 
11375; Section 504 of the Vocational Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended (29 U.S.C. 794); the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975 as amended (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.); the Americans with Disabilities Act, as 
applicable, (P. L. 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213); and related Civil Rights and Equal Opportunity 
statutes; and regulations which implement these laws.  
 
  (iv)       Fair Housing Act, Public Law 90-284. The Fair Housing Act is part of Title VIII of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1968 as amended (42 U.S.C. 3601 et seq.); Section 109 of the Title I of the Housing 
and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended; Section 3 of the Housing and Urban 
Development Act of 1968 as amended (12 U.S.C. 1701u); and regulations which implement these laws.  
 
  (v)        Department of Housing and Urban Development regulations governing the CDBG 
program, 24 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 570.  
 
  (vi)       Section 102 of the Department of Housing and Urban Development Reform Act 
of 1989 (P.L. 101 235), and implementing regulations.  
 
  (vii)      Requirements for the Notification, Evaluation, and Reduction of Lead-Based Paint 
Hazards in Federally Owned Residential Property and Housing Receiving Federal Assistance; Final Rule 
(24 CFR Part 35, et al.); Lead Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821 - 4846), as amended, 
and implementing regulations.  
 
  (viii)     Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 276a - 276a-5), where applicable under 
Section 110 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended; Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327 et seq.); the Copeland Anti-Kickback Act (18 U.S.C. 874); 
and regulations which implement these laws.  
 
  (ix)       National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 and implementing regulations.  
 
  (x)        Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 
as amended, (URA)(42 U.S.C. 4601 - 4655) and implementing regulations; Section 104(d) of the Housing 
and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, governing the residential anti-displacement and 
relocation assistance plan; and Section 105(a)(11) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 
1974, as amended, governing optional relocation assistance.  
 

68

Item 12.



  (xi)       Administrative rules adopted by the Iowa Economic Development Authority, 261 
Iowa Administrative Code.  
 
  (xii)      Financial and Program Management guidelines issued by the Iowa Economic 
Development Authority; the Iowa CDBG Management Guide; and the Authority Audit Guide.  
 
  (xiii)     Government-wide Restriction on Lobbying Certification [Section 319 of Public 
Law 101-121] and implementing regulations.  
 
  (xiv)     Fair Labor Standards Act and implementing regulations.  
 
  (xv)      Hatch Act (regarding political partisan activity and Federally funded activities) 
and implementing regulations.  
 
  (xvi)     Citizen participation, hearing and access to information requirements found 
under sections 104(a)(2) and 104(a)(3) of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 
1974, as amended.  
 
  (xvii)     Subsection 104(l) of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 
1974, as amended, regarding the prohibition of the use of excessive force in nonviolent civil rights 
demonstrations and the enforcement of state and local laws on barring entrance to or exit from facilities 
subject to such demonstrations.  
 
  (xviii)    Drug-Free Workplace Act.   
  
(k)        MAINTENANCE OF ACTIVITY PROPERTY AND INSURANCE.  The following provision shall apply to 
the project as appropriate.  The Recipient and any subrecipient shall maintain the Project property in 
good repair and condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and shall not suffer or commit waste or 
damage upon the Project property.  The Recipient or subrecipient shall pay for and maintain insurance 
as is customary in its industry.  This insurance shall be in an amount not less than the full insurable value 
of the Project property.  The subrecipient shall name the Recipient and Authority as mortgagees and/or 
an additional loss payees, as appropriate.  The Recipient shall name the Authority as a mortgagee and/or 
an additional loss payee, as appropriate.  The Recipient or subrecipient shall maintain copies of the 
policies as appropriate.  
 
8.2       NEGATIVE COVENANTS.  During the Contract term the Recipient covenants with the Authority 
that it shall not, without the prior written disclosure to and prior written consent of the Authority, 
directly or indirectly:  
 
   (a)        ASSIGNMENT.  Assign its rights and responsibilities under this Contract.  
 
   (b)        ADMINISTRATION.  Discontinue administration activities under the Contract.  
 

ARTICLE 9 
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

  
         
9.1 EVENTS OF DEFAULT.  The following shall constitute Events of Default under this Contract:   

69

Item 12.



 
   (a)        MATERIAL MISREPRESENTATION.  If at any time any representation, warranty or statement 
made or furnished to the Authority by, or on behalf of, the Recipient in connection with this Contract or 
to induce the Authority to make a grant to the Recipient shall be determined by the Authority to be 
incorrect, false, misleading or erroneous in any material respect when made or furnished and shall not 
have been remedied to the Authority's satisfaction within thirty (30) days after written notice by the 
Authority is given to the Recipient.   
 
   (b)        NONCOMPLIANCE.  If there is a failure by the Recipient to comply with any of the covenants, 
terms or conditions contained in this Contract.   
 
    (c)        END DATE.  If the Project, in the sole judgment of the Authority, is not completed on or before 
the End Date.   
 
   (d)        MISSPENDING.  If the Recipient expends Grant proceeds for purposes not described in the 
Application, this Contract, or as authorized by the Authority.   
 
   (e)        INSURANCE.  If loss, theft, damage, or destruction of any substantial portion of the property of 
the Recipient occurs for which there is either no insurance coverage or for which, in the opinion of the 
Authority, there is insufficient insurance coverage.  This provision applies to the project as appropriate.   
 
9.2 NOTICE OF DEFAULT.  In the event of default, the Authority shall issue a written notice of 
default providing therein a fifteen (15) day period in which the Recipient shall have an opportunity to 
cure, provided that cure is possible and feasible.  
 
9.3 REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT.  If, after opportunity to cure, the default remains, the Authority 
shall have the right in addition to any rights and remedies specifically to it to do one or more of the 
following:  
 
   (a)        exercise any remedy provided by law,  
 
   (b)        require immediate repayment of up to the full amount of funds disbursed to the Recipient 
under this Contract plus interest.  
 
9.4 FAILURE TO MEET PERFORMANCE TARGETS.  If the Recipient is determined by the Authority to 
be in default of this Contract due to meeting less than one hundred percent (100%) of its Performance 
Targets, the Authority may require full Grant repayment or, at its discretion, the Authority may require 
partial repayment of Grant proceeds which allows partial credit for the performance targets which have 
been met, or the Authority may require other remedies that the Authority determines to be 
appropriate. For Housing rehabilitation projects only, performance targets shall include income 
targeting and affordability requirements as required in 261 Administrative Code 25.4(1).   
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

70

Item 12.



        
ARTICLE 10 

INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS 
  
        
10.1 DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE.  The Recipient shall comply with the terms and 
conditions of the following documents which are hereby incorporated by reference:   
 
   (a)        Budget Activity, as found in Recipient’s IowaGrants.gov account.   
   (b)       IEDA’s Entitlement CDBG-CV Guidelines  
   (c)       Application, "CDBG-CV Application", as found in Recipient’s IowaGrants.gov account.   
   (d) Attachment A, "CDBG Program General Provisions", dated October 3, 2018.   
   (e) Duplication of Benefits Policies and Procedures 
   (f)        "Iowa Community Development Block Grant Management Guide", as found on the Authority's 
website at www.iowaeconomicdevelopment.com/Community/CDBG.   
 
10.2 ORDER OF PRIORITY.  In the event of a conflict between documents of this Contract, the 
following order of priority shall govern:  
 
   (a)        Articles 1 through 11 herein.   
   (b)        Attachment A, "CDBG Program General Provisions", dated October 3, 2018.   
   (c)        Budget Activity, as found in Recipient’s IowaGrants.gov account.   
   (d)        Duplication of Benefits Policy and Procedures 
   (e) IEDA’s Entitlement CDBG-CV Guidelines 
   (f) Application, "CDBG Application", as found in Recipient’s IowaGrants.gov account.   
   (e)        "Iowa Community Development Block Grant Management Guide", as found on the Authority's 
website at www.iowaeconomicdevelopment.com/Community/CDBG.   
 

ARTICLE 11 
MISCELLANEOUS 

  
        
11.1    LIMIT ON GRANT PROCEEDS ON HAND.  The Recipient shall request Project funds only as 
needed and shall not have more than five hundred dollars ($500.00) of Grant proceeds, including earned 
interest, on hand for a period of longer than ten (10) working days, after which time any surplus amount 
shall be returned to the Authority.  
 
11.2    BINDING EFFECT.  This Contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the 
Authority and Recipient and their respective successors, legal representatives and assigns.  The 
obligations, covenants, warranties, acknowledgments, waivers, agreements, terms, provisions and 
conditions of this Contract shall be jointly and severally enforceable against the parties to this Contract.  
        
11.3    SURVIVAL OF CONTRACT.  If any portion of this Contract is held to be invalid or unenforceable, 
the remainder shall be valid and enforceable.  The provisions of this Contract shall survive the execution 
of all instruments herein mentioned and shall continue in full force until the Project is completed as 
determined by the Authority.  
 

71

Item 12.



11.4    GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Iowa, and any action relating to the Contract shall only be commenced in the Iowa District Court for Polk 
County or the United States District Court for the Southern District of Iowa.  
 
11.5    NOTICES.  Whenever this Contract requires or permits any funding request, notice, report, or 
written request by one party to another, it shall be in delivered through IowaGrants.gov. Alternately the 
Authority may rely on the United States Mail as the Authority deems appropriate. Any such notice given 
hereunder shall be deemed delivered upon the earlier of actual receipt or two (2) business days after 
posting.  The Authority may rely on the address of the Recipient set forth heretofore, as modified from 
time to time, as being the address of the Recipient.  
 
11.6    WAIVERS.  No waiver by the Authority of any default hereunder shall operate as a waiver of any 
other default or of the same default on any future occasion.  No delay on the part of the Authority in 
exercising any right or remedy hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof.  No single or partial exercise 
of any right or remedy by the Authority shall preclude future exercise thereof or the exercise of any 
other right or remedy.  
 
11.7    LIMITATION.  It is agreed by the Recipient that the Authority shall not, under any circumstances, 
be obligated financially under this Contract except to disburse funds according to the terms of the 
Contract.  
 
11.8    HEADINGS.  The headings in this Contract are intended solely for convenience of reference and 
shall be given no effect in the construction and interpretation of this Contract.  
 
11.9    INTEGRATION.  This Contract contains the entire understanding between the Recipient and the 
Authority and any representations that may have been made before or after the signing of this Contract, 
which are not contained herein, are nonbinding, void and of no effect. None of the parties have relied 
on any such prior representation in entering into this Contract.  
 
11.10  COUNTERPARTS.  This Contract may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument.  
 
11.11  IOWAGRANTS.GOV. The Authority reserves the right to require the Recipient to utilize the 
IowaGrants.gov system to conduct business associated with this Contract.  
         
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract as of the Effective Date first stated. 
 
RECIPIENT:  
 
BY: _______________________________________________ 
 Rob Green, Mayor 
  
 
IOWA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY: 
 
BY: ___________________________________________   
 Deborah V. Durham, Director  

72

Item 12.



         
  
  

73

Item 12.



 
        

ATTACHMENT A 
 
GENERAL PROVISIONS  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM  
  
1.0        AMENDMENT.  
 
 (a)           WRITING REQUIRED.  The Contract will only be amended through written prior 
approval of the Authority through IowaGrants.gov.  Examples of situations where amendments are 
required include extensions for completion of Project activities, changes to the Project including, but not 
limited to, alteration of existing approved activities or inclusion of new activities.  
 
 (b)           UNILATERAL MODIFICATION.  Notwithstanding paragraph "a" above, the Authority may 
unilaterally modify the Contract at will in order to accommodate any change in the Act or any change in 
the interpretation of the Act or any applicable Federal, State or local laws, regulations, rules or policies. 
A copy of such unilateral modification will be given to the Recipient as an amendment to this Contract.  
 
 (c)           AUTHORITY REVIEW.  The Authority will consider whether an amendment request is so 
substantial as to necessitate reevaluating the Authority’s original funding decision on the Project.  An 
amendment will be denied if it substantially alters the circumstances under which the Project funding 
was originally approved; if it does not meet requirements set forth in Iowa Administrative Code 261-23, 
as applicable; or if it conflicts with the Program Rules. 
 
2.0        AUDIT REQUIREMENTS.  
 
 (a)           SINGLE AUDIT.  The Recipient shall ensure that an audit is performed in accordance 
with the Single Audit Act Amendment of 1996; OMB 2 CFR part 200, subpart E; and OMB 2 CFR part 200, 
subpart F, as applicable;  and the Iowa CDBG Management Guide. 
 
 (b)           ADDITIONAL AUDIT.  As a condition of the grant to the Recipient, the Authority 
reserves the right to require the Recipient to submit to a post Project completion audit and review in 
addition to the audit required above.  
 
3.0        COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS.  The Recipient shall comply with all applicable 
State and Federal laws, rules, ordinances, regulations and orders including all Federal laws and 
regulations described in 24 CFR subpart K.   
 
4.0        UNALLOWABLE COSTS.  If the Authority determines at any time, whether through monitoring, 
audit, closeout procedures or by other means or process, that the Recipient has expended funds which 
are unallowable, the Recipient will be notified of the questioned costs and given an opportunity to 
justify questioned costs prior to the Authority's final determination of the disallowance of costs.  
Appeals of any determinations will be handled in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17A, Iowa 
Code.  If it is the Authority's final determination that costs previously paid by the Authority are 
unallowable under the terms of the Contract, the expenditures will be disallowed and the Recipient will 
repay to the Authority any and all disallowed costs.  Real property under the Recipient's control in 
excess of $25,000 and equipment that was acquired or improved in whole or in part with CDBG funds 

74

Item 12.



shall be used to meet one of the National Objectives pursuant to 24 CFR 570.208 until five (5) years after 
expiration of the Agreement. If Recipient fails to use CDBG assisted real property that meets a National 
Objective during the five (5) year period the Recipient shall pay IEDA an amount equal to the current fair 
market value of the property less any portion of the value attributable to expenditures of non-CDBG 
funds for acquisition or improvement to the real property.  
 
5.0        PROGRAM INCOME.  All program income, as defined in 2 CFR part 200, subpart E;  24 CFR 
570.489; and Iowa Administrative Code 261-23, if applicable; shall be added to the Project "Budget 
Activity" and used to further eligible Project objectives as defined in the Contract and the "Budget 
Activity" in the CDBG Application for funding.  Program income not used to further Project objectives 
will be deducted from the total Project "Budget Activity" for the purpose of determining the amount of 
reimbursable costs under the Contract.  In cases of dispute, final decisions regarding the definition or 
disposition of program income shall be made by the Authority.  
 
6.0        INTEREST EARNED.  To the extent that interest is earned on advances of CDBG funds, this 
interest shall be returned to the Authority, except that the Recipient may keep interest amounts of up 
to $100 per year for administrative expenses.  
 
7.0        SUSPENSION.  When the Recipient has failed to comply with the Contract, award conditions or 
standards, the Authority may, on reasonable notice to the Recipient, suspend the Contract and withhold 
future payments, or prohibit the Recipient from incurring additional obligations of CDBG funds.  
Suspension may continue until the Recipient completes the corrective action as required by the 
Authority. The Authority may allow such necessary and proper costs which the Recipient could not 
reasonably avoid during the period of suspension provided the Authority concludes that such costs meet 
the provisions of HUD regulations issued pursuant to OMB 2 CFR part 200, subpart E. 
 
8.0        TERMINATION.  
 
 (a)           FOR CAUSE.  The Authority may terminate the Contract in whole, or in part, whenever 
the Authority determines that the Recipient has failed to comply with the terms and conditions of the 
Contract.  
 
 (b)           FOR CONVENIENCE.  The Parties may terminate the Contract in whole, or in part, when 
all parties agree that the continuation of the Project would not produce beneficial results 
commensurate with the future disbursement of funds.  
 
 (c)           DUE TO REDUCTION OR TERMINATION OF CDBG FUNDING.  At the discretion of the 
Authority, the Contract may be terminated in whole, or in part, if there is a reduction or termination of 
CDBG Federal block grant funds to the State.  
 
9.0        PROCEDURES UPON TERMINATION.  
 
 (a)           NOTICE.  The Authority shall provide written notice to the Recipient of the decision to 
terminate, the reason(s) for the termination, and the effective date of the termination. If there is a 
partial termination due to a reduction in funding, the notice will set forth the change in funding and the 
changes in the approved "Budget Activity".  The Recipient shall not incur new obligations beyond the 
effective date and shall cancel as many outstanding obligations as possible.  The Authority's share of 

75

Item 12.



noncancelable obligations which the Authority determines were properly incurred prior to notice of 
cancellation will be allowable costs.  
 
 (b)           RIGHTS IN PRODUCTS.  All finished and unfinished documents, data, reports or other 
material prepared by the Recipient under the Contract shall, at the Authority’s option, become the 
property of the Authority.  
 
 (c)           RETURN OF FUNDS.  The Recipient shall return to the Authority all unencumbered funds 
within one week of receipt of the notice of termination. Any costs previously paid by the Authority 
which are subsequently determined to be unallowable through audit, monitoring, or closeout 
procedures shall be returned to the Authority within thirty (30) days of the disallowance.  
 
10.0      ENFORCEMENT EXPENSES.  The Recipient shall pay upon demand any and all reasonable fees 
and expenses of the Authority, including the fees and expenses of its attorneys, experts and agents, in 
connection with the exercise or enforcement of any of the rights of the Authority under this Contract.  
 
11.0      INDEMNIFICATION.  The Recipient shall indemnify and hold harmless the Authority, its officers 
and employees, from and against any and all losses, accruing or resulting from any and all claims 
subcontractors, laborers and any other person, firm or corporation furnishing or supplying work, 
services, materials or supplies in connection with the performance of this Contract, and from any and all 
claims and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm or corporation who may be injured or 
damaged by the Recipient in the performance of this Contract.  
 
12.0      CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  
 
 (a)           GENERAL.  Except for the use of CDBG funds to pay salaries and other related 
administrative or personnel costs, no persons identified in paragraph (b) below who exercise or have 
exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to CDBG assisted activities or who are in a 
position to participate in a decision making process or gain inside information with regard to such 
activities may obtain a personal or financial interest or benefit from a CDBG assisted activity or have an 
interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, 
either for themselves or those with whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for 
one year thereafter.  
 
 (b)           PERSONS COVERED.  The conflict of interest provisions described above apply to any 
person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected or appointed official of the Recipient, 
or of any designated public agencies, or subrecipients which are receiving CDBG funds.  
 
 (c)           CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  Chapter 68B, Code of Iowa, the "Iowa Public Officials Act", 
shall be adhered to by the Recipient, its officials and employees.  
 
13.0        USE OF DEBARRED, SUSPENDED, OR INELIGIBLE CONTRACTORS OR SUBRECIPIENTS.  CDBG 
funds shall not be used directly or indirectly to employ, award contracts to, or otherwise engage the 
service of, or fund any contractor or subrecipient during any period of debarment, suspension, or 
placement in ineligible status under the provisions of 24 CFR Part 24 or any applicable law or regulation 
of the Department of Labor.  
  
        

76

Item 12.



14.0      CIVIL RIGHTS.  
 
 (a)           DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT.  The Recipient shall not discriminate against any 
qualified employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, 
age, sexual orientation, gender identity, familial status, physical or mental disability.  The Recipient may 
take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated without 
regard to their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, sexual orientation, familial status, gender 
identity, or physical or mental disability.  Such action shall include, but may not be limited to, the 
following: employment, upgrading, promotion, demotion or transfers; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; lay-off or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for 
training, including an apprenticeship.  The Recipient agrees to post notices setting forth the provisions of 
the nondiscrimination clause in conspicuous places so as to be available to employees.  Upon the State's 
written request, the Recipient shall submit to the State a copy of its affirmative action plan, containing 
goals and time specifications, and accessibility plans and policies as required under Iowa Administrative 
Code chapter 11—121.  
 
 (b)           CONSIDERATION FOR EMPLOYMENT.  The Recipient shall, in all solicitations or 
advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Recipient, state that all qualified applicants 
will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, 
age, sexual orientation, gender identity, physical or mental disability, or familial status.    
 
 (c)           SOLICITATION AND ADVERTISEMENT.  The Recipient shall list all suitable employment 
openings in the State Employment Service local offices or shall list all suitable employment openings 
with Iowa Workforce Development's IowaJobs web site found at https://www1.iowajobs.org/.  
 
 (d)           CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE IN EMPLOYMENT.  The Recipient shall comply with all 
relevant provisions of the Iowa Civil Rights Act of 1965 as amended; Chapter 19B.7, and Chapter 216, 
Code of Iowa; Federal Executive Order 11246, as amended; Title VI of the U.S. Civil Rights Act of 1964 as 
amended (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d et seq.); the Fair Labor Standards Act (29 U.S.C. Section 201 et seq.); 
The Americans with Disabilities Act, as applicable, (P.L. 101 336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213); Section 504 of 
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended (29 U.S.C. Section 794); and the Age Discrimination Act of 
1975 as amended (42 U.S.C. Section 6101 et seq.).  The Recipient will furnish all information and reports 
requested by the State of Iowa or required by or pursuant to the rules and regulations thereof and will 
permit access to payroll and employment records by the State of Iowa to investigate compliance with 
these rules and regulations.  
 
 (e)           CERTIFICATION REGARDING GOVERNMENT-WIDE RESTRICTION ON LOBBYING.  The 
Recipient certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:  
  
         

(i)    No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with awarding any Federal contract, making any Federal 
grant, making any Federal loan, entering into any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement.  

  

77

Item 12.



(ii)    If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Recipient shall 
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Federal Lobbying" in 
accordance with its instruction.  

  
(iii)   The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under 
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose 
accordingly.  

  
(iv)  This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when 
this transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for 
making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code.  Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.  

  
         

(f)           PROGRAM NONDISCRIMINATION.  The Recipient shall conform with requirements of 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.) and HUD regulations issued pursuant 
thereto contained in 24 CFR Part 1.  No person in the United States shall, on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, sex or religion or religious affiliation, be excluded from participation in, be denied the 
benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity funded in whole or in part 
with funds made available through this Contract.  Any prohibition against discrimination on the basis of 
age under the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101 et. seq.) or with respect to an otherwise 
qualified individual with a disability as provided in the Americans with Disabilities Act, as applicable, (P.L. 
101 336, 42 U.S.C. 12101 12213) or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794) 
shall also apply to any such program activity, or Project.  
 
 (g)           FAIR HOUSING.  The Recipient shall comply with Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 
(42 U.S.C. 3601 et seq.), generally known as the Fair Housing Act, and with HUD regulations found at 24 
CFT Part 100 and 24 CFR Part 107, issued in compliance with Federal Executive Order 11063, as 
amended by Federal Executive Order 12259.  The recipient shall also comply with Section 109, Title I of 
the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended.  
 
 (h)           LEAD-BASED PAINT HAZARDS.  The Recipient shall comply with requirements of the 
Notification, Evaluation, and Reduction of Lead-Based Paint Hazards in Federally Owned Residential 
Property and Housing Receiving Federal Assistance; Final Rule (24 CFR Part 35, et al.); Lead-Based Paint 
Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821 - 4846), as amended, and implementing regulations.  
 
 (i)           SECTION 3 COMPLIANCE.  The Recipient shall comply with provisions for training, 
employment, and contracting in accordance with 24 CFR part 135, Section 3 of the Housing and Urban 
Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u).  All section 3 covered contracts shall include the following 
clause (referred to as the section 3 clause):  
  
         

78

Item 12.



(i) The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of section 
3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (section 3). 
The purpose of section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities 
generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by section 3, shall, to the 
greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons 
who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing. 

  
(ii)  The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135, 
which implement section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to this 
contract certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent 
them from complying with the part 135 regulations. 

  
(iii)  The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers 
with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, 
a notice advising the labor organization or workers' representative of the contractor's 
commitments under this section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous 
places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training and employment 
positions can see the notice. The notice shall describe the section 3 preference, shall set forth 
minimum number and job titles subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship and training 
positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking 
applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin. 

  
(iv)  The contractor agrees to include this section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to 
compliance with regulations in 24 CFR part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, as 
provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this section 3 clause, upon a finding 
that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. The contractor will 
not subcontract with any subcontractor where the contractor has notice or knowledge that the 
subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. 

  
(v)  The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training 
positions, that are filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, 
and (2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR part 135 require 
employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor’s 
obligations under 24 CFR part 135. 

  
(vi) Noncompliance with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions, 
termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted 
contracts. 

  
(vii) With respect to work performed in connection with section 3 covered Indian housing 
assistance, section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 
450e) also applies to the work to be performed under this contract. Section 7(b) requires that to 
the greatest extent feasible (i) preference and opportunities for training and employment shall 
be given to Indians, and (ii) preference in the award of contracts and subcontracts shall be given 
to Indian organizations and Indian-owned Economic Enterprises. Parties to this contract that are 
subject to the provisions of section 3 and section 7(b) agree to comply with section 3 to the 
maximum extent feasible, but not in derogation of compliance with section 7(b). 

  

79

Item 12.



         
  (j)           NONCOMPLIANCE WITH THE CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS.  In the event of the 
Recipient's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this Contract or with any of the 
aforesaid rules, regulations, or requests, this Contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended either 
wholly or in part.  In addition, the State of Iowa may take further action, imposing other sanctions and 
invoking additional remedies as provided by the Iowa Civil Rights Act of 1965 (Chapter 216, Code of 
Iowa) or as otherwise provided by law.   
 
 (k)           INCLUSION IN SUBCONTRACTS.  The Recipient will include the provisions of the 
preceding paragraphs of Section 14 in every subcontract unless exempt by the State of Iowa, and said 
provisions will be binding on each subcontractor.  The Recipient will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract as the State of Iowa may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions 
for noncompliance.  In the event the Recipient becomes involved in or is threatened by litigation with a 
subcontractor or provider as a result of such direction by the State of Iowa, the Recipient may request 
the State of Iowa to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State of Iowa.  
 
15.0      POLITICAL ACTIVITY.  No portion of program funds shall be used for any partisan political activity 
or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public office.  Neither the program nor the funds 
provided therefore, nor the personnel employed in the administration of this Contract, shall be in any 
way or to any extent engaged in the conduct of political activities in contravention of The Hatch Act (5 
U.S.C. 15).  
 
16.0      LIMIT ON RECOVERY OF CAPITAL COSTS.  The Recipient will not attempt to recover any capital 
costs of public improvements assisted in whole or part under this Contract by assessing any amount 
against properties owned and occupied by persons of low and moderate income, including any fee 
charged or assessment made as a condition of obtaining access to such public improvements, unless (i) 
funds received under this Contract are used to pay the proportion of such fee or assessment that relates 
to the capital costs of such public improvements that are financed from revenue sources other than 
under Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, or (ii) for purposes 
of assessing any amount against properties owned and occupied by persons of low and moderate 
income who are not persons of very low income, the Recipient has certified to the Authority that it lacks 
sufficient funds received under Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 
amended, to comply with the requirements of clause (i) above.  
 
17.0      PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES.  In accordance with 24 CFR 570.207 (a):  The following activities may not 
be assisted with CDBG funds:  
 
 (a)           BUILDINGS OR PORTIONS THEREOF, USED FOR THE GENERAL CONDUCT OF 
GOVERNMENT AS DEFINED AT § 570.3(D) CANNOT BE ASSISTED WITH CDBG FUNDS.  This does not 
include, however, the removal of architectural barriers under § 570.201(c) involving any such building. 
Also, where acquisition of real property includes an existing improvement which is to be used in the 
provision of a building for the general conduct of government, the portion of the acquisition cost 
attributable to the land is eligible, provided such acquisition meets a national objective described in § 
570.208.  
 
 (b)           GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENSES.  Except as otherwise specifically authorized in this 
subpart or under 2 CFR part 200, subpart E, expenses required to carry out the regular responsibilities of 
the unit of general local government are not eligible for assistance under this part.  

80

Item 12.



 
 (c)           POLITICAL ACTIVITIES.  CDBG funds shall not be used to finance the use of facilities or 
equipment for political purposes or to engage in other partisan political activities, such as candidate 
forums, voter transportation, or voter registration. However, a facility originally assisted with CDBG 
funds may be used on an incidental basis to hold political meetings, candidate forums, or voter 
registration campaigns, provided that all parties and organizations have access to the facility on an equal 
basis, and are assessed equal rent or use charges, if any.  
 
18.0      FEDERAL GOVERNMENT RIGHTS.  If all or a portion of the funding used to pay for the 
Deliverables is being provided through a grant from the Federal Government, recipient, subrecipient, 
contractor, subcontractor, or provider acknowledges and agrees that pursuant to applicable federal 
laws, regulations, circulars and bulletins, the awarding agency of the Federal Government reserves 
certain rights including, without limitation a royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable license to 
reproduce, publish or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for Federal Government purposes, 
the Deliverables developed under this Contract and the copyright in and to such Deliverables.  
 
19.0      IOWA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FRAUD AND WASTE POLICY.  The Authority has 
zero tolerance for the commission or concealment of acts of fraud, waste, or abuse. Allegations of such 
acts will be investigated and pursued to their logical conclusion, including legal action where warranted.  
  
        
 

81

Item 12.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

  FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: January 14, 2021 

 SUBJECT: FY2022 Budget 

 
You may recall at Council Goal Setting that I summarized the new requirements that 
came about last year from the State of Iowa related to budget hearings.  The first part of 
these new requirements is having a hearing setting the maximum levy.  Attached is the 
new required form giving notice of the hearing to set this maximum levy.  The levy rate 
as set by the attached notice, is balancing a budget that includes all of the items 
addressed at goal setting relating to capital projects, staffing, and services.   
 
You may also recall that unfortunately this new state notice, does not include the total 
levy rate, it only has certain levies.  Therefore, this is not the true picture of the total levy 
rate.  For example, the total rate for the prior year was $11.43 and you will see by the 
notice that it only shows $10.83.  In addition, because of how the form works, it shows a 
decrease of .54% for FY22.  However, the actual effect on the residential property 
owner will be a 1.98% increase in property taxes using this maximum levy.  Commercial 
and Industrial will see a .44% decrease and multi-residential will see a 5.68% decrease.  
 
The step for this council meeting on January 19th is simply setting the date to hold the 
hearing for the maximum levy rate as required by the Code of Iowa.  I would ask that 
the public hearing be set for February 1, 2021. 
 
If you have any questions, about the budget or the budget process, please feel free to 
contact me.  
 
 
 

82

Item 13.



N
O

T
IC

E
 O

F 
PU

B
L

IC
 H

E
A

R
IN

G
 - 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
C

E
D

A
R

 F
A

L
L

S 
- P

R
O

PO
SE

D
 P

R
O

PE
R

T
Y

 T
A

X
 L

E
V

Y
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

1 
- J

un
e 

30
, 2

02
2

Th
e 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

du
ct

 a
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

rin
g 

on
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r C
ity

 p
ro

pe
rty

 ta
x 

le
vy

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

M
ee

tin
g 

D
at

e:
   

 2
/1

/2
02

1 
   

M
ee

tin
g 

Ti
m

e:
   

 0
7:

00
 P

M
   

 M
ee

tin
g 

L
oc

at
io

n:
   

 C
ou

nc
il 

C
ha

m
be

r i
n 

C
ity

 H
al

l, 
22

0 
C

la
y 

St
re

et
, C

ed
ar

 F
al

ls
, I

ow
a.

 T
o 

pr
ot

ec
t a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
sp

re
ad

 o
f C

O
V

ID
-1

9,
 sa

id
 m

ee
tin

g 
m

ay
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

vi
a

vi
de

oc
on

fe
re

nc
e 

an
d 

di
re

ct
io

ns
 o

n 
ho

w
 to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

ag
en

da
A

t t
he

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
rin

g 
an

y 
re

si
de

nt
 o

r t
ax

pa
ye

r m
ay

 p
re

se
nt

 o
bj

ec
tio

ns
 to

, o
r a

rg
um

en
ts

 in
 fa

vo
r o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ta

x 
le

vy
. A

fte
r a

do
pt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 ta

x 
le

vy
, t

he
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 p

ub
lis

h 
no

tic
e 

an
d 

ho
ld

 a
 h

ea
rin

g 
on

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

ci
ty

 b
ud

ge
t.

C
ity

 W
eb

si
te

 (i
f a

va
ila

bl
e)

w
w

w.
ce

da
rf

al
ls

.c
om

 
C

ity
 T

el
ep

ho
ne

 N
um

be
r

(3
19

) 2
73

-8
60

0
C

ur
re

nt
 Y

ea
r 

C
er

tif
ie

d 
Pr

op
er

ty
 T

ax
 2

02
0 

-
20

21
B

ud
ge

t Y
ea

r 
E

ff
ec

tiv
e 

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ax

 2
02

1 
-

20
22

B
ud

ge
t Y

ea
r 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ax

im
um

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
Ta

x 
20

21
 -

20
22

A
nn

ua
l %

C
H

G
R

eg
ul

ar
 T

ax
ab

le
 V

al
ua

tio
n

1,
96

8,
05

7,
68

6
1,

96
4,

30
0,

51
2

1,
96

4,
30

0,
51

2
Ta

x 
Le

vi
es

:
R

eg
ul

ar
 G

en
er

al
15

,9
41

,2
67

15
,9

41
,2

67
15

,9
10

,8
34

C
on

tra
ct

 fo
r U

se
 o

f B
rid

ge
0

0
0

O
pr

 &
 M

ai
nt

 P
ub

lic
ly

 O
w

ne
d 

Tr
an

si
t

42
9,

92
0

42
9,

92
0

44
2,

82
0

R
en

t, 
In

s. 
M

ai
nt

. O
f N

on
-O

w
ne

d 
C

iv
. C

tr.
0

0
0

O
pr

 &
 M

ai
nt

 o
f C

ity
-O

w
ne

d 
C

iv
ic

 C
en

te
r

0
0

0
Pl

an
ni

ng
 a

 S
an

ita
ry

 D
is

po
sa

l P
ro

je
ct

0
0

0
Li

ab
ili

ty
, P

ro
pe

rty
 &

 S
el

f-
In

su
ra

nc
e 

C
os

ts
25

4,
01

0
25

4,
01

0
12

5,
02

0
Su

pp
or

t o
f L

oc
al

 E
m

er
. M

gm
t. 

C
om

m
is

si
on

44
7,

77
0

44
7,

77
0

53
9,

73
0

Em
er

ge
nc

y
0

0
0

Po
lic

e 
&

 F
ire

 R
et

ire
m

en
t

1,
61

7,
11

0
1,

61
7,

11
0

1,
69

9,
31

0
FI

C
A

 &
 IP

ER
S

1,
46

0,
42

0
1,

46
0,

42
0

1,
50

6,
94

0
O

th
er

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
1,

16
5,

67
0

1,
16

5,
67

0
97

6,
15

0
To

ta
l T

ax
 L

ev
y

21
,3

16
,1

67
21

,3
16

,1
67

21
,2

00
,8

04
-0

.5
4

Ta
x 

R
at

e
10

.8
31

07
10

.8
51

79
10

.7
93

06

E
xp

la
na

tio
n 

of
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 in
cr

ea
se

s i
n 

th
e 

bu
dg

et
:

N
ot

 A
pp

lic
ab

le
, s

in
ce

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 d

ec
re

as
e 

in
 th

e 
ta

x 
le

vy
.

If
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

, t
he

 a
bo

ve
 n

ot
ic

e 
al

so
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

on
lin

e 
at

:
ce

da
rf

al
ls

.c
om

; h
ttp

s:
//w

w
w.

fa
ce

bo
ok

.c
om

/c
ity

cf
; h

ttp
s:

//t
w

itt
er

.c
om

/C
ity

C
F;

 h
ttp

s:
//w

w
w.

in
st

ag
ra

m
.c

om
/c

ed
ar

_f
al

ls
_i

ow
a/

*T
ot

al
 c

ity
 ta

x 
ra

te
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

vo
te

d 
ge

ne
ra

l f
un

d 
le

vy
, d

eb
t s

er
vi

ce
 le

vy
, a

nd
 c

ap
ita

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t r
es

er
ve

 le
vy

.
**

B
ud

ge
t y

ea
r e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

pr
op

er
t t

ax
 ra

te
 is

 th
e 

ra
te

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 fo

r t
he

se
 le

vi
es

 if
 th

e 
do

lla
rs

 re
qu

es
te

d 
is

 n
ot

 c
ha

ng
ed

 in
 th

e 
co

m
in

g 
bu

dg
et

 y
ea

r

83

Item 13.



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Rob Green and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 
  Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: January 13, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Poultry Ordinance & Associated Code Updates 
 
 
In 2006, City Council passed Ordinance 2607 that ended the ability to have chickens in 
districts other than A-1, Agricultural.  Residences with chickens at that time were 
allowed to continue, provided the use was continuous and specific to that property.   
Since that time Council has discussed chickens in 2016 and 2018, both times no 
changes were made.  In July 2020, Council discussed the matter again at their 
Committee of the Whole meeting.  The result of the July discussion was to direct staff to 
draft an ordinance to include the following provisions: 

a. 10 “poultry,” to be licensed annually 
b. Kept in a clean, sanitary and enclosed structure 
c. 25-foot separation from neighboring residential dwellings 
d. Allow in residential (R) zoning districts 
e. Backyard area only 
f.  Termination of poultry for health reasons 

 
A brief explanation of the proposed code revisions follows: 
 
Section 6 relates to animals in Cedar Falls. Updates are made in sections 6-1 and 6-2 
to align with Iowa Code Chapter 717B and significant changes in Iowa law on animal 
neglect.  This includes a variety of definition updates and changes in section 6-42.  
Revised terminology is then carried throughout Section 6, including updated references 
to Cedar Falls positions.   
 
Definitions of poultry, coop and run have been added (Section 6-42).  Poultry is defined 
as one or more domesticated chicken, turkey, goose or duck. 
 
Section 6 includes a variety of provisions related to dogs and cats.  Many of these 
sections would pertain to allowing poultry, therefore poultry was added.  A requirement 
to obtain a license to have poultry is outlined in Section 6-45.  Section 6-60 works to 

84

Item 14.



 

 

include some of the potential types of noises that could occur having poultry, whereas 
this provision had focused only on dogs and cats previously.   
 
Section 6-301 to 6-308 incorporate many of the provisions the Council identified at the 
July 2020 Committee of the Whole meeting:  

 6-301 restricts poultry to the rear yard, requires a coop and run, identifies the 25’ 
spacing from another dwelling, ensures a corner lot observes an appropriate 
setback for such structures, requires the owner to live at the property, and allows 
poultry in a residential block (rather than noting “residential zoning district,” to 
give flexibility in a mixed use district for such use, but only if it’s a residentially 
used property). 

 6-302 requires a license and a land use permit, also noting all fees must be paid 
to issue a license. 

 6-303 states only female poultry may be kept and limits the total amount to 10. 

 6-304 outlines the coop requirements on minimum size, details it must be 
structurally sound and keep poultry safe and secure, as well as materials used 
for it must match the main structure.  It allows coops in a garage, provided they 
are detached garages.  Attached garages are part of the primary structure so 
they would potentially violate the restriction of not living with the animal and they 
also are not located in the rear yard. 

 6-305 relates to the poultry run, covering much of the same criteria as 304 just 
noting it is for the poultry run. 

 6-306 clarifies that a land use permit is required for the coop and run.  This will 
be the point where a dimensioned drawing shows the ordinance requirements on 
location and spacing are met.  The materials compliance will also be reviewed 
through this process.  If there’s a modification of the coop or run, a new land use 
permit must be obtained.  If no changes, then the land use permit will not apply 
with license renewals. 

 6-307 provides for revocation of the permit if the code is not met, which may 
include failure to maintain the coop and/or run in a safe and sanitary condition.  It 
further states that failure to comply also equates to a nuisance, thus allowing the 
City to abate it if compliance is not addressed by the owner. 

 6-308 addresses any potential health advisories where the keeping of poultry 
may be a public health issue. 

 
Council’s discussion in July concluded that the City’s nuisance code could deal with 
issues that may arise.  Therefore, staff reviewed this code section for any 
recommended changes.  Outside of what’s covered with the proposed amendments 
previously covered in this memo, a revision is recommended to Section 15-2 adding an 
item (43) related to declaring unsanitary conditions of coop and run a nuisance.  Also, 
Section 15-83 is slightly amended to remove terminology that may confuse (“fowl”) and 
be consistent with the simplified terminology of “animal” found in several revisions to 
Section 6.  Staff anticipates there will be nuisance and code enforcement issues, 
whether it is difficulty in addressing an aspect regulated by the code or an unanticipated 
one that arises.  Neighbors may not be satisfied with the limits of enforcement efforts.  It 
is likely that revisions or further restrictions may be needed, after experience 

85

Item 14.



 

 

implementing the ordinance.  
 
Staff extensively discussed whether there should be a requirement that poultry have a 
tag showing a license was obtained, similar to dogs and cats.  The difficulty is how to 
deal with tagging a growing animal.  A number of tags potentially must be issued.  This 
starts to get fairly involved, such that both administration and compliance may be 
challenging.  On the other side, lack of a tag may create enforcement issues.  
Neighbors complaining of a stray poultry, such as a duck or goose, may actually be 
complaining about a wild one.  Staff will have difficulty discerning the situation.  There 
could be many hours spent on enforcement with no real outcome. 
 
Due to the uniqueness of the types of fowl included in the definition of poultry and the 
likelihood of unanticipated issues or unsatisfactory code enforcement, staff would like to 
reiterate a recommendation to starting with a smaller number.  Three would be 
recommended.  After a year, the code could be reviewed including discussion on 
whether the number of poultry permitted should be expanded as well as any other code 
amendments that may be needed. 
 
Attached is a proposed ordinance for first reading at Council’s January 19, 2021 
meeting.  Should the ordinance continue toward adoption, a fee for poultry licenses will 
be included in the Council’s agenda after the third reading of the ordinance. 
 
 

 

86

Item 14.



1 
 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE (1).  REPEALING ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 6, ANIMALS, 

AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 6, 

ANIMALS, CONSISTING OF SECTION 6-1, AUTHORITY OF LAW ENFORCEMENT 

OFFICERS AND ANIMAL WARDENS; INTERFERENCE WITH OFFICER OR WARDEN; 

SECTION 6-2, ANIMAL NEGLECT; SECTION 6-3, ABANDONMENT OF CATS, DOGS OR 

POULTRY; SECTION 6-4, USE OF STREETS FOR DRIVING OR RIDING ANIMALS; 

SECTION 6-5, SECURING OF ANIMALS LEFT ON STREET; SECTION 6-6, RUNNING 

AT-LARGE PROHIBITED; GRAZING ON PUBLIC PROPERTY OR PROPERTY OF 

ANOTHER; SECTION 6-7, IMPOUNDMENT OF LIVESTOCK RUNNING AT-LARGE; 

SECTION 6-8, RECOVERY OF COSTS BY CITY FOR DAMAGE DONE BY ANIMALS; 

SECTION 6-9, DISPOSAL OF DEAD ANIMALS; SECTION 6-10, TRANSPORTATION OF 

DEAD ANIMALS; SECTION 6-11, ANIMALS CAUSING ANNOYANCE OR 

DISTURBANCE; AND SECTION 6-12, BUTCHERING OF ANIMALS PROHIBITED;  (2).  

REPEALING DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, ANIMAL CONTROL, OF 

CHAPTER 6, ANIMALS, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 1, 

GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, ANIMAL CONTROL, OF CHAPTER 6, ANIMALS, 

CONSISTING OF SECTION 6-42, DEFINITIONS; SECTION 6-43, LICENSE REQUIRED 

FOR DOGS, CATS AND POULTRY; SECTION 6-44, APPLICATION FOR DOG OR CAT 

LICENSE; SECTION 6-45, APPLICATION FOR POULTRY LICENSE; SECTION 6-46, 

DOG, CAT AND POULTRY LICENSE FEES; SECTION 6-47, RABIES VACCINATION 

FOR DOGS AND CATS; SECTION 6-48, ISSUANCE AND USE OF DOG OR CAT 

LICENSE TAG; SECTION 6-49, DURATION OF DOG, CAT OR POULTRY LICENSE; 

TRANSFER OF TAG OR LICENSE; SECTION 6-50, IMPLIED CONSENT TO 

INSPECTION OF PROPERTY OF PERSON OBTAINING DOG, CAT OR POULTRY 

LICENSE; SECTION 6-51, EXCEPTIONS TO DOG, CAT AND POULTRY LICENSE 

REQUIREMENTS; SECTION 6-52, ANIMAL POUND; SECTION 6-53, IMPOUNDMENT 

OF DOGS, CATS OR POULTRY RUNNING AT-LARGE; SECTION 6-54, REDEMPTION 

OF IMPOUNDED ANIMALS; SECTION 6-55, DISPOSITION OF IMPOUNDED ANIMALS 

FOR CERTAIN PURPOSES PROHIBITED; SECTION 6-56, DUTY TO REPORT 

ATTACKS BY ANIMALS AND KNOWN OR SUSPECTED CASES OF RABIES; SECTION 

6-57, CONFINEMENT OF ANIMAL BITING PERSON OR SUSPECTED OF HAVING 

RABIES; SECTION 6-58, PERMITTING DOG, CAT OR POULTRY TO RUN AT-LARGE; 

SECTION 6-59, PERMITTING DOG OR CAT TO ATTACK PERSONS OR ANIMALS, 

DESTROY PROPERTY; SECTION 6-60, NOISY DOGS, CATS OR POULTRY; SECTION 

6-61, CONFINEMENT OF DOGS OR CATS IN HEAT; SECTION 6-62, CLEANUP OF 

ANIMAL DROPPINGS; SECTION 6-63, DUTY OF OWNER TO KEEP PREMISES IN 

SANITARY CONDITION; SECTION 6-64, ARTIFICIALLY COLORED ANIMALS; SECTION 

6-65, SALE OF BABY FOWL OR USE AS PRIZE, PREMIUM; SECTION 6-66, CARE OF 

BABY FOWL DISPLAYED TO PUBLIC; SECTON 6-67, GIVING AWAY ANIMAL AS 

87

Item 14.



2 
 

BUSINESS INDUCEMENT; SECTION 6-68, DISPLAY OF WILD ANIMALS; SECTION 6-

69, DUTY OF OWNER REGARDING CARE OF ANIMALS; AND SECTION 6-70, 

ANIMALS PROHIBITED; STURGIS FALLS CELEBRATION AND CEDAR BASIN JAZZ 

FESTIVAL; (3).  REPEALING DIVISION 3, DANGEROUS ANIMALS, OF ARTICLE II, 

ANIMAL CONTROL, OF CHAPTER 6, ANIMALS, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A 

NEW DIVISION 3, DANGEROUS ANIMALS, OF ARTICLE II, ANIMAL CONTROL, OF 

CHAPTER 6, ANIMALS, CONSISTING OF SECTION 6-131, DEFINITION; SECTION 6-

132, AUTHORITY TO IMPOUND OR REQUIRE CONFINEMENT; SECTION 6-133, 

NOTICE OF IMPOUNDMENT; SECTION 6-134, DISPOSITION OF IMPOUNDED 

ANIMALS; SECTION 6-135, NOTICE OF DESTRUCTION OF ANIMAL; APPEAL; 

SECTION 6-136, PAYMENT OF IMPOUNDMENT FEES; AND SECTION 6-137, 

HARBORING PROHIBITED; (4). REPEALING DIVISION 4, AGRICULTURAL NON-

DOMESTIC ANIMALS AND EXOTIC ANIMALS, OF ARTICLE II, ANIMAL CONTROL, OF 

CHAPTER 6, ANIMALS, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 4, 

AGRICULTURAL NON-DOMESTIC ANIMALS AND EXOTIC ANIMALS, CONSISTING OF 

SECTION 6-158, KEEPING OF AGRICULTURAL ANIMALS; SECTION 6-159, KEEPING 

OF CHICKENS AS NONCOMFORMING USE; AND SECTION 6-160, INDOOR PETS; ALL 

IN THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Article I, In General, of Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Article I, In General, is 

enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL  

Sec. 6-1. - Authority of law enforcementpolice officers and animal wardenshumane officers; interference 

with officer or warden.  

Law enforcement officers and animal wardensIn addition to any police officer of the city, an officer of 
the humane society shall have police powers in the enforcement of this chapter. No person shall interfere 
with, hinder, molest or abuse any such officer or wardenpolice officer or humane officer in the exercise of 
such powers. For the purpose of discharging the duties imposed by this chapter and to enforce its 
provisions, any law enforcementpolice officer or animal wardenhumane officer is empowered to enter 
upon any premises upon which a dog, cat, poultry, horse or other animal is kept or harbored, to demand 
the exhibition by the owner of a dog, or cat or poultry of the required license for the dog, or cat or poultry 
and the exhibition of any requiredthe rabies vaccination tag, and, consistent with state law, to rescue 
animals threatened with abuse, neglect or tortureinvestigate possible cruelty cases.  

(Code 2017, § 6-1)  

Sec. 6-2. - Animal neglect.  

(a)  A person commits animal neglect when the person owns or has custody of an animal, and fails to 
provide the animal with any of the following conditions for the animal’s welfarewho impounds or 
confines, in any place, an animal is guilty of animal neglect if the person does any of the following:  

88

Item 14.



3 
 

(1)  Access to food in an amount and quality reasonably sufficient to satisfy the animal’s basic 
nutrition level to the extent the animal’s health or life is endangered.Fails to supply the animal 
during confinement with a sufficient quantity of food or water.  

(2)  Access to a supply of potable water in an amount reasonably sufficient to satisfy the animal’s 
basic hydration level to the extent that the animal’s health or life is endangered.  Access to 
snow or ice does not satisfy this requirement.Fails to provide a confined dog or cat with 
adequate shelter.  

(3)  Sanitary conditions free from excessive animal waste or the overcrowding of animals to the 
extent that the animal’s health or life is endangered.Tortures, deprives of necessary 
sustenance, mutilates, beats, or kills an animal by any means which causes unjustified pain, 
distress, or suffering. 

(4)     Ventilated shelter reasonably sufficient to provide adequate protection from the elements and 
weather conditions suitable for the age, species, and physical condition of the animal so as to 
maintain the animal in a state of good health to the extent that the animal’s health or life is 
endangered.  The shelter must protect the animal from wind, rain, snow, or sun and have 
adequate bedding to provide reasonable protection against cold and dampness.  A shelter may 
include a residence, garage, barn, shed, poultry coop or doghouse. 

(5)     Grooming to the extent it is reasonably necessary to prevent adverse health effects or 
suffering. 

(6)     Veterinary care deemed necessary by a reasonably prudent person to relieve an animal’s 
distress from any of the following: 

     i)     A condition caused by failing to provide for the animal’s welfare as described in this section. 

     ii)     An injury or illness suffered by the animal causing the animal to suffer prolonged pain and 
suffering.  

(b)  This section does not apply to any of the following:a research facility, as defined in Iowa Code § 
162.2, provided that the research facility performs functions within the scope of accepted practices 
and disciplines associated with the research facility. 

     1)     A person issued or renewed an authorization to operate a commercial establishment, or a person 
acting under the direction or supervision of that person, if all of the following apply: 

          i)  The animal, as described in subsection (a), was maintained as part of the commercial 
establishment’s operation. 

          ii)     In providing conditions for the welfare of the animal, as described in subsection (a), the person 
complied with the standard of care requirements provided in Iowa Code section 162.10A, subsection 
1, including any applicable rules adopted by the state department of agriculture and land stewardship 
applying to any of the following: 

               A)     A state licensee or registrant operating pursuant to Iowa Code section 162.10A, 
subsection 2, paragraph a or b. 

                B)     A permittee operating pursuant to Iowa Code section 162.10A, subsection 2, paragraph c. 

     2)     A research facility, as defined in Iowa Code section 162.2, if the research facility has been issued 
or renewed a valid authorization by the state department of agriculture and land stewardship 
pursuant to Iowa Code chapter 162, and performs functions within the scope of accepted practices 
and disciplines associated with the research facility.   

(c)  A person who commitsnegligently or intentionally commits the offense of animal neglect that does 
not cause injury, serious injury, or death to an animal is guilty of a simple misdemeanor.  

(d)  It shall be the duty of any law enforcementpolice officer or animal warden to seize and place in a 
proper animal shelter or animal pound any animal threatened with abuse, neglect or torturecruelly 
treated as prohibited by this section.  

89

Item 14.



4 
 

(Code 2017, § 6-2; Ord. No. 1967, § 2, 2-11-1992)  

Sec. 6-3. - Abandonment of cats, and dogs or poultry.  

A person who has ownership or custody of a cat, or dog or poultry shall not abandon such animalthe 
cat or dog, except the person may deliver the animalcat or dog to another person who will accept 
ownership and custody or the person may deliver such animalthe cat or dog to an animal shelter or 
animal pound as defined in Iowa Code § 162.2. A person who violates this section is guilty of a simple 
misdemeanor. If a person is found guilty of a violation of this section or section 6-2, the disposition of the 
neglected or abused animal shall be determined by the court.  

(Code 2017, § 6-2.1; Ord. No. 1967, § 3, 2-11-1992)  

Sec. 6-4. - Use of streets for driving or riding animals.  

No person having the care, custody or control of any driving or riding animal upon any street in the 
city shall permit such animal to exit a street beyond the curb lines, or edge of a street with no curbs, 
except in the case of domestic pets.  

(Code 2017, § 6-3)  

Sec. 6-5. - Securing of animals left on street.  

It shall be unlawful for any person to leave standing loose or not securely tied to some post or other 
thing sufficient to restrain such animal from being at-large or running away, on any of the streets or other 
places outside of an enclosure within the limits of the city, any team or animal used for riding or driving, 
without the team or animal being in immediate charge of some person.  

(Code 2017, § 6-4)  

Sec. 6-6. - Running at-large prohibited; grazing on public property or property of another.  

(a)  No horses, mules, jacks, cattle, swine, goats, sheep, hens, chickens, geese, ducks, turkeys or any 
other livestock animal or fowl shall be permitted to run at-large within the corporate limits of the city, 
nor shall any animal be permitted to be staked or tied out to graze on or in front of any person's 
premises without the consent of such person, nor shall any animal be permitted to be staked or tied 
out to graze in any of the public propertystreets of the city.  

(b)  No owner or person having charge of any animal, stock or fowl shall permit the animal to run at-
large or to be staked out contrary to the provisions of this section.  

(Code 2017, § 6-6)  

Sec. 6-7. - Impoundment of livestock running at-large.  

(a)  Authority of law enforcementpolice officers and animal wardens. It shall be the duty of any member 
of the public safety services departmentpolice operations division as well as animal wardens, when 
on duty, to take up, distrain and impound any animal or fowl found running at-large contrary to the 
provisions of section 6-6, and care for the animal until the animal's sale or release as provided in this 
section. Such animalstock shall be impounded in a proper animal shelter, animal pound, or other 
suitable place pending sale or release.the city pound, or in such other suitable place as may be 
designated by the mayor in case the council fails to provide a city pound.  

90

Item 14.



5 
 

(b)  Confinement by private persons. Any person may take upon his own premises and distrain any 
animal or fowl running at-large contrary to the provisions of section 6-6 and endangering such 
person's or another's safety or property. Such person shall give notice forthwith to the public safety 
services departmentpolice operations division, or he may deliver such animal or fowl immediately to 
the public safety services departmentpolice operations division. In either case, the public safety 
services departmentpolice operations division shall impound the animal as authorized in subsection 
(a) of this section.  

(c)  Notice of impoundment. Within 24 hours after the impoundment of any animal or fowl pursuant to 
this section, the chief of police shall post aton the door of the city hall or council chamber, in some 
conspicuous place in the place of impoundmentcity pound or place of impounding and at some 
public place in the city, a notice particularly describing the animal or fowl impounded and calling on 
the owner thereof to identify and take charge of the animal after paying the fees and expenses 
incurred in the taking, impounding and keeping of such animal or fowl. The chief of police shall serve 
such notice personally on the owner if known.  

(d)  Sale of unredeemed animals.  

(1)  If a distrained animal or fowl has not been redeemed pursuant to the notice of distraint required 
by this section, the chief of police shall give notice of the sale of such animal or fowl after the 
expiration of two days from the time of impoundment. Such sale shall be at a public auction in 
front of the city pound or other place of impoundment, and it shall be held between the hours of 
1:00 p.m. and 4:00 p.m. on a day not less than three days nor more than ten days from the date 
of posting notices. The day of posting shall be counted as the first day.  

(2)  The notice of distraint required by subsection (c) of this section shall contain a description of 
the animal or fowl and shall state the time and place of sale.  

(3)  At the time and place fixed for the sale in the notice, the chief of police shall proceed to sell 
such animal or fowl for cash at such public auction to the highest and best bidder therefor. In 
case no bid is received, or if in the opinion of the chief it is impossible to sell such animal or 
fowl, the chiefhe shall humanely dispose of the animal. Within three days after the sale, the 
chief shall pay to the finance officer the proceeds of such sale.  

(e)  Redemption by owner. The owner of any animal or fowl impounded in accordance with the 
provisions of this section may redeem the animal at any time before the sale thereof upon the 
payment to the chief of police of all costs and expenses, including the costs of advertising, and after 
having first furnished to the chief satisfactory proof of ownership.  

(f)  Disposition of proceeds of sale. After the sale authorized in subsection (d) of this section, the 
treasurer shall pay the balance, if any, remaining from the sale of the stock to the owner thereof, 
upon the written order of the mayor, provided such owner shall establish the owner’shis claim thereto 
before the mayor within one year from the date of the sale. After the expiration of one year, the 
money shall be declared forfeited to the city.  

(g)  Redemption fees. Any person claiming any animal or fowl impounded in accordance with this 
section shall pay the chief of police such amounts as established by the council resolution from time 
to time for each animal of every kind and for each fowl, for the discharge of such animalstock. The 
chief shall charge a further sum per head for each day's keeping of such animalswine and sheep, for 
each day's keeping of any other animal and for each fowl, and for the cost of advertising if the animal 
has been advertised.  

(Code 2017, § 6-7; Ord. No. 2028, § 2, 8-23-1993)  

91

Item 14.



6 
 

Sec. 6-8. - Recovery of costs by city for damage done by animals.  

The city shall have a right of action in all cases against the owner or person in control of any of the 
animals or fowl mentioned in section 6-6 for all damages to public property.  

(Code 2017, § 6-8)  

Sec. 6-9. - Disposal of dead animals.  

No person shall place or allow to be placed any dead animal or fowl in any public right-of-way or 
other public place in the city. No person shall allow any dead animal or fowl which the person owned or 
had control over at the time of death to remain in any public right-of-way or other public place for more 
than 24 hours after death. No person shall allow any dead animal or fowl to remain on such person's 
premises for more than 24 hours after death. Such persons, and all other persons in possession of a 
dead animal or fowl within the city, shall properly dispose of such dead animal or fowl within 24 hours.  

(Ord. No. 2918, § 1, 4-2-2018)  

Sec. 6-10. - Transportation of dead animals.  

No person shall take, draw, haul or carry any dead animal through any street of the city without first 
securely covering and protecting such animal in a manner that will screen the animal from public view and 
exposure.  

(Code 2017, § 6-10)  

Sec. 6-11. -– AnimalsCats causing annoyance or disturbance.  

(a)  It shall be unlawful for any person keeping, owning or sheltering any animala cat to allow or permit 
such animal to cause annoyance or otherwise interfere with the premises of another, or by frequent 
and habitual noise makinghowling, yelping or otherwise cause serious annoyance or disturbance to 
reasonable persons.  

(b)  No person shall be convicted under the provisions of this section except upon evidence of two or 
more reasonable persons of different households.  

(Code 2017, § 6-13)  

Sec. 6-12. - Butchering of animals prohibited.  

Except as authorized in section 16-15, no person shall within the city limits slaughter, butcher or 
process any animal or fowl on public property or, within the sensory perception of any person not on the 
same premises, on private property. Any remains must be disposed of in a sanitary manner and in 
accordance with the law. Field dressing by authorized hunters of animals and fowl slaughtered in the 
areas designated for hunting in section 16-15 shall be allowed in those areas.  

(Ord. No. 2918, § 2, 4-2-2018; Ord. No. 2928, § 1, 8-20-2018) 

       Section 2.    Division 1, Generally, of Article II, Animal Control, of Chapter 6, Animals, of the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new 

Division 1, Generally, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

92

Item 14.



7 
 

ARTICLE II. - ANIMAL CONTROL  

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY  

Sec. 6-423. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Animal means any living creature, domestic or wild.  

Animal control agency means any incorporated society or organization for the prevention of cruelty to 
animals with which the city council has entered into a contract for the performance of duties with respect 
to dangerous animals under this article.  

Animal control officer means any employee of the animal control agency designated by the agency 
to perform duties with respect to dangerous animals under this article.  

Animal control officials means a committee, consisting of the animal control officer, the chief animal 
control officer and such other persons as may be designated by the chief animal control officer.  

Animal pound or shelter means a facility for the prevention of cruelty to animals operated by the 
state, city or other political subdivision for the purpose of impounding or harboring seized stray, at large, 
homeless, abandoned, or unwanted animals, or animals threatened with abuse, neglect or torture; or a 
facility operated for such purpose under a contract with the city or incorporated society.any premises, 
either designated by or contracted for by the city council, for the proper care of impounded animals held 
under the authority of this article. 

Animal shelter means a facility which is used to house or contain dogs or cats, or both, and which is 
owned, operated, or maintained by an incorporated humane society, animal welfare society, society for 
the prevention of cruelty to animals, or other nonprofit organization devoted to the welfare, protection, and 
humane treatment of such animals. 

Animal warden means any person employed, contracted, or appointed by the state, city or other 
political subdivision, for the purpose of aiding in the enforcement of the provisions of this chapter or any 
other state or federal law or ordinance relating to the licensing of animals, control of animals or seizure 
and impoundment of animals and includes any law enforcement officer, animal control officer, or other 
employee whose duties in whole or in part include assignments which involve the seizure or taking into 
custody of any animal.    

At large means running or found loose within the city upon any street, alley, sidewalk or public or 
private grounds. A dog or cat, or poultry, properly licensed as required by this article, shall not be deemed 
at-large if it is:  

(1)  On the premises of the owner and, in the case of poultry, either confined in a poultry coop or 
poultry run or under the direct physical control of the owner;  

(2)  Under the control of a person competent to restrain and control the dog or cat, either by leash, 
cord, chain or other similar restraint not more than ten feet in length, or properly restrained 
within a motor vehicle;  

(3)  Properly housed in a veterinary hospital or licensed kennel;  

(4)  Accompanied by or at heel beside and obedient to the commands of the owner or a competent 
responsible person unless the dog is on a recreational trail. Dogs on recreational trails must be 
on a leash of six feet or less in length as required in section 17-275(3); or  

(5)  A dog which is either under the control of a person competent to restrain and control the dog, 
or which is accompanied by or at heel beside and obedient to the commands of the owner or a 
competent responsible person, and which is within the confines of an authorized off-leash dog 

93

Item 14.



8 
 

exercise facility as described in section 17-209, provided that such person is at all times in 
compliance with all of the provisions of such section.  

Cat means all members of the species Felis domestica, male or female, whether altered or not.  

Chief animal control officer means the chief executive officer or head of the animal control agency. 

Code enforcement officer means any city employee, officer or contractor authorized to enforce the 
ordinances of the city.  

Dog means all members of the canine species, male or female, whether altered or not.  

Health department means the health department of the city or county.  

Horse means an animal of the genus Equus and species caballus.  

Humane officer means any person designated by the humane society as a law enforcement officer 
and who qualifies to perform such duties under the laws of the state.  

Humane society means any organization for the prevention of cruelty to animals incorporated under 
the laws of the state.  

Kennel means any premises on which four or more dogs or four or more cats, four months old or 
older are kept. The term shall not include a veterinary hospital.  

Owner means any person owning, keeping or harboring an dog, cat, horse or other animal. 

Pet shop means any person engaged in the business of breeding, buying, selling or boarding 
animals of any species, except the operation of a kennel or agricultural or wildlife pursuits. 

Poultry means one or more domesticated chicken, turkey, goose or duck.   

Poultry coop means a structure for the housing of poultry. 

Poultry run means an enclosed outdoor area within which poultry can roam. 

Riding school or stable means any person engaged in the business of teaching persons to ride 
horses, or providing horses to ride for a fee.  

(Code 2017, § 6-41; Ord. No. 2223, § 1, 3-23-1998; Ord. No. 2337, § 1, 6-11-2001; Ord. No. 

2688, § 1, 7-13-2009)  

Sec. 6-434. - License required for dogs, and cats and poultry.  

The owners of all dogs and cats four months old or older, and of poultry four weeks old or older, shall 
annually obtain a license for such animal or animalstherefore as provided in this article.  

(Code 2017, § 6-42; Ord. No. 2223, § 2, 3-23-1998)  

Sec. 6-445. - Application for dog or cat license.  

(a)  The owner of a dog or cat for which a license is required shall, on or before January 1 of each year, 
apply to the city clerk or to the designee of said city clerk for a license for each owned dog or cat 
owned by him. Such application for license may be made after January 1, and at any time, for a dog 
or cat which has come into the possession or ownership of the applicant, or which has reached the 
age of licensurefour months after such date.   

(b)  The application shall be in writing on blanks provided by the city clerk, and shall state the breed, 
sex, age, color, markings and name, if any, of the dog or cat, and the name and address of the 
owner, and be signed by the owner. Such application shall also state the date of the most recent 
rabies vaccination, the type of vaccine administered and the date the dog or cat shall be 
revaccinated. 

94

Item 14.



9 
 

Sec. 6-45. –Application for poultry license. 

(a)     The owner of poultry for which a license is required shall, on or before January 1 of each year, 
apply to the city clerk or designee for a license for all owned poultry.  Only one license shall be 
required, regardless of the number of poultry owned, up to the maximum number allowed under 
section 6-303.  Such application for license may be made after January 1, and at any time, for 
poultry which has come into the possession or ownership of the applicant, or which has reached 
the age of licensure after such date.  

(b)     The application shall be in writing on blanks provided by the city clerk, and shall state the total 
number of poultry, the name and address of the owner, and shall be signed by the owner.  

(c)     Poultry may be replaced during the period of the license without obtaining a new license if the 
total number of poultry is not increased by such replacement.  A reduction in the total number of 
poultry shall not require a new license but an increase in the total number of poultry shall require a 
new license. 

(d)     License tags shall not be required for poultry.       

  

(Code 2017, § 6-43; Ord. No. 2223, § 3, 3-23-1998)  

Sec. 6-46. -– Dog, and cat and poultry license fees.  

(a)  Dogs and catsGenerally. The annual license fee for each male dog or cat or spayed dog or cat or 
female dog or cat incapable of reproduction and for each unspayed female dog or cat shall be in an 
amount established annually by resolution ofby the city council. The license fee for all dogs or cats 
kept in a kennel shall be waived so long as the owner of the kennel dogs or cats pays the annual 
kennel fee and complies with all other requirements for kennels as contained in section 6-99. 
However, the owner of all dogs or cats four months old or older must comply with all provisions of 
this article, including obtaining a rabies vaccination and license tag, even though the license fee has 
been waived. A written certificate from a licensed veterinarian shall be required to prove that a male 
dog or cat has been altered or that a female dog or cat has been spayed or is incapable of 
reproduction. 

(b)   Poultry.  The annual license fee for poultry shall be in an amount established annually by resolution 
of the city council.   

(cb)  Delinquency. All license fees for dogs, or cats and poultry become delinquent on April 1 in the year 
in which they are due and payable, and a penalty in an amount to be established annually by the city 
council shall be added to each unpaid license fee on or after such date.  

(Code 2017, § 6-44; Ord. No. 2006, § 3, 3-1-1993; Ord. No. 2067, § 4, 10-10-1994; Ord. No. 

2223, § 4, 3-23-1998)  

Sec. 6-47. - Rabies vaccination for dogs and cats.  

(a)  Vaccination prerequisite for obtaining license. Before a license is issued for any dog or cat, the 
owner must present evidence with the application for the license that the dog or cat has been 
vaccinated against rabies. Such evidence shall be a certificate of vaccination signed by a licensed 
veterinarian, and the certificate shall show that the vaccination does not expire within six months 
from the effective date of the dog or cat license.  

95

Item 14.



10 
 

(b)  Administration of vaccine; rabies tag. The rabies vaccination required by subsection (a) of this 
section shall be an injection of antirabies vaccine approved by the state department of agriculture, 
and the frequency of revaccination necessary for approved vaccination shall be as established by 
such department. The vaccine shall be administered by a licensed veterinarian and shall be given as 
approved by the state department of agriculture. The veterinarian shall issue a tag with a certificate 
of vaccination, and such tag shall at all times be attached to the collar of the dog or cat.  

(c)  Vaccination required. Every owner of a dog or cat shall obtain a rabies vaccination for such animal. 
It shall be unlawful for any person to own or have a dog or cat in his possession four months of age 
or over which has not been vaccinated against rabies.  

(Code 2017, § 6-45; Ord. No. 2006, § 4, 3-1-1993)  

Sec. 6-48. - Issuance and use of dog or cat license tag.  

(a)  The city clerk or the designee of the city clerk shall, upon receipt of the application for a dog or cat 
license, payment of the license fee and proof of rabies vaccination, deliver or mail to the applicant a 
license, which shall be in the form of a metal tag.  

(b)  The license tag shall be attached by the owner of a dog or cat to a substantial collar, and, during the 
term of the license, the collar, with attached license, shall be at all times kept on the dog or cat for 
which the license is issued. On the expiration of the license, the owner shall not remove the license 
tag from the dog or cat until the owner has purchased and attached a new current license tag for the 
dog or cat.  

(Code 2017, § 6-46; Ord. No. 2223, § 5, 3-23-1998)  

Sec. 6-49. - Duration of dog, or cat or poultry license; transfer of tag or license.  

(a)  Duration of license; transfer of tag. All dog, and cat and poultry licenses shall expire on January 1 of 
the year following the date of issuance. A license tag issued for one dog or cat shall not be 
transferable to another dog or cat.  

(b)  Transfer of license. When the permanent ownership of a dog, or cat or poultry is transferred, the 
license for the dog, or cat or poultry may be transferred by the city clerk by notation on the license 
record giving the name and address of the new owner.  

(Code 2017, § 6-47)  

Sec. 6-50. - Implied consent to inspection of property of person obtaining dog, or cat or poultry license.  

The application for and the receipt of a dog, or cat or poultry license shall include an implied consent 
by the owner to permit an inspection of both real and personal property under the owner’shis control for 
the purpose of carrying out the provisions of this article., including inspection for cruelty to animals.  

(Code 2017, § 6-48)  

Sec. 6-51. - Exceptions to dog, and cat and poultry license requirements.  

The requirements of this article for licenses for dogs, or cats and poultry shall not apply to dogs, or 
cats or poultry that are under the control of the owners or handlers and which are in transit or to be 
exhibited, or to nonresidents of the city, if they are in the state for less than 30 days, or which are 
assigned to a research institution or like facility.  

96

Item 14.



11 
 

(Code 2017, § 6-49)  

Sec. 6-52. - Animal pound.  

(a)  Establishment by city.  

(1)  The city may establish and maintain a municipal animal pound or shelter to be conducted and 
operated by the city.  

(2)  It shall be the duty of the authorized person appointed by the city to supervise and control such 
pound or shelter to cause it to be kept in a sanitary condition and free from offensive odors, to 
provide for adequate wholesome food for animals impounded therein, to provide careful and 
humane treatment toward such animals, and to isolate diseased animals and provide for 
humane destruction of animals when necessary.  

(b)  Authority to contract for care and disposition of animals in lieu of establishing pound. The city may, 
in lieu of the establishment and maintenance of animal pounds, contract with any incorporated 
society or association for the prevention of cruelty to animals or with another municipality or other 
political subdivision, for the collection and protection of licensed or unlicensed dogs, cats and other 
animals or the maintenance of a shelter or pound for licensed or unlicensed dogs, cats or other 
animals, for the collection of dogs or cats or other animals at-large, for the destruction or other 
disposition of seized dogs or cats or other animals not redeemed as provided by ordinance, for the 
disposal of dead animals, and to assist in the collection of licenses upon dogs, and cats and poultry.  

(Code 2017, § 6-50)  

Sec. 6-53. - Impoundment of dogs, or cats or poultry running at-large.  

Any dog, or cat or poultry found running at-large shall be apprehended and impounded. When such 
dog, or cat or poultry has been apprehended and impounded, the public safety servicespolice department 
or animal wardenhumane officer shall post written notice on the residence of the dog, or cat or poultry 
owner, if such owner is known. The impounding agency shall also post notice of the impounded dog, or 
cat or poultry on its website, if such owner is known. If the owner does not redeem the dog, or cat or 
poultry as provided in section 6-52, the dog, or cat or poultry may be humanely destroyed or otherwise 
disposed of in accordance with law. The impoundment and disposition provisions of this section do not 
apply to animals impounded under division 3 of this article.  

(Code 2017, § 6-51; Ord. No. 2688, § 2, 7-13-2009)  

Sec. 6-54. - Redemption of impounded animals.  

Any unlicensed dog, or cat or poultry or any other animal restrained or impounded in accordance 
with provisions of this article shall be held for a period of five days if there is no known owner. Any dog, or 
cat or poultry restrained or impounded that is licensed or wearing a rabies tag will be held for a period of 
seven days. Litters of puppies and kittens may only be held for 24 hours. At the end of the five- or seven-
day period, the owner of the dog, or cat, poultry or other animal may redeem the animal by obtaining the 
required license and/or rabies vaccination if required, and by paying the cost of impoundment, which shall 
include a pickup fee and a daily boarding fee. The cost of impoundment paid to the impounding 
agencyhumane society shall be retained by the impounding agencyhumane society. The impoundment 
and disposition provisions of this section do not apply to animals impounded under division 3 of this 
article.  

(Code 2017, § 6-52; Ord. No. 2688, § 3, 7-13-2009)  

97

Item 14.



12 
 

Sec. 6-55. - Disposition of impounded animals for certain purposes prohibited.  

It shall be unlawful for any person employed by the city or any person employed by or connected 
with the animal pound or shelter, or any society or organization operating or maintaining such pound or 
shelter under lease or contract with the city, to sell, give away or dispose of, through any pretext or by any 
device or means whatsoever, any dog or cat or other animal impounded in such pound to any person for 
the purpose of using such dog or cat or other animal as food, or for the purpose of medical 
experimentation unless the institution desiring such dog or cat or other animal for medical 
experimentation is duly approved and authorized by the state to conduct such experimentation, or for any 
other purpose except for pets and related activities.  

(Code 2017, § 6-53)  

Sec. 6-56. - Duty to report attacks by animals and known or suspected cases of rabies.  

It shall be the duty of the owner of any dog or cat or any other animal which has bitten or attacked a 
person, or any person having knowledge of such bite or attack, to report this act to the health department, 
police operations division or animal wardenhumane officer. It shall be the duty of physicians or 
veterinarians to report to the health department the existence of any animal known or suspected to be 
suffering from rabies.  

(Code 2017, § 6-54)  

Sec. 6-57. - Confinement of animal biting person or suspected of having rabies.  

Whenever a law enforcement officer or animal wardenmember of the health department or police 
operations division or humane officer receives information that any person has been bitten by an animal, 
or that a dog, cat or other animal is suspected of having rabies, he or she shall order the owner to confine 
such animal in anythe manner as directedhe directs. If the owner fails to confine such animal in the 
manner directed, the animal shall be apprehended and impounded by such official, and after two weeks 
the animal may be humanely destroyed. If such animal is returned to its owner, the owner shall pay the 
cost of impoundment, which shall include a pickup fee and a daily boarding fee.  

(Code 2017, § 6-55)  

Sec. 6-58. - Permitting dog, or cat or poultry to run at-large.  

(a)  Prohibition. It shall be unlawful for the owner of a dog, or cat or poultry to:  

(1)  Generally. Permit or allow a dog, or cat or poultry to be at-large. Any dog, or cat or poultry 
found at-large shall be presumed to be so with the permission of its owner and proof that such 
dog, or cat or poultry was at-large, and of ownership, shall constitute in evidence a prima facie 
presumption in any proceeding charging any violation of this section.  

(2)  Cemeteries. Permit or allow asuch dog, or cat or poultry to be in any public cemetery at any 
time.  

(3)  Public parks and playgrounds. When signposted, permit such dog or cat to be in a public 
playground or park during the last Friday, Saturday and Sunday of June each and every year, 
except if such animal is part of an organized public activity.  

(b)  Exceptions. The foregoing subsections (a)(2) and (a)(3) of this section shall not apply to service 
dogs or assistive animals used by handicapped persons.  

98

Item 14.



13 
 

(c)  Repeated violations. Any owner of a dog, or cat or poultry who has been found in violation of this 
section on three or more occasions within a two-year period immediately prior to impoundment of an 
animal found to be in violation of this section, shall not have the right to redeem such animal from 
impoundment as provided for in section 6-54. Instead, the animal shall be disposed of as provided 
for in section 6-55.  

(Code 2017, § 6-56; Ord. No. 1961, § 1, 11-25-1991; Ord. No. 2778, § 1, 8-27-2012)  

Sec. 6-59. - Permitting dog or cat to attack persons or animals or, destroy property, etc.  

It shall be unlawful for the owner of a dog or cat to permit such dog or cat to attack persons, 
domestic animals or destroy property, or to permit such dog or cat to place persons in reasonable fear of 
attack or injury. Proof of ownership of a dog or cat and that the dog or cat did attack persons or domestic 
animals, destroy property or place persons in reasonable fear of attack or injury shall constitute in 
evidence a prima facie presumption of permission of the owner in any proceeding charging violation of 
this section.  

(Code 2017, § 6-57)  

Sec. 6-60. - Noisy dogs, or cats or poultry.  

(a)  It shall be unlawful for the owner of a dog, or cat or poultry to permit or allow such animal alone or in 
combination with othersthe dog or cat to cause serious annoyance or disturbance to a reasonable 
person by frequent and habitual howling, whining, yelping, or barking, crowing, quacking, gobbling, 
honking, chirping, calling or other noises.  

(b)  It shall be unlawful for the owner of a dog, or cat or poultry to permit or allow the animaldog or cat to 
howl, whine, yelp, bark, crow, quack, gobble, honk, chirp, call, or otherwise make noise annoying or 
disturbing to a reasonable person for more than 15 minutes in duration (whether consecutive or not) 
in any 24 hour-period within the city.  

(c)  Proof of ownership of a dog, or cat or poultry shall constitute in evidence a prima facie presumption 
of permission of the owner in any proceedings charging any violation of this section.  

(Code 2017, § 6-58; Ord. No. 2778, § 2, 8-27-2012)  

Sec. 6-61. - Confinement of female dogs or cats in heat.  

The owner of any female dog or cat in heat shall confine the female dog or cat in a building, or keep 
the dog or cat in his presence, so that the female dog or cat cannot come into contact with another animal 
except for planned breeding.  

(Code 2017, § 6-59)  

Sec. 6-62. - Cleanup of animal droppings.  

It shall be unlawful for any owner or person in charge of an dog, cat, horse or other animal to fail to 
clean up and remove as soon as possible any excrement or droppings deposited by the dog, cat, horse or 
other animal on any real estate, whether privately or publicly owned, other than on the premises of the 
owner or person in charge.  

(Code 2017, § 6-60)  

99

Item 14.



14 
 

Sec. 6-63. - Duty of owner to keep premises in sanitary condition.  

It shall be unlawful for the owner or person in charge of any dog, cat, poultry, horse or other animal 
to permit excrement or droppings from any of such animals to collect on the premises of the owner or 
person in charge, causing odor or unsanitary conditions. Failure to keep the premises in a clean and 
sanitary condition shall be deemed a nuisance and may be abated as provided in chapter 15.  

(Code 2017, § 6-61)  

Sec. 6-64. - Artificially colored animals.  

No chick, duckling, gosling, poult or rabbit that has been dyed or otherwise colored artificially may be 
sold or offered for sale, raffled, offered or given as a prize, premium or advertising device, or displayed in 
any store, shop, carnival or other public place.  

(Code 2017, § 6-62)  

Sec. 6-65. - Sale of baby fowl or use as prize, premium, etc.  

Chicks, ducklings, poults, and goslings and other fowl younger than four weeks of age may not be 
sold or offered for sale, raffled or offered or given as a prize, premium or advertising device, in quantity of 
less than 12 birds to an individual person, unless sold by a person engaged in the business of selling 
such animalschicks, ducklings and goslings for agricultural or wildlife purposes.  

(Code 2017, § 6-63)  

Sec. 6-66. - Care of baby fowl displayed to public.  

Stores, shops, vendors and others displaying chicks, ducklings, poults, or goslings or other fowl to 
the public shall provide and operate brooders or other heating devices that may be necessary to maintain 
the animalschicks, ducklings or goslings in good health, and shall keep adequate food and water 
available to the animalsbirds at all times.  

(Code 2017, § 6-64)  

Sec. 6-67. - Giving away animal as business inducement.  

No person shall give away any live vertebrate animal as a prize for or as an inducement to enter any 
contest, game or other competition, or as an inducement to enter a place of amusement, or offer such 
vertebrate as an incentive to enter into any business agreement whereby the offer was for the purpose of 
attracting trade.  

(Code 2017, § 6-65)  

Sec. 6-68. - Display of wild animals.  

No person shall keep or permit to be kept on his premises any wild or vicious animal for display or for 
exhibition purposes, whether gratuitously or for a fee. This section shall not be construed so as to apply to 
a theatrical exhibit or circus, except that no theatrical exhibit or act shall be held in which animals are 
encouraged to perform through the use of chemical, electrical or mechanical devices.  

100

Item 14.



15 
 

(Code 2017, § 6-66)  

Sec. 6-69. - Duty of owner regarding care of animals.  

(a)  Standard of care. Each owner or keeper of an animal shall comply with the standards of care for 
each such animal set forth in this section. Failure to comply with any standards of care set forth in 
this section shall be a violation of this section.  

(b)  Adequate veterinary care. It shall be the duty of each owner or keeper of an animal to provide the 
animal with adequate veterinary care, which shall mean that a sick, diseased, or injured animal shall 
be provided with a proper program of care that is recommended by a veterinarian, or shall be 
humanly euthanized. Each animal shall be provided with proper immunizations, proper flea control 
measures, and proper preventive health care, including parasite control.  

(c)  Cleaning and grooming. It shall be the duty of each owner or keeper of an animal to keep the animal 
clean, and to provide proper grooming as appropriate for the species.  

(Code 2017, § 6-67; Ord. No. 2778, § 3, 8-27-2012)  

 

Sec. 6-70. - Animals prohibited: Sturgis Falls Celebration and Cedar Basin MusicJazz Festival, Inc.  

(a)  The city council shall designate the dates and locations for the annual Sturgis Falls Celebration and 
Cedar Basin MusicJazz Festival, Inc., in the city. Such designation by resolution shall occur no later 
than two weeks prior to the start of the Sturgis Falls Celebration and Cedar Basin MusicJazz 
Festival, Inc., which take place simultaneously.  

(b)  It shall be unlawful for the owner of an animal to permit or allow the animal to be in the areas 
designated by the city council as Sturgis Falls Celebration and Cedar Basin MusicJazz Festival, Inc., 
locations during the designated dates. The following listed dogs are exempt: a certified police canine, 
rescue dog or tracking dog acting on behalf of a public safety agency in the performance of its 
duties, or engaged in approved training or a public demonstration of its skills; service dog; certified 
therapy dog; assistive animal.  

(Code 2017, § 6-68; Ord. No. 2788, § 1, 1-28-2013) 

        

       Section 3.  Division 3, Dangerous Animals, of Article II, Animal Control, of Chapter 6, 

Animals, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its 

entirety and a new Division 3, Dangerous Animals, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:  

ARTICLE II. - ANIMAL CONTROL  

DIVISION 3. - DANGEROUS ANIMALS  

Sec. 6-131. - Definition.  

For purposes of this division, any animal which attacks or injures any person or domestic animal, or 
which constitutes a physical threat to any person or domestic animal, shall constitute a dangerous animal; 
provided, however, that a dog assisting a peace officer engaged in law enforcement duties shall be 
exempt from the provisions of this division.  

101

Item 14.



16 
 

(Code 2017, § 6-106)  

Sec. 6-132. - Authority to impound or require confinement.  

If a law enforcement officer or animal wardenpeace officer or an animal control officer, in his or her 
discretion, believes that a dangerous animal poses an unreasonable risk or threat of harm to any person 
or domestic animal, the peace officer or wardenanimal control officer may impound such dangerous 
animal. As an alternative to impoundment, the peace officer or wardenanimal control officer may, in his or 
her discretion, leave a dangerous animal in the custody of its owner, upon receipt of the owner's written 
agreement to keep the dangerous animal in a secure enclosure until such time as the chief of police or 
designeeanimal control officials have reviewed the circumstances and taken action under section 6-134.  

(Code 2017, § 6-107)  

Sec. 6-133. - Notice of impoundment.  

Upon impoundment of a dangerous animal under section 6-132, thea law enforcement officer or 
animal wardenpeace officer or animal control officer shall notify the owner as soon as practicable, but in 
any event within 48 hours after such impoundment, if the owner is known.  

(Code 2017, § 6-108)  

Sec. 6-134. - Disposition of impounded animals.  

(a)  Within 48 hours after impoundment of any dangerous animal, the chief of police or designeeanimal 
control officials shall review the circumstances surrounding the impoundment and shall do one of the 
following:  

(1)  Retain such animal for purposes of observation and evaluation for a period not to exceed 30 
days, in which case the owner, if known, shall be promptly notified thereof in writing.  

(2)  Release such animal to the control of its owner pursuant to a written agreement to be signed 
by the owner, upon such terms and conditions as the chief of policeanimal control officials 
deems reasonably necessary to ensure the public safety, including, but not limited to, the 
following requirements:  

a.  Requiring that, at all times, the animal either be confined in a secure enclosure, or be 
attended by the owner or a person capable of controlling the animal who is eight years of 
age or older, and restrained by a secure collar and leash of sufficient strength to prevent 
escape.  

b.  Prohibiting the animal from being chained, tethered or otherwise tied to any fixed object 
such as a tree, post or building.  

c.  Requiring the owner to inform by any means, including written notification, signs, etc., any 
persons, including, but not limited to, the postmaster, utility company, meter readers or 
other persons who routinely come on the property of the owner, that a dangerous animal is 
on the premises, or, if the owner moves his residence to another location within the city, to 
inform any such persons that the animal is now on the new premises.  

d.  Requiring the owner to prove financial responsibility for any injury or damage which may be 
caused by the animal by posting a cash or surety bond for an amount up to $1,000.00.  

e.  Requiring the owner to agree to neither sell, offer for sale, breed, give away, nor take any 
designated dangerous animal out of the city without first having given written notice thereof 
to the animal control officials.  

102

Item 14.



17 
 

f.  Requiring the owner to attend a prescribed course in animaldog owner responsibility or an 
obedience class.  

g.  Requiring the owner to tattoo the dangerous animal to provide permanent identification of 
the animal.  

h.  Requiring all fees and expenses described in section 6-136 to be paid by the owner before 
the animal is released to the owner.  

i.  Requiring the owner to agree that failure to comply with any of the terms and conditions of 
the written agreement may result in the animal subsequently being impounded and 
humanely destroyed.  

(3)  Cause the animal to be humanely destroyed if, in the opinion of the chief of policeanimal 
control officials, the release of such animal would create an unreasonable risk of harm to the 
public safety.  

(b)  In making its determination regarding the disposition of the animal, the chief of policeanimal control 
officials shall consider all of the circumstances, including, but not limited to, whether the animal's 
behavior was provoked by any person or other animal.  

(Code 2017, § 6-109)  

Sec. 6-135. - Notice of destruction of animal; appeal.  

(a)  Notification of owner; appeal procedure.  

(1)  If the chief of policeanimal control officials determines that a dangerous animal which has been 
impounded pursuant to this division is to be destroyed pursuant to the provisions of section 6-
134(a)(3), the chief of policeanimal control officials shall notify the owner of such animal in 
writing, at least ten days in advance, of the intent to destroy the animal, and further inform such 
owner of the owner’shis right to appeal as provided by this section.  

(2)  The owner of such animal may, at any time prior to the date upon which the animal is to be 
destroyed, appeal the determination of the chief of policeanimal control officials to the 
administration committee of the city council by filing a written notice of such appeal with the city 
clerk.  

(3)  After receipt of a notice of appeal under this section, the city clerk shall calendar the appeal for 
hearing by the administration committee of the city council, and shall notify the owner and the 
chief of policeanimal control officials of such action.  

(4)  The chief of policeanimal control officials shall not thereafter destroy such animal until the 
administration committee of the city council shall have first heard the appeal and rendered its 
decision.  

(5)  Any owner of a dangerous animal who fails to file an appeal or to appear at such hearing after 
being given notice as provided in this section shall be deemed to have waived any right in or 
claim to such animal or any right to claim any damages or other relief by reason of any action by 
the chief of policeanimal control officials pursuant to this division.  

(b)  Action by administration committee. After hearing such testimony and evidence as it may deem 
proper, the administration committee of the city council may:  

(1)  Uphold the decision of the chief of policeanimal control officials and order the animal humanely 
destroyed.  

(2)  Modify or reverse, either in whole or in part, the decision of the chief of policeanimal control 
officials, and order the return of the animal to its owner, and impose such conditions upon such 
return as may be reasonably necessary to ensure the public safety, including, but not limited to, 

103

Item 14.



18 
 

the terms and conditions set forth in sections 6-134(a)(2)a through i, or a continuation of the 
impoundment of such animal for a period not to exceed 30 days from the date of the hearing.  

(c)  Enforcement of decision. After the decision of the administration committee of the city council has 
been rendered as provided in this section, the chief of policeanimal control officials shall take such 
action as is necessary to carry out such decision.  

(Code 2017, § 6-110)  

Sec. 6-136. - Payment of impoundment fees.  

The owner of a dangerous animal which has been impounded pursuant to this division shall be 
charged for all costs incurred in connection with the impoundment of the animal, including, but not limited 
to, a pickup fee and a daily boarding fee. The owner shall be required to pay all such fees before any 
animal is released to its owner.  

(Code 2017, § 6-111)  

Sec. 6-137. - Harboring prohibited.  

No person shall knowingly harbor or hide or cause to be harbored or hidden any known dangerous 
animal. Any such animal shall immediately be surrendered to a law enforcement officer or animal 
wardenpeace officer or an animal control officer. Any violation of this section shall constitute a simple 
misdemeanor, and shall be punished accordingly.  

(Code 2017, § 6-112)  

 

Secs. 6-138—6-157. - Reserved.  

     Section 4.  Division 4, Agricultural Non-domestic Animals and Exotic Animals, of Article II, 

Animal Control, of Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Division 4, Agricultural Non-domestic Animals 

and Exotic Animals, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

ARTICLE II. - ANIMAL CONTROL  

DIVISION 4. - AGRICULTURAL NON-DOMESTIC ANIMALS AND EXOTIC ANIMALS  

Sec. 6-158. - Keeping of agricultural animals.  

No horse, mule, cow, calf, swine, sheep, goat, llama, camel, ostrich, peacock, chicken, goose, duck, 
turkey or other agricultural animal or specialized breed of such agricultural animal shall be kept on any 
property that is not located in the A-1 Agricultural District under chapter 26, zoning, with the exception 
that horses may be kept on properties that are zoned R-1 Residential District, on the terms provided in 
section 26-164.  

(Code 2017, § 6-113; Ord. No. 2607, § 1, 11-13-2006)  

104

Item 14.



19 
 

Sec. 6-159. - Keeping of chickens as nonconforming use.  

(a)  Existing nonconforming use. The keeping of chickens that are located on any property that is not 
zoned A-1 Agricultural District, under chapter 26, zoning, as of November 1, 2006, is hereby 
declared to be a nonconforming use. Any person who owns or possesses chickens that are located 
on any property in any zoning district other than the A-1 Agricultural District under chapter 26, 
zoning, as of November 1, 2006, may continue to keep not more than three chickens, but not to 
include roosters, on such property, as long as such chickens are kept in a totally enclosed structure 
which is located outside of a residential dwelling, and which is located at least 25 feet from any other 
residential dwelling.  

(b)  Termination of nonconforming use by discontinuation. In addition, if such person discontinues the 
keeping of chickens on such property for a period of one year, such nonconforming use shall 
terminate, and the use of the property shall thereafter conform to the requirements of section 6-158. 
The keeping of such chickens shall be specific to the property on which the chickens were located on 
November 1, 2006, and shall be specific to the person keeping such chickens on such property as of 
such date, and may not be transferred to any other person or to any other property.  

(c)  Termination of nonconforming use for health reasons. Further, in the event of issuance of an 
advisory by any department of public health, federal, state or local, that all chickens must be 
exterminated in the interests of public health, the keeping of all chickens that then constitute a valid 
nonconforming use under this section shall immediately terminate, and shall not thereafter be re-
established on such properties, and the use of all such properties shall thereafter conform to the 
requirements of section 6-158.  

(Code 2017, § 6-114; Ord. No. 2607, § 1, 11-13-2006)  

 

Sec. 6-160. - Indoor pets.  

Gerbils, hamsters, guinea pigs, rabbits, mice, birds, snakes, insects, lizards, and other similar 
animals that are normally maintained as household pets and kept in an enclosure inside a principal or 
accessory structure located on a property are not, by the provisions of this division, prohibited in any 
zoning district in the city.  Poultry is not considered a household pet under this section.  

(Code 2017, § 6-115; Ord. No. 2607, § 1, 11-13-2006)  

INTRODUCED:  ___________________________________________________________ 
PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 
PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:  ______________________________________________ 
ADOPTED:  _______________________________________________________________ 
 
                                                                                             ___________________________ 
                                                                                              Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
         

105

Item 14.



1 
 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE II, ANIMAL CONTROL, OF CHAPTER 6, 

ANIMALS, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

BY ENACTING A NEW DIVISION 5, REAR YARD POULTRY, CONSISTING OF SECTION 

6-301, GENERALLY; SECTION 6-302, POULTRY LICENSE; SECTION 6-303, FEMALE 

POULTRY ONLY; MAXIMUM NUMBER; SECTION 6-304, POULTRY COOP; SECTION 6-

305, POULTRY RUN; SECTION 6-306, POULTRY COOP AND POULTRY RUN LAND 

USE PERMIT; SECTION 6-307, REVOCATION OF PERMIT; ENFORCEMENT; 

NUISANCE; AND SECTION 6-308, REVOCATION OF POULTRY LICENSE FOR PUBLIC 

HEALTH.  

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Article II, Animal Control, of Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended by enacting a new Division 5, Rear Yard 

Poultry, as follows: 

ARTICLE II. - ANIMAL CONTROL  

DIVISION 5. – REAR YARD POULTRY 

Sec. 6-301. – Generally. 

     Poultry may be kept in the rear yard area of a dwelling located on a residential block in the 
city as long as the owner of such residence complies with the following: 

(a)  The poultry shall be kept at all times in a poultry coop and poultry run on the premises.  The 
poultry coop and poultry run shall be maintained in a reasonably clean, sound, safe and sanitary 
condition. 

(b)  No part of the poultry coop or poultry run shall be located within 25 feet of a dwelling located 
on an adjoining property and no part of a poultry coop or poultry run shall be located closer to 
any street side lot line than the principal dwelling on the lot.  In addition, the poultry coop must 
be located at least two feet from any side or rear property line.  

106

Item 15.



2 
 

(c)  The owner of the poultry must reside on the premises where the poultry is located. 

For purposes of this section a “residential block’ means a city block in which at least half the 
structures are permanent residences. 

Sec. 6-302. – Poultry license. 

     In addition to a land use permit, a poultry license as provided for in division 1 must be 
obtained and maintained for poultry to be kept.  All outstanding fees, assessments and fines 
related to poultry must be paid in full prior to issuance or renewal of a poultry license. 

 Sec. 6-303. – Female poultry only; maximum number. 

     Only poultry of female gender is allowed to be kept.  No more than 10 total poultry in any 
combination of species may be kept at a single residence, at any one time. 

Sec. 6-304. – Poultry coop. 

     Poultry shall be kept in a poultry coop located on the poultry owner’s property.  The poultry 
coop shall be at least three square feet in size for every individual poultry kept there.  The 
poultry coop shall be of sufficient structural soundness to keep the poultry safe and secure.  No 
permanent openings greater than 2 1/8 inches in diameter are allowed.  Materials used in the 
construction of the poultry coop must be similar in appearance and quality to the main structure 
or accessory structures on the premises, unless purchased as an item advertised as a 
complete, standalone poultry confinement structure.  A detached garage or shed located on the 
premises may be used as a poultry coop provided that the poultry is confined to a specific area 
of such structure.  The poultry coop shall be sized appropriately to accommodate the total 
number of poultry kept at any time.  The poultry coop shall be constructed so as to allow access 
for the purposes of feeding and watering of poultry, for cleaning, maintenance and repairs, and 
for inspection by authorized city personnel.     

Sec. 6-305. – Poultry run. 

     A poultry run is required for the keeping of poultry.  The poultry run must to be attached to 
the poultry coop so that poultry may have free access to either at all times.  The poultry run shall 
be completely enclosed so as to prevent the escape of the poultry.  No permanent openings 
greater than 2 1/8 inches in diameter are allowed. The size of the poultry run shall be at least 10 
square feet for every individual poultry kept.  Materials used for the poultry run shall be sturdy 
and self-supporting.  The poultry run shall be sized appropriately to accommodate the total 
number of poultry kept at any time. The poultry run shall be constructed so as to allow access 
for the purposes of feeding and watering of poultry, for cleaning, maintenance and repairs, and 
for inspection by authorized city personnel.   

Sec. 6-306. – Poultry coop and poultry run land use permit.  

     Prior to the keeping of any poultry, a poultry owner must obtain a land use permit for the 
poultry coop and poultry run from the zoning administrator or designee.  The granting and 
continuation of such land use permit shall be conditioned on compliance with the requirements 
set forth in this division. A dimensional site plan of the poultry coop and poultry run shall be 
required as part of the application for such permit, including distances from neighboring 

107

Item 15.



3 
 

dwellings.  Construction of a poultry coop larger than 120 square feet in size shall also require a 
building permit.  If the poultry coop or run is to be moved, the site plan shall also show the entire 
area where the coop and run may be located.  Any substantial modification of the poultry coop 
or poultry run shall require a new land use permit.   

Sec. 6-307. – Revocation of permit; enforcement; nuisance. 

Failure to maintain a poultry coop or poultry run in a reasonably clean, safe, sound and sanitary 
condition or in compliance with the requirements of this division may result in suspension or 
revocation by the zoning administrator of the land use permit after notice to the owner and after 
a reasonable opportunity for hearing.  Code enforcement officers of the city are authorized to 
enforce the requirements of this division.  Failure to comply with the requirements of this division 
may also constitute a nuisance to be abated as provided for in chapter 15. 

Sec. 6-308. – Revocation of poultry license for public health. 

     In the event of issuance of an advisory by any department of public health, federal, state or 
local, that poultry must be exterminated in the interests of public health, any poultry license 
issued under this division shall be deemed immediately revoked, and the owner of such poultry 
shall take immediate steps to comply with such advisory, or in the alternative the poultry may be 
seized and exterminated by the city at the owner’s cost.        

 

INTRODUCED:  ___________________________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:  ______________________________________________ 

ADOPTED:  _______________________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                             ___________________________ 

                                                                                              Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

108

Item 15.



 
 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE (1). AMENDING SECTION 15-2, NUISANCE DEFINED; CERTAIN 

ACTS, CONDITIONS DECLARED AS NUISANCES, OF ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, BY 

ENACTING A NEW UNTITLED SUBSECTION (43); AND (2). AMENDING SECTION 15-

83, GENERAL NOISES PROHIBITED, OF ARTICLE III, NOISE, BY STRIKING UNTITLED 

SUBSECTION 15-83(B)(4) AND ENACTING A NEW UNTITLED SUBSECTION 15-

83(B)(4) IN LIEU THEREOF; ALL OF CHAPTER 15, NUISANCES, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Section 15-2, Nuisance Defined; Certain Acts, Conditions Declared as 

Nuisances, of Article I, In General, of Chapter 15, Nuisances, of the Code of Ordinances of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended by enacting a new untitled subsection (43), as 

follows: 

(43)     Any poultry coop or poultry run that is not in a reasonably clean, sound, safe and sanitary 
condition or that does not comply with construction requirements as set forth in division 5 of 
article II of chapter 6 of this code.    

 

       Section 2.    Untitled subsection (b)(4) of Section 15-83, General Noises Prohibited, of Article 

III, Noise, of Chapter 15, Nuisances, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new untitled subsection (b)(4) is enacted in lieu thereof, 

as follows: 

(4)  Keeping noisy animals and fowl. The keeping, upon any premises owned, occupied or 
controlled by any person, of any animal or fowl otherwise permitted to be kept which, by any 
sound or cry, shall cause annoyance or discomfort to a reasonable person of normal 
sensibilities. 

INTRODUCED:  ___________________________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:  ______________________________________________ 

ADOPTED:  _______________________________________________________________ 

 
                                                                                             ___________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                               Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
_________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

109

Item 16.



110

Item 17.



111

Item 17.



112

Item 17.



113

Item 17.



114

Item 17.



115

Item 17.



116

Item 17.



117

Item 17.



118

Item 17.



119

Item 17.



120

Item 17.



121

Item 17.



122

Item 17.



123

Item 17.



124

Item 17.



125

Item 17.



126

Item 17.



127

Item 17.



128

Item 17.



129

Item 17.



130

Item 17.



131

Item 17.



132

Item 17.



133

Item 17.



134

Item 17.



135

Item 17.



136

Item 17.



137

Item 17.



138

Item 17.



139

Item 17.



140

Item 17.



141

Item 17.



142

Item 17.



143

Item 17.



144

Item 17.



145

Item 17.



146

Item 17.



147

Item 17.



148

Item 17.



149

Item 17.



150

Item 17.



151

Item 17.



152

Item 17.



153

Item 17.



154

Item 17.



155

Item 17.



156

Item 17.



157

Item 17.



158

Item 17.



159

Item 17.



160

Item 17.



161

Item 17.



162

Item 17.



163

Item 17.



164

Item 17.



165

Item 17.



166

Item 17.



167

Item 17.



168

Item 17.



169

Item 17.



170

Item 17.



171

Item 17.



172

Item 17.



173

Item 17.



174

Item 17.



175

Item 17.



176

Item 17.



177

Item 17.



178

Item 17.



179

Item 17.



180

Item 17.



181

Item 17.



182

Item 17.



183

Item 17.



184

Item 17.



185

Item 17.



186

Item 17.



187

Item 17.



188

Item 17.



189

Item 17.



190

Item 17.



191

Item 17.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular Meeting of January 4, 2021
	210104MINUTES

	Item 2.	PH -CDBG-CV CARES Act
	1  CC memo for PH revised state fundsv2

	Item 3.	2980-Subdivision Amendments
	01. Memo.CC.amendment final plat phasing.12.17.20 (1)
	02. Ord-subdivision code amends.final plat phasing TA20-001.final

	Item 4.	Extension of Mask Mandate
	Res-Extend Mask Mandate

	Item 5.	Mayor's Monthly Report
	2020-12-30_Mayor_MonthlyReport

	Item 6.	Randle Resignation
	Randle Resignation

	Item 7.	Boards & Commissions
	2021-01-13_HRC_Appoint_Beranek-Heston-Renfro
	HRC - Beranek 10-3-19
	HRC - Heston 11-13-19
	HRC - Heston - Questionnaire 11-13-20
	HRC - Renfro 2-16-17

	Item 8.	Committee of the Whole Minutes 1/4/21
	Comm of the Whole 010421

	Item 9.	Liquor Beer 1-19-21
	Liquor Beer 1-19-21

	Item 10.	Center Street Rec. Trail - Final Acceptance
	1. Memo Center Street Trail Final Acceptance of Work
	2. 830435-Statement-of-Completion-and-Final-Acceptance_Signed

	Item 11.	Union Road Rec. Trail Project - low bid
	1. Memo - Low Bid
	2. Bid Summary

	Item 12.	CDBG-CV-State-CARES Act
	1  Council memo for contract to the state cv2
	2 City of Cedar Falls contract- 20-CVE-009 1-12-21

	Item 13.	Set PH-Maximum levy
	1-budget max levy hearing council.mem
	2-Max Levy FY22

	Item 14.	Ord-Poultry in Residential Areas
	1. poultry ord memo 1-13-21B
	2. Ordinance Poultry Part 1

	Item 15.	Ord-Rear Yard Poultry
	3. Ord-Rear Yard Poultry

	Item 16.	Ord-Nuisance Poultry
	4. Ord-Nuisance Poultry

	Item 17.	Bills & Payroll
	1 Daily Invoices 011921
	2 Council Invoices 011921

	Bottom

